
 
A meeting of the CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL will be held in 
MEETING ROOM 1, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, 
HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on WEDNESDAY, 26 MARCH 2008 at 6:00 
PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the following 
business:- 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact 
(01480) 

 

 APOLOGIES   
 

 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 12th December 2007. 
 

A Roberts 
388004 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any Agenda Item.  Please see Notes 1 and 2 below. 
 

 

3. CHANGES TO THE CODE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  
(Pages 5 - 22) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services proposing 
changes to the Council’s Code of Financial Management. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

4. ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT  (Pages 23 - 36) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Policy and Strategic Services on 
the assurance framework and Annual Governance Statement. 
 

H Thackray 
388035 

5. EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S REPORT   
 

 

 (a) DATA QUALITY AUDIT REPORT 2006/07  (Pages 37 - 62) 
 

 

  To consider a report by the Head of Policy and Strategic 
Services on the Huntingdonshire District Council Data Quality 
Audit Report 2006/07. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 

 (b) USE OF RESOURCES REPORT 2006/07  (Pages 63 - 84) 
 

 

  To consider the Huntingdonshire District Council Use of 
Resources Report for 2006/07. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

6. ANNUAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION LETTER  (Pages 85 - 98) 
 

 

 To consider the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter.  
 

S Couper 
388103 



 
7. RISK REGISTER UPDATE  (Pages 99 - 108) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Audit and Risk Manager on the current 
risk register. 
 

D Harwood 
388115 

8. INTERIM AUDIT SERVICE  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008  (Pages 
109 - 114) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Audit and Risk Manager regarding the 
internal audit plan for the four month period commencing 1st April 
2008. 
 

D Harwood 
388115 

9. INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE: INTERIM PROGRESS REPORT  
(Pages 115 - 124) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Audit Manager reviewing progress 
towards the achievement of the 2007/8 annual audit plan and 
associated management and performance issues. 
 

D Harwood 
388115 

10. WHISTLEBLOWING: ANNUAL REVIEW OF POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE  (Pages 125 - 126) 

 

 

 To note the outcome of the annual review on whistleblowing. 
 

D Harwood 
388115 

11. TRAVEL PLAN  (Pages 127 - 138) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Administration on the outcome of 
a study by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) Travel 
Plan Working Group. 
 

Miss N Giles 
387049 

   
 Dated this 20th day of March 2008  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 



 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 

Please contact Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No 01480 388006 / e-mail: 
Habbiba.Ali@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to 
tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any 
decision taken by the Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit and to make their way to the car park adjacent to the Methodist Church on the High 
Street (opposite Prima's Italian Restaurant). 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

PANEL held in Meeting room 1, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, 
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Wednesday, 12 December 2007. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor C J Stephens – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors K J Churchill, P J Downes, 

T V Rogers, L M Simpson and G S E Thorpe. 
   
 APOLOGY: An apology for absence from the meeting 

was submitted on behalf of Councillor 
J A Gray. 

   
 
 

19. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting held on 25th September 2007 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

20. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 Councillor G S E Thorpe declared a personal interest in Minute No. 
24 by virtue of being a Member of the E-Forum Working Group. 
 

21. CALCULATION OF COUNCIL TAX BASE 2008/09   
 

 In accordance with Section 34 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 and the local authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 
1992 (as amended) and after consideration of a report by the Head of 
Revenue Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
setting out the general principles for the calculation of the tax base for 
the District, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the report by the Head of Revenue Services 

regarding the calculation of the District Council’s tax 
base for the year 2008/09 be approved; and 

 
 (b) that in accordance with the Local Authorities 

(Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992 (as 
amended), the amount calculated by the 
Huntingdonshire District Council as their tax base for 
the whole District for the year 2008/09 be 57,785 and 
shall be as listed below for each parish of the District: 

 
Abbotsley  188 
Abbots Ripton      134 
Alconbury  563 
Alconbury Weston  283 
Alwalton  125 
Barham & Woolley  26 

Agenda Item 1

1



Bluntisham  727 
Brampton  1795 
Brington & Molesworth  112 
Broughton  87 
Buckden  1145 
Buckworth  50  
Bury  590 
Bythorn & Keyston  145 
Catworth  137 
Chesterton  60 
Colne  335 
Conington  74 
Covington  42 
Denton & Caldecote  24 
Diddington   30 
Earith  580 
Easton  75 
Ellington  234 
Elton  290 
Eynesbury Hardwicke  780 
Farcet  580 
Fenstanton  1200 
Folksworth & Washingley  350 
Glatton  132 
Godmanchester  2258 
Grafham  238 
Great & Little Gidding  127 
Great Gransden  457 
Great Paxton  375 
Great Staughton  310 
Haddon  21 
Hail Weston  238 
Hamerton  42 
Hemingford Abbots  325 
Hemingford Grey  1154 
Hilton  445 
Holme  243 
Holywell-cum-Needingworth  980 
Houghton & Wyton  1215 
Huntingdon  6774 
Kings Ripton  73 
Kimbolton & Stonely  590 
Leighton Bromswold  80 
Little Paxton  1145 
Morborne  11 
Offord Cluny  200 
Offord d'Arcy  295 
Old Hurst  95 
Old Weston  88 
Perry  265 
Pidley-cum-Fenton  155 
Ramsey  2880 
St Ives  5650 
St Neots  9120 
St Neots Rural  40 
Sawtry  1737 
Sibson-cum-Stibbington  205 

2



Somersham  1365 
Southoe & Midloe  155 
Spaldwick  225 
Steeple Gidding  12 
Stilton  785 
Stow Longa  60 
Tetworth  20 
The Stukeleys  760 
Tilbrook  105 
Toseland  38 
Upton & Coppingford  85 
Upwood & The Raveleys  412 
Warboys  1358 
Waresley  128 
Water Newton  42 
Winwick  41 
Wistow  220 
Woodhurst  155 
Woodwalton  85 
Yaxley  2872 
Yelling  138 
  57785 

 

22. INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE CHANGING REPORTING PERIODS   
 

 With the aid of a report by the Audit and Risk Manager (a copy of 
which is appended in the Minute Book) the Panel gave consideration 
to a proposal to change the Internal Audit Service reporting period.  
Having been reminded of the change to the period on which the 
Council’s Use of Resources Judgements were based, Members were 
informed that the proposed change would align the Internal Audit 
Report and Opinion with the Corporate Governance Statement.  
Whereupon, it was  
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the audit plan year be based on August to July; 
 
 (b) that an audit plan for four months ending July 2008 be 

presented to the March meeting of the Panel; and 
 
 (c) that the Internal Audit Strategy be amended to reflect 

the change in reporting period. 
 

23. REVIEW OF THE ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY   
 

 By means of a report by the Audit and Risk Manager (a copy of which 
is appended in the Minute Book) the Panel was acquainted with the 
outcome of a review of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy.  The 
review had identified a number of recommended changes principally 
arising from fraud legislation. 
 
Members discussed whether the Strategy should refer to Members.  It 
was concluded that all matters concerning Members should be dealt 
with under the Code of Conduct.  Members also discussed the means 
by which Members, employees and the public would be informed of 
the changes to the Strategy. 

3



 
RESOLVED 
 
 that, subject to the deletion of the words “will make suitable 

arrangements” from paragraph 8.1, the revised Anti-Fraud 
and Corruption Strategy be adopted. 

 

24. THE USE OF ONLINE MEDIA PROCEDURAL IMPLICATIONS   
 

 The Panel considered a report by the Head of Administration (a copy 
of which is appended in the Minute Book) on the procedural 
implications of recommendations by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) on the use of on-line media.  Members were 
acquainted with the range of matters considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny E-Forums Working Group in the course of its deliberations 
and the Working Group’s particular conclusions on introducing on-line 
petitions using the Modern.gov software system when this facility 
became available.   
 
Having noted that in the event of an excessive number of petitions 
being organised by any one individual, the Panel would need to 
consider amending the petitions and vexatious complaints 
procedures, it was  
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the Council be recommended to amend the 

Constitution to enable on-line petitions to be processed 
under the existing provisions on petitions, subject to a 
maximum of three petitions being presented to any 
meeting; and 

 
 (b) that in the event of an on-line petition not having a 

requisite number of signatories or the organiser not 
being prepared to present it to Council, the petition be 
submitted for consideration to the relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel, subject to the petition containing 
the names and addresses of at least 10 persons who 
live or work or own property in the District. 

 

25. REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION   
 

 Further to Minute No. 41, the Panel was acquainted with the 
recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service 
Delivery) on a suggestion made during the review of the Constitution 
on introducing a District youth forum 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the recommendation of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel (Service Delivery) that a District youth forum should 
not be established at this time, be noted. 

 

 
 

Chairman 
 

4



 

  
  
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL 26 MARCH 2008 
  

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CODE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

 
 
1 BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The Code of Financial Management is that part of the Council’s Constitution that 

regulates the financial management of the Council. It is important that this is a 
“live” document that adapts to the changing needs of the Council. 

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to allow the Panel to consider some proposed 

changes and invites the Panel to recommend them to the April meeting of the 
Council. 

 
2 PROPOSED CHANGES 
 
2.1 The proposed changes are not major and relate to the following issues: 
 

Deletion of Contingency 
The Council accepted the Cabinet’s proposal to delete the general contingency 
and so references to its use now need to be deleted from the Code. 
 
Rephasing of Expenditure 
Paragraph 3.7 has been amplified to clarify the circumstances in which revenue 
expenditure can be rephased to future years. 
 
Change of Responsibilities and Post Titles 
From April the Income section will be transferred to the Head of Financial 
Services from the Head of Revenue Services, who will be redesignated as the 
Head of Customer Services. Paragraphs 4.2 and 5.8 have been reworded 
accordingly. 
 
Increased emphasis on achieving Efficiency Savings 
Annex B has been reworded to highlight the need to Heads of Service to carefully 
consider all options before deciding to replace staff who hand in their notice. 

 
 
3 CONCLUSIONS  
 
3.1 The changes outlined above, included in the proposed Code at Annex A, will 

ensure that the Code reflects the current needs of the Council. 
 

 
4 RECOMMENDATION  

 
4.1 The Panel is asked to recommend the attached revised Code of Financial 

Management to the Council: 
 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
Current Code of Financial Management 
 
Contact Officer:  
Steve Couper,      Head of Financial Services     (((( 01480 388103 

Agenda Item 3

5



 

ANNEX A 
 

 
Huntingdonshire District Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CODE OF FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 2008 

6



7



 

 
 

 
1. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
1.1 General 
 Before any proposal that affects the Council’s financial position is made the 

body or person(s) responsible for making that decision shall consider a written 
report, approved by the Director of Commerce and Technology, detailing the 
financial implications. 

 
1.2 The Council 
 Will determine the Council's Financial Strategy, including a Medium Term 

Financial Plan (MTP), approve the annual budget and Prudential Indicators 
and set the level of the council tax.  

 
Will approve the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. 

 
1.3 The Corporate Governance Panel 

Will ensure that the financial management of the Council is adequate and 
effective. 
 
Will ensure that the Council has a sound system of internal control including 
arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
Will consider the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance and approve the 
annual statement. 
 
Will approve the terms of reference and strategy for internal audit and 
comment on the annual internal and external audit plans. 
 
Will consider the external auditor’s annual management letter. 
 
Will approve the Council’s tax base and final accounts.  

 
1.4 The Cabinet 
 Will propose to the Council the Financial Strategy, the MTP, the annual budget 

and council tax level, after appropriate consultation which will include the 
appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Panel, the Prudential Indicators and the 
annual Treasury Management Strategy. 

 
 Will set financial priorities, allocate and re-allocate resources in accordance 

with the limits in this Code, monitor and review financial performance and 
adopt a Treasury Management Policy. 

 
1.5 Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
 Will contribute to the development of, and review the effectiveness of, the 

Council's Financial Strategy, MTP and annual budget. 
 
1.6 Panels or Committees 
 Will ensure that all decisions within their remit are made within the resources 

allocated within relevant budgets and are consistent with achieving the 
Council’s objectives.  If they wish to make proposals that will require additional 
resources these will need to be subject to the Cabinet or Council making these 
available. 

8



 

 
1.7 Members and Employees 
  Will contribute to the general stewardship, integrity and confidence in the 

Council's financial affairs and comply with this Code and any systems, 
procedures, or policies relating to the financial management of the Council.   

 
  Specifically, they shall bring to the attention of the Director of Commerce and 

Technology any act or omission that is contrary to the provisions of this Code 
or the maintenance of high standards of financial probity, and provide 
information or explanation on matters within their responsibility to him/her, the 
Monitoring Officer, Internal Audit Service or the Council’s external auditors. 

 
 Any member or officer who is involved or who has an interest in a transaction 

between a third party and the Council shall declare the nature and amount, if 
material, as required by the Accounting Standards Body’s Financial Reporting 
Standard on related party payments. 

 
1.8 The Director of Central Services, as Monitoring Officer or, in his/her 

absence, the Head of Legal and Estates 
 
 Will report to the Council on any proposal, decision or omission that in his/her 

view is likely to result in the contravention of the law or any code of practice 
enacted under it, fails to comply with a legal duty, represents 
maladministration or is unjust, in accordance with section 5 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 
  For these purposes he/she shall have full and unrestricted access to all 

Council assets, systems, documents, information, employees and Members. 
 
1.9 The Director of Commerce and Technology, as Chief Finance Officer or, 

in his/her absence, the Head of Financial Services 
 
  Will be responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial 

affairs, prescribe appropriate financial systems, protocols, procedures and 
policies, maintain an internal audit service and report to the Council in the 
event of a decision or action leading to unlawful expenditure, a loss or 
deficiency or an unlawful accounting entry (in accordance with section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972, section 114 of the Local Government Act 
1988 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations). 

 
  Will be responsible for ensuring the final accounts are completed and 

published by the statutory dates and reporting the details of any material 
amendments specified by the external auditor to the Corporate Governance 
Panel. 

 
  For these purposes he/she shall have full and unrestricted access to all 

Council assets, systems, documents, information, employees and Members. 
 
1.10 The Head of Financial Services 
  Will be responsible for detailed and operational aspects of the administration 

of the Council’s financial affairs on behalf of the Director of Commerce and 
Technology, approving new financial systems and undertaking such duties as 
are set out in this Code. 

9



 

 
1.11 Chief Officers and Heads of Service 
  Whilst Chief Officers will take ultimate responsibility for their employees’ 

actions, the Council’s management structure is based on Heads of Service or, 
in a few cases, Chief Officers taking prime responsibility for a service and its 
related budget.  

 
The Manager responsible for a budget: 
 

• may incur financial commitments and liabilities in accordance with 
this Code, the Council's Scheme of Delegation and resources 
allocated in budgets that have been released subject to Annex B. In 
particular they may make purchases of goods and services, subject 
to the requirements of the Code of Procurement, and employ staff, 
in accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules. They 
will normally delegate appropriate elements of this responsibility to 
members of their staff. 

 

• will be responsible for regular and effective monitoring and 
forecasting of the financial position relating to their services. 

 

• will be responsible for proper financial and resource management 
and the prevention of fraud and corruption within the services and 
functions under their control. 

 

• will determine the inherent risks, within their services, to the 
achievement of the Council’s priorities and establish, maintain and 
document adequate systems of internal control and financial 
monitoring, in consultation with the Internal Audit Service, and 
ensure that relevant employees or Members are familiar with such 
systems. 

 

• will be responsible for providing in a timely manner, the information 
necessary to ensure that the final accounts can be completed by the 
statutory deadlines. 

 

• will be responsible for reviewing and varying fees and charges at 
least annually for services under their control, after consultation with 
the relevant Executive Councillor(s) and/or Chairman of the relevant 
Panel. In doing so, they shall: 

 

• ensure that relevant legislation is complied with, particularly 
where it specifies the charges to be made or constrains them 
in some way. 

 

• having regard to the charges of any alternative service 
providers with whom the Council is competing, seek to 
maximise income, net of applicable costs, as far as is possible 
without compromising the Council’s stated corporate priorities 
and objectives. 

10



 

 

• provide discounts where they are expected to stimulate 
demand and generate additional net income which would 
otherwise not be obtained and/or they are in the best interests 
of the service and its customers, particularly where they make 
the services available to those who could not otherwise afford 
them, provided that such discounts do not result in additional 
net cost to the Council. 

 
1.12 Internal Audit 
  Will be responsible for providing an independent and objective opinion on 

internal control, risk management and governance systems.  In accordance 
with its terms of reference it shall undertake audit reviews that focus on areas 
of greatest risk to the Council’s control environment in accordance with a 
programme agreed annually by the Director of Commerce and Technology 
after consultation with Heads of Service. 

 
  For these purposes internal audit shall have full and unrestricted access to all 

Council assets, systems, documents, information, employees and Members. 
 
 
2. FINANCIAL AND SERVICE PLANNING 
 
2.1 In the Summer - Overall Review 
 The Cabinet shall review the financial performance of the Council in the 

previous year, compared with the annual budget, on the basis of a report 
prepared by the Head of Financial Services in conjunction with Heads of 
Service. 

 
2.2 In the Autumn - Financial Strategy 
 The Cabinet, after consultation with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

and any appropriate organisations or bodies, shall recommend to the Council 
a Financial Strategy which will be used to determine the overall financial limits 
within which the annual budget and MTP will be prepared.  

 
2.3 In the Winter - Annual Budget and MTP  
 The Cabinet shall, after consultation with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel, recommend to the Council an annual budget for the next financial year 
and a MTP for the succeeding four years, incorporating both capital and 
revenue expenditure, which is consistent with corporate and service strategies 
and the Financial Strategy.  This budget will include the allocation of resources 
to individual services and capital projects. 

 
2.4 In the Spring - Service Financial Plans 
 Following approval of the annual budget each Head of Service shall update 

their Service Plan(s) to incorporate a Service Financial Plan, which sets out 
variations in the level of fees and charges and how the resources allocated will 
be used to meet service objectives in the forthcoming year.  

 

11



 

 
3. CONTROLLING FINANCIAL PLANS 
 
3.1 Financial Monitoring 

Heads of Service will be responsible for regular and effective monitoring and 
forecasting of the financial position relating to their services. 

 
The financial performance of each service and capital project will be reviewed 
by Chief Officers quarterly on the basis of monitoring statements prepared by 
Heads of Service in conjunction with the Head of Financial Services. 
 
The financial performance of the Council will be reviewed by Cabinet quarterly 
on the basis of monitoring statements prepared by the Head of Financial 
Services in conjunction with Heads of Service. 

 
 Heads of Service will ensure that relevant Executive Councillors are regularly 

informed of the progress in delivering approved MTP schemes. 
 
3.2 Commitments to Expenditure in Future Years  

No new commitment to expenditure beyond the current budget year may be 
made unless it; 

 

• is consistent with the achievement of the Council’s objectives and 
other relevant Strategies, and 

 

• is compatible with the Council's MTP and Financial Strategy, and, 
either  

 

• can be met from within currently approved and released resources. 
If it is to be funded from savings, these must be defined, permanent 
and not already earmarked for the achievement of the Council’s 
savings targets, or 

 

• is funded from a budget transfer in accordance with section 3.5 
below. 

 
 If the Head of Service has any concerns about their proposal meeting these 

requirements they must consult the Head of Financial Services. 
 
3.3 Grants, Cost Sharing and s106 agreements 
 Where a Head of Service proposes to take advantage of grants from other 

organisations, or some other form of cost sharing, whereby they will be able to 
deliver additional or improved services, consistent with their Service Plan, 
without creating any current or future commitment to additional net 
expenditure they may do so subject to: 

 

• the funds being dependent upon a particular project or service being 
provided but, in the case of S106 agreements, the location or some 
other aspect is at the Council’s discretion. 

 

• informing the Head of Financial Services of the details 
 

• consulting the relevant Executive Councillor(s) if the proposal 
exceeds £30,000 revenue or £50,000 capital in any one year. 

 

12



 

A Head of Service may utilise sums of money received under S106, or 
equivalent, agreements where the nature and location of the item/service is 
specified. The Head of Financial Services should be informed of the details.  
 

3.4 Approvals for additional spending with a net impact 
 Proposals for increases to the total allocated to a budget in the current year 

(Supplementary Estimates) and their impact in future years may be approved 
by the Cabinet subject to the revenue impact not exceeding £300,000 in 
aggregate in any financial year.  The impact of such approvals will be included 
in appropriate financial reports within the budget/MTP process and, once 
Council have noted these items, the Cabinet’s limit will be re-set.  A transfer of 
a sum from capital to revenue will have a revenue impact and so will count as 
a request for additional spending. 

 
 In all other cases the approval of the Council will be required.  
 
3.5 Approvals for additional spending with compensating savings 
 

Proposals that require initial funding but will then result in net surpluses or 
savings that are at least sufficient to produce a break-even position will be 
supported in principle if they are: 
 

• consistent with increasing the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives and compatible with relevant Strategies. 

 

• achievable within the Council’s Financial Strategy. 
 

• supported by a robust business case which includes a risk 
assessment. 

 

• supported by the Chief Officers’ Management Team. 
 

The Director of Commerce and Technology may approve such a scheme 
following consultation with the relevant Executive Councillor for the service 
and the Executive Councillor for finance. The relevant budget(s) and MTP will 
be appropriately adjusted. 

 
3.6 Budget Transfers 
 The Council has five main types of budgets: 
 

• Service Revenue Budgets 
Service budgets relate to the provision of services directly to the 
public and are defined as the lowest level included in the report to 
Council when the budget is approved. They include depreciation 
relating to capital assets and recharges from Management Units 
and Overhead Budgets.  

13



 

 

• Capital Scheme Budgets 
These provide the funding to complete a defined capital project and 
are likely to include some recharges from Management Units and 
Overhead Budgets. When the project is completed a charge for 
depreciation is made to the appropriate Service Revenue Budget. 

 

• Management Unit Budgets 
Management Unit budgets collect together the costs of employees, 
and their ancillary costs that relate to supporting services, before 
they are recharged to service budgets or overhead budgets based 
on the degree of benefit that is being received.  

 

• Overhead Budgets 
Overhead budgets collect together a relevant portion of 
management unit costs together with other related costs before they 
are recharged based on the degree of benefit that is being received. 
Examples include the costs of office provision or of the Printing 
Service. 

 

• Technical Budgets 
These include items such as interest on investments and the 
reversal of depreciation charges and will not be available for transfer 
to other budgets except in meeting the specific purpose for which 
they were established. 

 

Whilst most budgets will reflect a net cost, some will identify an expected 
surplus. 
 
The transfer of resources within, or between, any of the types of budgets is 
supported in principle when it will make it more likely that the Council will 
achieve its service objectives and targets or enhance value for money.  There 
do, however, need to be some limitations for effective financial management 
and to ensure that Executive Councillors, Cabinet and Council are aware of, 
and involved in, the more significant changes or where there is a financial 
implication. 
 
The limitations fall into three categories. The first relates to Technical Budgets 
and recharges and Annex A details the budget transfers that will not be 
permitted in relation to them. The second relates to budgets for pay, national 
insurance and pension contributions and Annex B explains why and how 
budget transfers relating to these items are limited. Finally, the required 
involvement of Members is defined below. 
 

 The Council’s management structure is based on Heads of Service or, in a 
few cases, Chief Officers taking responsibility for these budgets. 

 
 The Manager responsible for a budget may approve a budget transfer 

within and between the budgets they are responsible for providing it is: 
 

• Consistent with increasing, or at least maintaining the achievement 
of service objectives and compatible with the Council's Financial 
and other relevant Strategies. 

 

• Not to or from a Technical Budget or a recharge or from a pay, NI or 
pension contributions budget unless permitted by Annexs A or B. 

 

14



 

• Not from capital to revenue 
 

• Supported by their Chief Officer 
 

• Notified to the Head of Financial Services 
 

• Within the following limits if between budgets (there shall be no 
financial limits within a budget): 

 

• Revenue to revenue £50k 

• Revenue to capital £50k 

• Capital to capital £50k 
 

 Similarly, a Chief Officer may, subject to the same criteria, approve budget 
transfers between any budgets that are their responsibility or the responsibility 
of their staff. 

 
 The Chief Officers’ Management Team may, subject to the same criteria 

except for the enhanced limits shown below, approve budget transfers 
between any budgets: 

 

• Revenue to revenue £100k 

• Revenue to capital £100k 

• Capital to capital £100k 
 
 Cabinet may approve budget transfers of up to: 
 

• Revenue to revenue £250k 

• Revenue to capital £250k 

• Capital to capital £250k 
 

Any previous transfers in the same financial year relating to those budgets 
shall be aggregated for determining whether the limit has been exceeded. 

 
 In all other cases the approval of the Council will be required.  
 
3.7 Re-phasing of Expenditure 
 The re-phasing of expenditure and consequent transfer of budget between 

years may be made by the relevant Head of Service, following consultation 
with the Head of Financial Services, providing that it is consistent with service 
objectives and compatible with the Council's Financial and other relevant 
Strategies. Revenue expenditure can only, normally, be rephased to later 
years if it relates to a specific project with identified funding in the current year, 
that has been delayed for reasons outside of the control of the relevant Head 
of Service. The amount is further limited by the net underspending on that 
Head of Service’s budgets in the current year. 

 
3.8 Price Changes 
 Allocation to individual Budgets of any provision for inflation or other purposes 

will be determined by the Head of Financial Services. 
 
3.9 Project Appraisals 
 All proposals for changes to the MTP will require an explanatory appraisal, 

unless the Head of Financial Services considers that the item is of a technical 
nature. Appraisals for new and modified schemes must be made available to 

15



 

Members, via the Council’s intranet, by the date on which the related reports 
are circulated.  

  
 
4. CASH AND CREDIT MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 Banking 
 The Director of Commerce and Technology is responsible for all Council 

banking arrangements and shall maintain (an) account(s) with (an) appropriate 
bank(s) with a credit rating equivalent to ‘Long Term AA’ or better in the data 
published by Fitch IBCA.  All transactions involving income or expenditure 
shall be dealt with through the Council's bank account(s). 

 
4.2 Income 
 All employees receiving money (including cash, cheques, credit card 

payments etc.) must comply with the relevant procedures issued by the Head 
of Customer Services to ensure that the sums are properly recorded, 
receipted and banked. 

 
 The Head of Financial Services shall manage a debt collection service on 

behalf of the Council and all sums due must be registered by raising an 
invoice on the Council's Financial Management System or some other system 
or procedure approved by the Head of Financial Services. 

 
4.3 Loans 
 All borrowing will be undertaken by the Head of Financial Services in 

accordance with the Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Local 
Authorities and the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, 
both published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA), and the Council’s Treasury Management Policy and Annual Strategy 
Statement.  

 
 A report shall be submitted to the Cabinet prior to the start of each financial 

year so that it can recommend to the Council the maximum borrowing limits 
for the forthcoming financial year. 

 
4.4 Investments 
 Investments shall be made by the Head of Financial Services in accordance 

with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, Government 
guidance on Local Government Investments, the Council's Treasury 
Management Policy and Annual Strategy Statement, either directly or by 
utilising external fund managers. 

 
 Periodic reports shall be submitted to the Cabinet on Treasury Management 

and by 31st July each year an annual report shall be submitted on activities in 
the previous financial year. 

 
4.5 Payments 
 Payments due to external suppliers of goods and services must be made 

through the Council's financial management system and in accordance with 
the payments procedures of that system, as determined by the Head of 
Financial Services. Payments shall be made direct to the supplier’s bank 
account wherever this is practical. 

 

16



 

 
5. ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES 
 
5.1 The Council will follow the best practice guidance contained in the Accounting 

Code of Practice and other relevant publications produced by CIPFA in the 
preparation and maintenance of its accounts. 

 
5.2 Statement of Accounts 
 The annual Statement of Accounts shall be presented to the Corporate 

Governance Panel for approval within the prescribed statutory timescale. 
 
5.3 Records 
 Each Head of Service is responsible for maintaining records of financial 

transactions and commitments and employee time, in forms agreed with the 
Head of Financial Services, and for ensuring that all financial transactions are 
properly recorded in the appropriate financial period and to an appropriate 
account within the Council’s Financial Management System. 

 
5.4 Retention of Documents 
 Documents required for the verification of accounts, including invoices, shall 

be retained in a retrievable format for any statutory period, or otherwise for six 
years or such other time that is specified by the Head of Financial Services.  

 
5.5 Contingent Liabilities 
 Any Officer who is aware of a material and outstanding contingent liability shall 

notify the Head of Financial Services, who shall include details in the Council's 
accounts or in a Letter of Representation to be presented to the Council's 
external auditors in respect of those accounts. 

 
5.6 Stock 
 Where a formal stock account is used in connection with any service, the 

relevant Head of Service shall ensure that a certified stock-take is carried out 
in the last week of March each year, and that records of receipt and issue of 
all stock are maintained throughout the year in a manner agreed with the 
Head of Financial Services. 

 
5.7 Insurance 
 The Head of Financial Services shall obtain insurance to protect the Council or 

minimise its potential losses from risks including those to employees, property, 
equipment and cash.  Any decision not to insure significant risks must be 
based on a detailed risk assessment. 

 
5.8 Write-off of Irrecoverable Debts 
 The Head of Customer Services, or in his/her absence the Head of Financial 

Services, is authorised to write-off debts with an individual value of up to 
£4,000, or of a greater amount after consultation with the Executive Councillor 
responsible for finance, having taken appropriate steps to satisfy 
himself/herself that the debts are irrecoverable or cannot be recovered without 
incurring disproportionate costs. 

 
 A summary report detailing debts written-off shall be submitted to the Cabinet 

quarterly. 
 

17



 

 
6. ASSETS 
 
6.1 Definition 
 An asset is an item of land, building, road or other infrastructure, vehicle or 

plant, equipment, furniture and fittings or information and communications 
technology, (hardware and software) with a life exceeding one year. 

 
6.2 Capital Expenditure 
 The purchase or improvement of any asset will normally be treated as capital 

expenditure.  However, expenditure of less than £10,000, or £5,000 in the 
case of vehicles, plant and equipment, will not normally be treated as capital 
expenditure unless the Head of Financial Services considers it is in the 
Council’s interests to do so. 

 
6.3 Asset Register 
 The Head of Legal and Estates will, after consultation with the Head of 

Financial Services, determine the procedures for maintaining the Asset 
Register, including the information that needs to be recorded. Heads of 
Service will provide the prescribed information for all relevant assets relating 
to their services in accordance with those procedures.  

 
6.4 Acquisition 
 The purchase of assets must be in accordance with the procedures specified 

in the Council’s Code of Procurement, having regard to the value of the asset. 
 
 The relevant Head of Service shall inform the Head of Financial Services 

within 10 working days of the acquisition of an asset which meets the 
definition for capital expenditure. 

 
6.5 Leases 
 Finance and operating leases are to be used only if they are in the Council's 

financial interest and with the approval of the Head of Financial Services. 
 
6.6 Control of Assets 
 Each Head of Service is responsible for ensuring that the assets relating to 

their services are properly safeguarded, managed and maintained, and used 
only to achieve the Council’s objectives. This will include establishing and 
maintaining appropriate security, control systems and records.  They will need 
to consult relevant officers in relation to specialist items and, where vehicles 
are concerned, the officer holding the Council’s Operating Certificate who has 
specific statutory responsibilities. 

 
6.7 Disposal of Assets 
 The sale of assets must be in accordance with the procedures specified in the 

Council’s Code of Procurement, having regard to the current value of the 
asset. 

 
 The relevant Head of Service shall inform the Head of Financial Services 

within 10 working days of any disposal of an asset included in the Asset 
Register. 

 
6.8 Valuations 
 Assets will be re-valued at five yearly intervals by an appropriately qualified 

person according to the type of asset.  Where appropriate, interim valuations 
will be recorded on the Asset Register by reference to a suitable index. 

18



 

 ANNEX A 
 
 
TECHNICAL BUDGETS 
 
The following budgets cannot be reduced by officers in order to permit extra 
expenditure on another budget except where this is part of the specific purpose for 
which they were established.  
 
 

• Any contingency, unless it complies with the approved rules for the 
use of the general contingency or is an adjustment to reflect the 
technical application of the contingency (e.g. allocation of inflation 
from an inflation contingency) 

 

• Capital charges 
 

• Commutation Transfer 
 

• Pension Liabilities (as opposed to pension contributions) 
 

• Interest paid 
 

• Interest received 
 

• Any recharge or allocation from a management unit or overhead 
account. 

19



 

ANNEX B 
 

BUDGETS FOR PAY  
(Pay is deemed to include, NI and Pension Contributions for the purpose of this 
annex) 
 
1. The Council does not provide for a 100% of the costs of its employees. This is 

because experience shows that it is generally impossible to avoid gaps when 
people leave and are replaced. It is also common for the new employees to be on 
a lower point in the grade than the person who left. 

 
2. Obviously it is unlikely that each pay budget will be equally affected in any 

particular year and therefore, to simplify budget monitoring, each pay budget 
includes 100% of employee costs but there is a negative, centrally held, 
contingency that represents the saving that the Council’s overall budget is based 
on. This contingency is based on 2.5% of the pay for most services less a sum 
for recruitment costs (advertising and interview expenses). 

 
3. Therefore no use of savings, virement or rephasing relating to a pay budget, 

whether temporary or permanent, will be permitted unless this annex is complied 
with. 

 
Employees Leaving 
4. In order to maximise the likelihood of achieving this saving a Head of Service 

must, whenever an employee gives their notice, determine whether: 
a. the post is kept vacant for a period before a decision is made, 
b. the post can be deleted, 
c. a restructuring should be proposed, 
d. the post should be filled at the end of a defined period, 
e. it should be filled as soon as possible, 
f. it should be filled as soon as possible and temporary employees or 

consultants are engaged to provide cover in the meantime. 
 
5. In deciding on which option to take the Head of Service should take appropriate 

HR and financial advice. The decision must include consideration of any need for 
temporary or permanent regradings, acting up allowances, honoraria, employees 
or consultants. Allowance must also be made for an appropriate saving, to help 
achieve the contingency budget, as determined by the Head of Financial 
Services. 

 
6. Heads of Service will also need to liaise with HR to arrange recruitment 

advertising and ensure that the recruitment arrangements comply with the 
process agreed by Employment Panel. 

 
Other Adjustments and Virement 
7. If any other proposal is made to transfer (in accordance with paragraph 3.6) or 

rephase (in accordance with paragraph 3.7) a pay budget, a budget reduction, as 
determined by the Head of Financial Services, shall be made in order to allow the 
contingency budget to be reduced. 

20



 

 
Exceptions 
8. If the Head of Service can demonstrate to their Director the critical nature of 

maintaining immediate service cover in certain key work areas then the 
requirements of paragraph 4 above will not apply and the saving/budget 
reduction may be reduced or nil. Examples where this might apply would be if 
vacancies would result in insufficient employees with the necessary abilities or 
skills to run refuse rounds or to safely open swimming pools. Agency, or 
equivalent employees, must be available with the necessary skills and/or abilities. 

 
9. If the Head of Service can demonstrate that a critical backlog of work has 

resulted from continuing vacancies such that the service to the public is seriously 
compromised or net additional costs would become unavoidable the 
saving/budget reduction may be reduced. Examples where this might apply 
would be dealing with benefit applications or collecting council tax income. 
Agency, or equivalent employees, must be available with the necessary skills 
and/or abilities. 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL            26TH MARCH 2008 
  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK AND 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

(Report by the Head of Policy & Strategic Services) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is two fold; firstly to seek the Panel’s  

endorsement of an assurance framework to support good 
governance, particularly the governance statement; and secondly to 
report on action taken to date in respect of issues identified in the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 In September 2007 the Panel adopted a revised Code of 

Governance which sets out and describes the way in which the 
Council carries out its functions and complies with the principles of 
openness, integrity and accountability.  The principles in the Code 
apply to elected Members and employees alike, and they are 
reflected in the Council’s working procedures and processes in the 
interests of establishing and maintaining public confidence. 

 
2.2 To ensure that the Council is meeting the code and delivering good 

governance an annual cycle is in place which includes: 
 

• an annual review of governance arrangements; 

• preparation of an Annual Governance Statement (AGS); 

• implementation of an action plan associated with the AGS; 

• a half yearly review of progress against the action plan; and 

• continued reference to systems and reporting as necessary to 
provide assurance and support for good governance. 

 
2.3  This cycle is designed to reflect good practice in delivering a 

framework of assurance for Members and employees in terms of 
governance arrangements and to help to ensure accountability and 
transparency for local people and other stakeholders such as the 
Council’s external auditors and Government inspectors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

½ Yearly 
Review  

Annual 
Review 

 
Periodic Reports as necessary arising  
from systems of assurance 

 
Implementation of 
Action Plan 
 

                
Annual 

Governance 
Statement 

Agenda Item 4

23



3. ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK 
 
3.1 Appendix A sets out - against the six principles of the Code of 

Governance, the supporting principles and specific requirements - 
the sources of assurance which support the Council’s governance 
arrangements.   

 
3.2 As the risk register update report elsewhere on the agenda explains, 

a great deal of work has been undertaken on making sure that the 
risk register is robust. The mapping of the Council’s strategic 
objectives to the risks identified is underway and is expected to be 
completed by August 2008.  

 
3.3 The risk software is being updated with details of the current internal 

and external sources of assurance and the assurance level for each 
risk and risk control. An example is provided at Annex B.  This 
information will also support the Council’s governance arrangements.  

 
4. HALF YEARLY REVIEW OF GOVERNANCE ACTION PLAN 
 
4.1 At the September meeting the Panel considered the Annual 

Governance Statement which identified issues to be addressed over 
the next year to help improve further the Councils governance 
arrangements.  Annex C identifies these issues and progress to date. 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 The Panel are recommended to: 
 
 (a) endorse the assurance framework as described in section 3 

and associated appendices; and 

 (b) note progress to date in the achievement of the action plan 
supporting the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Code of Governance 
Annual Governance Statement 

 
 

Contact Officer:         Howard Thackray, Policy & Research Manager 
        (((( 01480 388035 

 

24



F
o

c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 o
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
; 

a
n

d
 c

re
a
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 a

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

s
h

ir
e
 

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

S
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

E
x
e
rc
is
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 b
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
rl
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 a
n
d
 v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
c
it
iz
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 a
n
d
 

v
is
io
n
. 

G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
  

 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
 a
n
d
 i
ts
  
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 p
a
n
e
ls
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 c
o
d
e
. 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rp
in
n
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

c
o
m
m
o
n
 v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
is
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 

a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
“H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
”.
 

  

 
P
u
b
lis
h
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
it
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 P
la
n
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
u
s
e
rs
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
o
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
r 
b
y
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
. 

 

D
e
c
id
e
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
rs
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

 G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 -
 H
ig
h
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
la
n
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
s
. 

M
e
d
iu
m
-t
e
rm
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 

 
P
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

a
n
d
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 f
a
ilu
re
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 

C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
. 

 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
k
e
s
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 

o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
ta
x
 p
a
y
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

 

D
e
c
id
e
 h
o
w
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

h
a
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
o
lic
ie
s
, 

p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 

 

U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
 

25



M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 a

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
rl

y
 d

e
fi

n
e
d

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
s
 

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
/s

o
u

rc
e
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 b
e
in
g
 c
le
a
r 

a
b
o
u
t 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 e
x
is
ts
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
to
 

a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
. 

 

S
e
t 
o
u
t 
a
 c
le
a
r 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
  

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 p
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
is
 i
n
to
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 

  

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
  

 R
e
c
o
rd
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
. 

 

 
S
e
t 
o
u
t 
a
 c
le
a
r 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
, 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 a
n
d
 o
f 
s
e
n
io
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
. 

R
o
le
 o
f 
o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 (
P
a
rt
 2
 A
rt
ic
le
 6
).
 

 “S
ig
n
p
o
s
t’
 –
 a
 g
u
id
e
 t
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
’ 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 
D
e
te
rm
in
e
 a
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
d
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
s
e
rv
e
 p
o
w
e
rs
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

a
 f
o
rm
a
l 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 m
a
tt
e
rs
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 

re
s
e
rv
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

ta
k
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
it
 i
s
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
D
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

 

 
M
a
k
e
 a
 c
h
ie
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
r 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
c
h
ie
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
d
 o
f 
p
a
id
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

le
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
h
ie
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 (
o
r 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t)
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
s
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 s
h
a
re
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

ro
le
s
 a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

 

T
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

 
M
a
k
e
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
(t
h
e
 S
1
5
1
 o
ff
ic
e
r)
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 o
n
 a
ll 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
m
a
tt
e
rs
, 
fo
r 
k
e
e
p
in
g
 p
ro
p
e
r 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
C
h
ie
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

 

26



fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
, 
a
n
d
 

fo
r 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 

in
te
rn
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l.
 

 
M
a
k
e
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
(t
h
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r)
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 

a
g
re
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
re
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 s
ta
tu
te
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
lie
d
 

w
it
h
. 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 a
re
 c
le
a
r 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 k
n
o
w
s
 w
h
a
t 
to
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
th
e
r.
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
s
. 

 

P
ro
to
c
o
l 
o
n
 M
e
m
b
e
r/
E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

 

 
S
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 t
e
rm
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 

re
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
a
n
e
l 
(i
f 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
).
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
s
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

S
c
h
e
m
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
R
e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 P
a
n
e
l 

e
v
e
ry
 4
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
/a
p
p
ra
is
a
l.
 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 e
x
is
t 
to
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
 v
is
io
n
, 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

p
la
n
s
, 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
k
e
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 c
le
a
rl
y
 a
rt
ic
u
la
te
d
 

a
n
d
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
d
. 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 
W
h
e
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 c
le
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 r
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 a
n
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

W
h
e
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
: 

•
 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 c
la
ri
ty
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 l
e
g
a
l 

s
ta
tu
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
o
th
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 c
le
a
r 
to
 a
ll 
o
th
e
r 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 t
o
 b
in
d
 

th
e
ir
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
s
. 

P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 u

p
h

o
ld

in
g

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

 

27



S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
/s

o
u

rc
e
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 b
y
 b
e
h
a
v
in
g
 i
n
 w
a
y
s
 

th
a
t 
e
x
e
m
p
lif
y
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

s
e
ts
 a
 t
o
n
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 c
lim
a
te
 o
f 
o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 -
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
n
d
u
c
t 

 L
a
s
t 
re
v
ie
w
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 b
y
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

P
a
n
e
l.
 

 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
, 

o
f 
w
o
rk
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
re
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
. 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
’/
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
’ 
c
o
d
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

 

 
P
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 n
o
t 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 p
re
ju
d
ic
e
, 
b
ia
s
 o
r 
c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
 o
f 

in
te
re
s
t 
in
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
te
 i
n
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

R
e
g
is
te
r 
h
e
ld
 b
y
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r.
  
A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
m
in
d
e
rs
 

is
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

 
 

N
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
is
te
rs
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 

re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 C
o
d
e
. 
 P
ro
 f
o
rm
a
s
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t.
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
v
a
lu
e
s
 a
re
 p
u
t 

in
to
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 s
h
a
re
d
 v
a
lu
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 v
a
lu
e
s
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 p
u
b
lic
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
it
h
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
, 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
, 

th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 

C
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t.
 

 

 
P
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
fo
rm
it
y
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 e
th
ic
a
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 

a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

C
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t.
 

 

 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

 
U
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
h
a
re
d
 v
a
lu
e
s
 t
o
 

a
c
t 
a
s
 a
 g
u
id
e
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 

a
s
 a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
  
tr
u
s
ti
n
g
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
K
e
y
 v
a
lu
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
  

 
In
 p
u
rs
u
in
g
 t
h
e
 v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
a
g
re
e
 a
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

28



s
e
t 
o
f 
v
a
lu
e
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
w
h
ic
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 j
u
d
g
e
d
. 
S
u
c
h
 v
a
lu
e
s
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 b
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
’ 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
b
o
th
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 a
n
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

 T
a
k
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g

in
g

 r
is

k
 

 B
e
in
g
 r
ig
o
ro
u
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 l
is
te
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
. 

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
is
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
. 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
rt
 5
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
- 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
a
n
d
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 r
u
le
s
 &
 r
e
c
o
rd
 o
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 

 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 o
p
e
n
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 f
o
r 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
ra
ti
o
n
a
le
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
re
 b
a
s
e
d
. 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 (
P
a
rt
 5
) 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
  

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
u
le
s
 R
e
c
o
rd
 o
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
  

 

 
P
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
 o
f 

in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
te
 i
n
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
’ 
a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
n
d
u
c
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

 

 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
u
d
it
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 (
o
r 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t)
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
m
a
k
e
 o
th
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
s
u
c
h
 a
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

  

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 

w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 

C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
. 

H
a
v
in
g
 g
o
o
d
-q
u
a
lit
y
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 a
re
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
a
n
ts
/n
e
e
d
s
. 

 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 m
a
k
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
r 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
is
 f
it
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 –
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t,
 t
im
e
ly
 a
n
d
 g
iv
e
s
 c
le
a
r 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

S
k
ill
s
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
p
e
r 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 

m
a
tt
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 w
e
ll 
in
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
e
m
p
la
te
. 

 R
e
c
o
rd
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
. 

29



d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
. 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
ri
s
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 

th
e
 c
u
lt
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
, 
w
it
h
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 j
o
b
s
. 

R
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r.
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

. 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
w
h
is
tl
e
-

b
lo
w
in
g
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

th
o
s
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 o
r 
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

W
h
is
tl
e
b
lo
w
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

U
s
in
g
 l
e
g
a
l 
p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
it
iz
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
. 

 

A
c
ti
v
e
ly
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 l
im
it
s
 o
f 
la
w
fu
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
m
 b
y
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
th
e
 u
lt
ra
 v
ir
e
s
 

d
o
c
tr
in
e
 b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 s
tr
iv
e
 t
o
 u
ti
lis
e
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 

 
R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 l
im
it
s
 o
f 
la
w
fu
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

o
b
s
e
rv
e
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 

o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b
y
 p
u
b
lic
 l
a
w
. 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 

 
O
b
s
e
rv
e
 a
ll 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

p
la
c
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
m
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
la
w
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
to
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 l
a
w
 –
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
, 

le
g
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 –
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 

 3
.6

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
p

a
c
it

y
 a

n
d

 c
a
p

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

s
k
ill
s
, 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
o
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 

ro
le
s
 a
re
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
. 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 T
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
a
s
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 g
ro
u
p
. 

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
k
ill
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
y
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
o
s
e
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 r
o
le
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
. 

 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
s
y
s
te
m
. 

 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
k
ill
s
 o
n
 a
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
 w
h
e
n
 o
u
ts
id
e
 e
x
p
e
rt
 a
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 f
o
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

 

30



 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

fo
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
s
 

a
 w
h
o
le
 a
n
d
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
in
g
 

a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t,
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
a
im
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 a
n
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 n
e
w
 t
a
le
n
t 
fo
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 

o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
’ 
s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
 

b
a
la
n
c
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l.
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
, 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

  

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
re
e
r 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
. 

 . 

 3
.7

 E
n

g
a
g

in
g

 w
it

h
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

p
u

b
li

c
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

 E
x
e
rc
is
in
g
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
lo
c
a
l 

in
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
s
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
. 

 

•
 
M
a
k
e
 c
le
a
r 
to
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
, 
a
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 w
h
o
m
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
w
h
a
t.
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 t
o
 w
h
o
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 

 
•
 
P
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
f 

th
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 

O
 &
 S
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
n
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 

T
a
k
in
g
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

d
ia
lo
g
u
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
, 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
r 
b
y
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 c
le
a
r 
c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 o
p
e
ra
te
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 
•
 
H
o
ld
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 i
n
 p
u
b
lic
 u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 

g
o
o
d
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lit
y
 

T
e
rm
s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 m
in
u
te
s
, 
e
tc
. 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 h
a
v
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

31



e
x
p
lic
it
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 

c
o
m
p
e
ti
n
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
s
. 

 

 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 c
le
a
r 
p
o
lic
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 

is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
lly
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 o
n
 

o
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 t
o
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 w
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

R
e
s
u
lt
. 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 
O
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
, 
p
u
b
lis
h
 a
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 p
la
n
 

g
iv
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 v
is
io
n
, 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
it
s
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
, 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
  

 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
  

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 a
 w
h
o
le
 i
s
 

o
p
e
n
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 h
a
s
 

m
a
d
e
 a
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 i
n
 a
ll 
it
s
 d
e
a
lin
g
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lit
y
 i
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 

w
h
e
re
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
. 

 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 a
rt
ic
le
 3
 p
a
rt
 2
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 r
u
le
s
 

  

32



A
n

n
e

x
 B

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
 :

 T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
s

y
s

te
m

s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e

s

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

H
R

 a
n

d
 P

a
y
ro

ll
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

D
a

te
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

L
e

v
e

l
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

  
  

  
  

  
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

  
  

  
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 S
o

u
rc

e
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 G

iv
e

n
 

 
  

T
y
p

e
 

R
is

k
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
  

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
R

is
k
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

(R
L
 x

 R
I)

 

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
R

is
k

R
e

f

 1
6

 
Y

e
s

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
 

(A
u

d
it
 /

 3
rd

 p
a

rt
y
)

6
/3

/0
8

A
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 

/C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 i
s
 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 o

r 
k
ill

e
d

 d
u

e
 t
o
 t

h
e

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

n
o

t 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 i
ts

 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 w

it
h

 e
it
h

e
r 

a
 

s
a

fe
 w

o
rk

in
g

 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t
a

n
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 t

ra
in

in
g

 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
a

s
k
s
 

th
a

t 
it
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 a
ll 

tr
a

in
e

d
 

in
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 

 5
 

2
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
v
ie

w
A

d
e

q
u

a
te

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 -

 r
e

la
te

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
s

a
re

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

a
n

d

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
v
ie

w
Y

e
s

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

(A
u

d
it
 /

 3
rd

 p
a

rt
y
)

A
d

e
q

u
a

te
6

/3
/0

8

A
d

e
q

u
a

te
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
v
ie

w
Y

e
s

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

(A
u

d
it
 /

 3
rd

 p
a

rt
y
)

6
/3

/0
8

In
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
n

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

S
a

fe
ty

D
if
fe

re
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
,

ri
s
k

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts

N
o

te
s
:

 
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 T
y
p

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 :

 I
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 

(A
u

d
it
 /

 3
rd

 P
a

rt
y
) 

o
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 L
e

v
e

ls
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
: 

 
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
 

A
d

e
q

u
a

te
 

 
L

im
it
e

d
 

 
 N

o
n

e
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



    Is
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 A
G
S
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

 
A
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
a
n
d
 a
 

re
v
is
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 

A
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
H
D
C
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
ri
s
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 a
 c
lo
s
e
r 
in
te
re
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e
a
rl
ie
r 
in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
n
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 g
a
in
s
 

 
P
la
n
n
e
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 d
e
d
u
c
te
d
 f
ro
m
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 

m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
e
d
 i
n
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 
T
h
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
a
rg
e
t 
b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 i
s
 £
1
.5
4
M
, 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
0
6
/0
7
 £
1
.4
5
M
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
m
a
in
in
g
 £
8
6
k
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
p
la
n
a
to
ry
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

re
p
o
rt
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
u
th
o
rs
 t
o
 c
e
rt
if
y
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
D
iv
is
io
n
a
l 
te
a
m
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 

h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
re
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 i
n
 T
e
a
m
 

N
e
w
s
 t
o
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
il
e
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 m
a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 

 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
C
T
P
) 
in
 p
la
c
e
, 
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l/
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro
m
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
s
. 
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
M
T
P
 b
id
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
T
P
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

to
 c
a
te
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
k
ill
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 w
h
ile
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 n
e
w
 

ru
le
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
 T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
s
 r
e
lin
q
u
is
h
e
d
 h
is
 

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 n
o
w
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

n
e
w
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 
A
 n
e
w
 r
o
le
 o
f 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
re
a
te
d
 w
h
ic
h
 a
s
s
u
m
e
s
 t
h
e
 d
iv
is
io
n
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

o
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

in
 F
e
b
 0
8
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C
 

35



Is
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 A
G
S
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

o
 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 

 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
y
s
te
m
 o
f 

In
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 

%
a
g
e
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
lly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 &
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
p
in
io
n
 –
 l
im
it
e
d
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 
 

 

P
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 

fa
il
u
re
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 

 

T
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
h
ie
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

(o
r 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t)
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
s
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 s
h
a
re
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
ro
le
s
 a
n
d
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

     

36



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL    26TH MARCH 2008 
 
 

DATA QUALITY: AUDITORS REPORT 2006/ 07 
(Report by the Head of Policy and Strategic Services) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to present to the Panel an Auditor’s Report on the 

Council’s Data Quality arrangements.  
 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The quality of data is an important factor in the accuracy of judgments about the 

Council’s systems of governance and performance management. This is 
recognized both by the Council, which has adopted a strategy to maintain and 
improve the quality of data, and by external assessors such as the Audit 
Commission.  

 
2.2 The Council’s Data Quality Strategy has a number of purposes and the following 

objectives: 
 

• Ensure that information in use is of high quality, consistent, timely,  
       comprehensive and held securely and confidentially. 

• Put in place arrangements at senior level to secure the quality of data that 
we use to manage our service and demonstrate our performance.  

• Make clear what is expected from employees and contractors in terms of 
the standards of data quality. 

• Put in place systems, policies and procedures to enable the highest 
possible data quality, particularly where information is shared with 
partners. 

• Ensure that we put in place the right resources, and in particular, have the 
right people with the right skills, to ensure we have timely and accurate 
performance information. 

• Ensure that we have the right controls to ensure that the Council meets 
what is expected of us. 

 
2.3 Data quality is one of the key lines of enquiry (KLOE) in the Use of Resources 

Assessment which is undertaken by our external auditors – Grant Thornton – on 
behalf of the Audit Commission. This part of the assessment focuses on the 
national performance indicators, which are used to judge our relative 
performance under the current Comprehensive Performance Assessment and 
will become a key feature of the new Comprehensive Area Assessment.  

 
 

Agenda Item 5a

37



2.4 Currently considerable weight is attached to published performance indicators, 
for example, in the Direction of Travel Statement which forms part of the Annual 
Audit and Inspection Letter to be considered as a separate item on the Panel’s 
agenda. 

 
2.5 The Auditor’s work on data quality and performance information supports this 

reliance on performance indicators in a variety of assessments and this is the 
second year in which work on data quality has been undertaken. The attached 
report has been prepared by the Auditor following extensive discussion with 
Officers of the Council. The recommendations, management response and 
allocation of responsibility for actions under the plan have been jointly agreed. 
Monitoring of achievement against this plan will be reported both through the 
Council’s Comprehensive Performance Monitoring Framework and in specific 
reports to the Panel, in accordance with the ‘Assurance Framework’ which the 
Council has adopted to support governance arrangements. 

 
2.6 A representative of the Council’s Auditor will be available at the meeting to 

present their report and comment on any issues raised by members of the Panel. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The panel is requested to note the Auditor’s report on data quality for 2006/07 

and endorse the management action set out in response to it. 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
HDC Data Quality Strategy 
Report by Grant Thornton, Data Quality Audit Report 2006/07 March 2008 
 
 

 

Contact  officer:         Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy & Strategic Services 
        (((( 01480 388005 

38



 

 H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 

D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ud
it 

R
ep

or
t 2

00
6/

07
 

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

    

39



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

H
u
n

ti
n

gd
o
n

sh
ir

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

P
at

h
fi

n
d

er
 H

o
us

e 

St
 M

ar
y'

s 
St

re
et

 

H
u
n

ti
n

gd
o
n

  

C
am

b
ri

d
ge

sh
ir

e 
P

E
29

 3
T

N
 

  
11

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

D
ea

r 
Si

rs
 

H
U

N
T

IN
G

D
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 -

 D
A

T
A

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 A
U

D
IT

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
00

6/
07

  

T
h

is
 D

at
a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

A
u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

00
6/

07
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 r

ec
o

rd
 t

h
e 

ke
y 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

au
d

it
.  

W
e 

h
av

e 
d

is
cu

ss
ed

 o
ur

 f
in

d
in

gs
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 D
at

a 
Q

u
al

it
y 

L
ea

d
, H

o
w

ar
d

 T
h

ac
kr

ay
, a

lt
h

o
u
gh

 t
h

e 
vi

ew
s 

ex
p

re
ss

ed
 a

re
 t

h
o
se

 o
f 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

.  
T

h
e 

sc
o

p
e 

an
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 a
re

 f
ur

th
er

 

d
et

ai
le

d
 in

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

. 

W
e 

w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 t
ak

e 
th

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

un
it

y 
to

 t
h

an
k 

th
e 

D
at

a 
Q

u
al

it
y 

T
ea

m
 a

n
d
 o

th
er

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 d

ir
ec

to
rs

 f
o

r 
th

e 
co

-o
p

er
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 a

ff
o
rd

ed
 t

o
 u

s 
d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

co
u
rs

e 
o
f 

o
ur

 a
u
d
it

. 

Y
o

u
rs

 f
ai

th
fu

lly
 

   G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
 

40



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

   C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
P

a
g

e 

1
B

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

1

2
S

co
p

e 
a
n

d
 O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

3

3
C

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s 

4

4
M

a
n

a
g

em
en

t 
A

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 (
S

ta
g

e 
1)

 
6

5
A

n
a
ly

ti
ca

l 
R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
ta

g
e 

2)
 

12

6
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 S

p
o

t 
C

h
ec

k
s 

(S
ta

g
e 

3)
 

13

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
 A

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 

 

41



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 1

1 
B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 

P
u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s 

ar
e 

ac
co

u
n

ta
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
u
b

lic
 m

o
n

ey
 t

h
ey

 s
p

en
d

: t
h

ey
 m

u
st

 

m
an

ag
e 

co
m

p
et

in
g 

cl
ai

m
s 

o
n

 r
es

o
ur

ce
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s 

th
ey

 s
er

ve
, a

n
d
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

. T
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 a
n

d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

th
ey

 u
se

 t
o

 a
cc

o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

, b
o

th
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 a
n

d
 e

xt
er

n
al

ly
, t

o
 t

h
ei

r 

u
se

rs
, p

ar
tn

er
s,

 c
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
er

s,
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 a
n

d
 r

eg
u
la

to
rs

, m
u
st

 

b
e 

ap
p

ro
p
ri

at
e 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

s,
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
ac

cu
ra

cy
, r

el
ia

b
ili

ty
 

an
d

 c
o

n
si

st
en

cy
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
. 

C
o

n
si

d
er

ab
le

 w
ei

gh
t 

is
 a

tt
ac

h
ed

 t
o

 p
u
b

lis
h

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

d
ic

at
o

rs
 a

s 
th

e 

b
as

is
 f

o
r 

re
d
u
ci

n
g 

th
e 

b
u
rd

en
 o

f 
re

gu
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
w

ar
d
in

g 
fr

ee
d

o
m

s 
an

d
 

fl
ex

ib
ili

ti
es

. T
h

is
 h

as
 m

ad
e 

re
lia

b
le

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

, a
n

d
 t

h
e 

qu
al

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

u
n

d
er

ly
in

g 
d

at
a,

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

tl
y 

m
o

re
 im

p
o

rt
an

t.
 R

eg
u
la

to
rs

 a
n

d
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
as

su
re

d
 t

h
at

 r
ep

o
rt

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

ac
tu

al
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. T
h

is
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

co
n

fi
d

en
ce

 t
h

at
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 f
o

cu
si

n
g 

o
n

 t
h

e 
ke

y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t.

 

A
u
d

it
o

rs
’ w

o
rk

 o
n

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

an
d

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 s
up

p
o
rt

s 
th

e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 r

el
ia

n
ce

 o
n

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
d

ic
at

o
rs

 in
 it

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
P

A
).

 T
h

is
 d

el
iv

er
s 

th
e 

co
m

m
it

m
en

t 

to
 r

ed
u
ce

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

tl
y 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
. 

    In
tr

o
d
u
ci

n
g 

th
e 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 a
re

a 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
(C

A
A

) 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 2

00
9 

w
ill

 m
ak

e 
re

lia
b

le
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 e

ve
n

 m
o
re

 im
p

o
rt

an
t.

 T
h

e 
C

A
A

 

w
ill

 p
la

ce
 g

re
at

er
 e

m
p

h
as

is
 o

n
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 t

h
at

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
al

 t
o

 r
is

k.
 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e 
re

q
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 u

se
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 r

es
h
ap

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, a

n
d

 t
o

 

ac
co

u
n

t 
to

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 f

o
r 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 

T
h

e 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 
th

e 
q
u
al

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

d
at

a 
u
n
d

er
p

in
n

in
g 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 c
an

 o
n

ly
 r

es
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
o

d
ie

s 
th

at
 c

o
lle

ct
 a

n
d

 u
se

 t
h

e 

d
at

a.
 P

ro
d

u
ci

n
g 

d
at

a 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 f
it

 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

 s
h

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e 
an

 e
n

d
 in

 it
se

lf
, b

u
t 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

a 
b

o
d
y'

s 
o
p

er
at

io
n

al
, p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

. O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

th
at

 p
u
t 

d
at

a 
q
ua

lit
y 

at
 t

h
e 

h
ea

rt
 o

f 

th
ei

r 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
m

o
st

 li
ke

ly
 t

o
 b

e 
ac

ti
ve

ly
 m

an
ag

in
g 

d
at

a 
in

 t
h

ei
r 

d
ay

-t
o

-d
ay

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d
 t

u
rn

in
g 

th
at

 d
at

a 
in

to
 r

el
ia

b
le

 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

. 

T
h

is
 is

 t
h

e 
se

co
n

d
 y

ea
r 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e 
h

av
e 

u
n

d
er

ta
ke

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

in
 

lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t.
 O

u
r 

w
o
rk

 is
 c

o
m

p
le

m
en

te
d

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
’s

 

p
ap

er
, I

m
p

ro
vi

n
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g:
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

b
et

te
r 

q
u
al

it
y 

d
at

a.
T

h
is

 p
ap

er
 s

et
s 

o
u
t 

st
an

d
ar

d
s,

 f
o
r 

ad
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
n

 a
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 b

as
is

, 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

in
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y.

 

42



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 2

T
h

e 
ex

p
ec

te
d

 im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

o
ur

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

is
 t

h
at

 it
 w

ill
 d

ri
ve

 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
in

 t
h

e 
q
u
al

it
y 

o
f 

lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
, 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 g

re
at

er
 c

o
n
fi

d
en

ce
 in

 t
h

e 
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g 

d
at

a 
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

43



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 3

2 
S

co
pe

 a
nd

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n

 h
as

 d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
 t

h
re

e-
st

ag
e 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 t

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

co
m

p
ri

si
n

g:
 

S
ta

g
e

 1
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
p

ro
p

e
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

d
a

ta
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
s
e

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

p
p

lie
d

 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
u
d

it
o

r'
s
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n
c
il'

s
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 
s
e

c
u

re
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n

e
y
 (

th
e

 V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
).

 

S
ta

g
e

 2
 

A
n

a
ly

ti
c

a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 

A
n

 a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
 B

V
P

I 
a

n
d

 n
o
n

-B
V

P
I 

d
a
ta

, 
a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
a
m

p
le

 f
o

r 
te

s
ti
n

g
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

S
ta

g
e

 3
 

D
a

ta
 q

u
a

li
ty

 s
p

o
t 

c
h

e
c

k
s

 
In

-d
e

p
th

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
 P

Is
, 

a
ll 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 
c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 a

 l
is

t 
o

f 
s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 B

V
P

Is
 a

n
d

 n
o
n

-B
V

P
Is

 u
s
e
d

 
in

 C
P

A
, 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 

d
a

ta
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

, 
ti
m

e
ly

 a
n
d

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 

 
 

  

    A
ll 

th
re

e 
st

ag
es

 o
f 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 c

ar
ri

ed
 o

u
t 

at
 H

u
n

ti
n

gd
o
n

sh
ir

e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n

ci
l (

'th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l')

. 

 

44



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 4

3 
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
 

S
ta

g
e

 1
 –

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

  

T
h

e 
co

u
n

ci
l's

 o
ve

ra
ll 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

en
su

ri
n

g 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

d
em

o
n

st
ra

te
d

 a
d

eq
u
at

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

20
06

/
7.

 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 a

 lo
n

g-
te

rm
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 im

p
ro

vi
n

g 
d
at

a 
qu

al
it

y 
an

d
 h

av
e 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 a

 n
um

b
er

 o
f 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

, t
h

e 
fu

ll 
b

en
ef

it
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
al

is
ed

 in
 f

u
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

. 

K
ey

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
in

 t
h

e 
ye

a
r:

 

•
 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 &
 L

ea
d

er
sh

ip
 -

 T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 c

o
n

so
lid

at
ed

 it
s 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 t
o

 a
n

 a
d

eq
u
at

e 
st

an
d

ar
d

 a
n
d
 w

e 
w

ill
 e

xp
ec

t 
th

is
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
ve

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

tl
y 

in
 2

00
7/

08
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

D
at

a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

.  
W

e 
n

o
te

d
 t

h
at

 li
n

es
 o

f 
ac

co
u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

w
er

e 
st

ar
ti

n
g 

to
 e

m
b

ed
. 

•
 

P
o

lic
ie

s 
&

 P
ro

ce
d

ur
es

 -
 S

o
m

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
ac

cr
u
ed

 f
ro

m
 a

 

ch
an

ge
 t

o
 t

h
e 

A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

 n
o

te
s 

an
d
 u

p
d

at
es

.  
 

•
 

Sy
st

em
s 

&
 P

ro
ce

ss
es

 -
 T

h
e 

b
as

ic
 le

ve
l o

f 
sy

st
em

s 
se

cu
ri

ty
 s

u
rr

o
u
n

d
in

g 

th
e 

C
O

R
V

U
 s

ys
te

m
 e

st
ab

lis
h

ed
 in

 2
00

5/
06

 n
o

w
 m

ee
ts

 t
h

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

se
t 

b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
.  

T
h

er
e 

w
as

 s
o

m
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 

th
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l i

s 
im

p
ro

vi
n
g 

it
s 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ile

 d
at

a 
o
n

 a
 'r

ig
h

t 
fi

rs
t 

ti
m

e'
 b

as
is

. 

•
 

P
eo

p
le

 &
 S

ki
lls

 -
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l n

o
w

 m
ee

ts
 t

h
e 

m
in

im
u
m

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

 f
o
r 

co
m

m
u
n

ic
at

in
g 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
, a

n
d

 r
ec

en
t 

w
o

rk
 

o
n

 jo
b

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
s 

p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

 f
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
er

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t.
  

•
 

D
at

a 
U

se
 -

 A
 h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

 o
f 

d
at

a 
u
se

 in
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 c

o
n
te

xt
 w

as
 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

. I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 w
er

e 
n

o
te

d
 in

 t
h

e 
st

an
d

ar
d

 o
f 

au
d

it
 t

ra
il 

an
d
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

ch
ec

ki
n

g 
b

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o

f 
n

at
io

n
al

 d
at

a 

re
tu

rn
s.

  
 

 

K
ey

 a
re

a
s 

fo
r 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t:

 

•
 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 &
 L

ea
d

er
sh

ip
 -

 G
re

at
er

 c
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

st
ra

te
gi

c 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 r

o
le

s 
an

d
 s

ys
te

m
s 

o
f 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

n
d

 r
ev

ie
w

 f
o

r 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

w
o

u
ld

 s
tr

en
gt

h
en

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a.
 

•
 

P
o

lic
ie

s 
&

 P
ro

ce
d

ur
es

 -
  

R
ec

en
t 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 in
 t

h
e 

C
o
u
n

ci
l's

 d
at

a 

sy
st

em
s 

w
ill

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
b

ac
ke

d
 b

y 
u
p

 t
o

 d
at

e 
sy

st
em

s 
d
o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 2

00
7/

08
. 

•
 

Sy
st

em
s 

&
 P

ro
ce

ss
es

 -
 T

h
er

e 
w

as
 s

o
m

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 t

h
at

 w
o

rk
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 

d
o

n
e 

to
 s

tr
en

gt
h

en
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
d

at
a 

sh
ar

ed
 w

it
h

 p
ar

tn
er

 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s,

 b
u
t 

th
is

 h
as

 y
et

 t
o

 b
e 

fu
lly

 e
m

b
ed

d
ed

. 

45



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 5

•
 

P
eo

p
le

 &
 S

ki
lls

 -
 A

 f
o

rm
al

 t
ra

in
in

g 
p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 s
tr

en
gt

h
en

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

 t
h

is
 

ar
ea

. 

•
 

D
at

a 
U

se
 -

 I
m

p
ro

ve
d

 h
ig

h
 le

ve
l g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

n
d
 r

ev
ie

w
, e

.g
. a

 f
o

rm
al

 

si
gn

in
g 

o
ff

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o
r 

al
l r

et
u
rn

s,
 w

o
u
ld

 im
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 

A
n

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 a
gr

ee
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

co
u
n

ci
l (

se
e 

A
p
p

en
d
ix

) 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 t

h
e 

is
su

es
 a

ri
si

n
g 

fr
o

m
 t

h
is

 r
ev

ie
w

. 

 S
ta

g
e

 2
 –

 A
n

a
ly

ti
c

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 

O
u
r 

an
al

yt
ic

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

o
rk

 a
t 

st
ag

e 
2 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 t

h
at

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e 

P
I 

va
lu

es
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 f
el

l w
it

h
in

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 r

an
ge

s.
 

S
ta

g
e

 3
 –

 D
a

ta
 q

u
a

li
ty

 s
p

o
t 

c
h

e
c

k
s
 

O
u
r 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d
 s

p
o
t 

ch
ec

k 
o

f 
B

V
P

Is
 1

99
a-

c 
an

d
 B

V
P

I 
21

4 
fo

u
n

d
 t

h
at

 t
h

es
e 

in
d
ic

at
o

rs
 w

er
e 

fa
ir

ly
 s

ta
te

d
. 

 

46



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 6

4 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 (

S
ta

ge
 1

) 

O
ve

ra
ll,

 t
h

e 
co

u
n

ci
l’s

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

d
at

a 
q
ua

lit
y 

ar
e 

d
em

o
n

st
ra

ti
n

g 
ad

eq
u
at

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
o

ve
ra

ll 
sc

o
re

, t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l a

ch
ie

ve
d

 a
d
eq

u
at

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

 a
ll 

fi
ve

 

ke
y 

lin
es

 o
f 

en
q
u
ir

y 
(K

L
O

E
) 

se
t 

b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n

.  
T

h
es

e 
ar

e:
 

−
 
G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 &

 L
ea

d
er

sh
ip

 (
K

L
O

E
 1

) 

−
 
P

o
lic

ie
s 

(K
L

O
E

 2
) 

−
 
Sy

st
em

s 
&

 P
ro

ce
ss

es
 (

K
L

O
E

 3
) 

−
 
P

eo
p

le
 &

 S
ki

lls
 (

K
L

O
E

 4
) 

−
 
D

at
a 

U
se

 &
 R

ep
o

rt
in

g 
(K

L
O

E
 5

) 

 F
o

r 
20

07
/
08

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 lo
o

k 
to

 e
m

b
ed

 r
ec

en
t 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 a
n
d
 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
t 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

o
 s

ec
u
re

 g
o

o
d
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

(s
ee

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
s)

. 

     

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 L
e

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 m

ad
e 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ea

s:
 

K
L

O
E

 1
.1

 -
 R

es
p

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

is
 c

le
ar

ly
 d

ef
in

ed
. 

•
 

It
 is

 c
le

ar
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
20

07
/

08
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
n

d
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 t
h

at
 

ac
co

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 d

ev
el

o
p

in
g;

 a
n

d
 

•
 

T
h

ro
u
gh

 t
h

e 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

d
ra

ft
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

, t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

d
 a

 c
le

ar
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

co
m

m
it

m
en

t 
to

 d
at

a 
qu

al
it

y.
 

K
L

O
E

 1
.2

 -
 T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 c

le
ar

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

o
b

je
ct

iv
es

 a
n

d
 t

h
es

e 
ar

e 

fo
rm

al
ly

 d
o

cu
m

en
te

d
. 

•
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 d

ra
ft

ed
 a

 D
at

a 
Q

u
al

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 f
o
r 

20
07

-0
8.

 T
h

is
 

p
ro

vi
d
es

 e
vi

d
en

ce
 o

f 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

p
ro

ac
h

, s
et

s 
o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 a

n
d

 o
u
tl

in
es

 

a 
cl

ea
r 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

in
 t

h
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
. 

K
L

O
E

 1
.3

 -
 T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

an
d

 r
ev

ie
w

 

o
f 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y.

 

•
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

an
d
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

in
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l i

s 
n
o

t 
fo

rm
al

ly
 

d
ef

in
ed

. W
e 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

at
 H

ea
d

s 
o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 
ar

e 
in

 t
h

e 
p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 

d
ev

el
o

p
in

g 
a 

p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

o
f 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g,

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
w

it
h

 k
ey

 

d
at

a 
fr

o
m

 t
h

ei
r 

qu
ar

te
rl

y 
re

p
o

rt
s,

 d
u
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 in

 A
u
tu

m
n

 

20
07

; a
n

d
 

47



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 7

•
 

T
h

e 
co

rp
o

ra
te

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

p
ro

ce
ss

 p
ro

vi
d
es

 e
vi

d
en

ce
 t

h
at

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

ch
ec

ks
 a

re
 t

h
e 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a 

n
am

ed
 o

ff
ic

er
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
so

m
e 

lin
ka

ge
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

ct
iv

es
. 

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l n

ee
d
s 

to
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t:
 

•
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
D

at
a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
ex

p
lic

it
ly

 

ad
d

re
ss

ed
 in

 t
h

e 
20

07
/
08

 D
Q

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 F

o
rm

al
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 f
o

r 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d
 t

o
 a

 m
em

b
er

 o
f 

th
e 

se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

; 

•
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 b

ee
n

 a
b

le
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

lim
it

ed
 e

vi
d
en

ce
 o

f 
d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

is
su

es
 b

ei
n

g 
ro

u
ti

n
el

y 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 a
n

d
 c

o
n
si

d
er

ed
 b

y 
th

o
se

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 

w
it

h
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
.  

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n
ci

l s
h

o
u
ld

 c
o
n

si
d
er

 t
h

e 
ex

te
n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 

th
is

 t
ak

es
 p

la
ce

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

is
 c

an
 b

e 
ev

id
en

ce
d
. 

•
 

D
at

a 
Q

u
al

it
y 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 a
re

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
to

 b
e 

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 in

to
 jo

b
 

d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
s,

 b
u
t 

th
is

 is
 n

o
t 

fu
lly

 e
m

b
ed

d
ed

 t
h
ro

u
gh

o
ut

 t
h

e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
;  

•
 

D
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

is
 c

o
n
si

d
er

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 b
u
t 

is
 n

o
t 

fu
lly

 d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

ed
 a

s 
a 

ke
y 

ri
sk

. T
h

e 
ri

sk
 

an
d
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
d

at
a 

er
ro

r 
fo

r 
in

d
iv

id
u
al

 d
at

a 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
d

ic
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 r

et
ur

n
s 

h
as

 n
o

t 
b

ee
n

 f
u
lly

 a
ss

es
se

d
; a

n
d

 

•
 

T
h

e 
o

n
go

in
g 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

an
d

 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

cl
o
se

ly
 m

o
n

it
o
re

d
 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
h

is
 is

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 w

it
h

in
 a

 r
ea

so
n

ab
le

 t
im

es
ca

le
. 

                   

48



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 8

P
o

li
c

ie
s
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 m

ad
e 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ea

s:
 

K
L

O
E

 2
.1

 -
 O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

al
 p

o
lic

y 
fo

r 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

n
d
 is

 

su
p

p
o
rt

ed
 b

y 
a 

cu
rr

en
t 

se
t 

o
f 

o
p

er
at

io
n

al
 p

ro
ce

d
ur

es
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

an
ce

. 

•
 

T
h

e 
co

u
n

ci
l h

as
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 

h
av

in
g 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

p
o

lic
ie

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

t 
o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 le
ve

l, 
w

it
h

 

so
m

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
. W

e 
n

o
te

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

d
ra

ft
 D

at
a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 f
o
r 

20
07

-0
8 

in
cl

u
d

es
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

p
o

lic
ie

s.
 

K
L

O
E

 2
.2

 -
 P

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
ar

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
st

af
f 

an
d
 a

p
p

lie
d
 

co
n

si
st

en
tl

y 
th

ro
u
gh

o
u
t 

th
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
. 

•
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 a

 g
o

o
d

 le
ve

l o
f 

b
ac

k 
o

ff
ic

e 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

st
af

f 
in

 r
eg

ar
d
 

to
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y.

 

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l n

ee
d
s 

to
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t:
 

•
 

D
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

n
o

t 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

fu
lly

 d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
n

d
 e

m
b

ed
d
ed

 t
o

 

su
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 D

at
a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 2

00
7/

08
. 

  

 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 m

ad
e 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ea

s:
 

K
L

O
E

 3
.1

 -
 T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

sy
st

em
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 f
o
r 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n
, 

re
co

rd
in

g,
 a

n
al

ys
is

 a
n

d
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g 
o

f 
th

e 
d

at
a 

u
se

d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it

o
r 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 

•
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 m
ad

e 
o

n
 r

es
o

lv
in

g 
co

n
tr

o
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 t
h

e 

C
O

R
V

U
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 s

ys
te

m
s 

w
h

ic
h

 w
er

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u
d

it
. 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l r

ec
o

gn
is

es
 t

h
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
“r

ig
h
t 

fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e”

, a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 

co
n

ti
n

u
es

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

is
; a

n
d

 

•
 

D
at

a 
h

an
d
lin

g 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
ye

t 
fu

lly
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 b
us

in
es

s 

p
la

n
n

in
g 

an
d
 d

ay
-t

o
-d

ay
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
al

th
o

u
gh

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

h
av

e 

st
at

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 f

o
llo

w
 im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

vi
se

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

20
07

/
08

. 

K
L

O
E

 3
.2

 -
 T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

sy
st

em
s 

p
ro

d
u
ce

 t
h

e 
q
u
al

it
y 

o
f 

d
at

a 
n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 r

ep
o
rt

 o
n

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d
 t

o
 

ke
ep

 t
o

p
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
aw

ar
e 

o
f 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

ct
io

n
 in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y.

 

•
 

F
o

rm
al

is
ed

 c
o

n
tr

o
l t

es
ti

n
g 

w
as

 n
o

t 
un

d
er

ta
ke

n
 in

 2
00

6/
07

, h
o

w
ev

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

h
av

e 
st

at
ed

 t
h

at
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l c

h
ec

ks
 o

f 
d

at
a,

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g 

to
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

n
ew

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

p
o

lic
y;

 a
n

d
 

•
 

T
h

er
e 

w
as

 n
o

 e
vi

d
en

ce
 o

f 
an

 a
n

n
u
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 f

o
r 

20
06

/
07

, h
o

w
ev

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

at
ed

 t
h

at
 t

h
is

 w
as

 t
o

 b
e 

ad
d

re
ss

ed
 a

s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
re

vi
se

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n

, u
si

n
g 

th
e 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 s

co
re

ca
rd

s.
 

49



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 9

K
L

O
E

 3
.3

 -
 S

ec
u
ri

ty
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 s

ys
te

m
s 

ar
e 

ro
b

us
t,

 a
n

d
 a

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

n
ti

n
u
it

y 
p

la
n

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

•
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 a

n
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
se

cu
ri

ty
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

C
o

rv
u
 s

ys
te

m
. 

T
h

er
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 b
as

ic
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 f
o

r 
re

co
ve

ry
 o

f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a.
 

K
L

O
E

 3
.4

 -
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

ar
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 f

o
r 

sh
ar

ed
 d

at
a 

o
r 

d
at

a 
su

p
p

lie
d
 b

y 
th

ir
d
 

p
ar

ti
es

. 

•
 

In
st

an
ce

s 
o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
n

d
 e

xt
er

n
al

 d
at

a 
sh

ar
in

g 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 f

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 e

xe
rc

is
e.

 

•
 

V
al

id
at

io
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 w

er
e 

n
o

t 
ev

id
en

t 
fo

r 
20

06
/
07

, h
o

w
ev

er
 it

 is
 c

le
ar

 

th
at

 t
h

is
 is

 b
ei

n
g 

ad
d

re
ss

ed
 f

o
r 

20
07

/
08

. 

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l n

ee
d
s 

to
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t:
: 

•
 

T
h

e 
n

ew
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

p
o

lic
y 

fo
r 

20
07

/
08

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o

 s
tr

en
gt

h
en

 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

sy
st

em
s,

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 'r
ig

h
t 

fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e'

 d
at

a.
 T

h
is

 

sh
o

u
ld

 a
d
d
re

ss
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sp

ec
if

ic
 a

re
as

: 

−
 

St
re

n
gt

h
en

ed
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

sy
st

em
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
. 

−
 

F
o

rm
al

is
ed

 a
n

n
u
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

co
n

tr
o

l e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s.

 

 

•
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l d

o
es

 n
o
t 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
h

av
e 

a 
fo

rm
al

 s
ys

te
m

 f
o
r 

ch
ec

ki
n

g 
th

e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o

f 
se

cu
ri

ty
 o

n
 c

o
re

 d
at

a 
sy

st
em

s.
 

•
 

T
h

e 
co

u
n

ci
l h

as
 y

et
 t

o
 e

st
ab

lis
h

 a
d

eq
u
at

e 
d

at
a 

sh
ar

in
g 

p
ro

to
co

ls
 o

r 

d
at

a 
va

lid
at

io
n

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

d
at

a 
re

ce
iv

ed
 f

ro
m

 e
xt

er
n

al
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

  

T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 f
o
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 r

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

             

50



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 1

0

P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 m

ad
e 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ea

s:
 

K
L

O
E

 4
.1

 -
 T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
at

ed
 c

le
ar

ly
 t

h
e 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

st
af

f,
 

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

lic
ab

le
, f

o
r 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y.

 

•
 

A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 d

o
n

e 
in

 r
eg

ar
d

 t
o
 

co
m

m
u
n

ic
at

in
g 

to
 s

ta
ff

 t
h

ei
r 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y.

  
N

ew
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
ye

t 
to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 e
m

b
ed

d
ed

, b
u
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 f
o

r 

20
07

/
08

. T
h

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 e
m

b
ed

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
 a

p
p
ra

is
al

 

d
o

cu
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 jo

b
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

s 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 s

er
vi

ce
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d
 is

 b
ei

n
g 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t.

  

K
L

O
E

 4
.2

 -
 T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
at

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 h
av

e 
th

e 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 s
ki

lls
. 

•
 

G
en

er
al

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g 

w
as

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e 

n
ew

 c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 b

al
an

ce
d

 s
co

re
ca

rd
, w

it
h
 s

o
m

e 
re

fe
re

n
ce

 t
o

 d
at

a 

q
u
al

it
y 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
. A

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

sp
ec

if
ic

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

tr
ai

n
in

g 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 is
 s

ch
ed

u
le

d
 t

o
 t

ak
e 

p
la

ce
 in

 2
00

7/
08

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

C
o

rv
u
 h

ad
 a

ls
o

 b
ee

n
 u

p
d

at
ed

 w
it

h
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 g
u
id

an
ce

. 

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l n

ee
d
s 

to
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t:
 

•
 

T
h

er
e 

w
as

 n
o

 q
u
ic

k 
re

fe
re

n
ce

 g
u
id

an
ce

 a
va

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 in
 2

00
6/

07
. 

T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
b

ac
k 

o
f 

th
e 

n
ew

 d
at

a 
qu

al
it

y 
st

ra
te

gy
 

an
d
 p

o
lic

y;
 a

n
d

 

•
 

F
o

r 
20

06
/
07

 t
h

er
e 

w
as

 n
o

 f
o

rm
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

o
f 

d
at

a 
qu

al
it

y 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

fo
r 

st
af

f.
  

T
h

e 
d
el

iv
er

y 
o

f 
sp

ec
if

ic
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
in

 2
00

7/
08

, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
re

gu
la

r 
u
p
d

at
es

 o
n
 is

su
es

 a
n

d
 s

ys
te

m
 c

h
an

ge
s,

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e 

cl
o

se
ly

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
. 

              

51



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 1

1

D
a

ta
 U

s
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l h

as
 m

ad
e 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ea

s:
 

K
L

O
E

 5
.1

 -
 T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t

h
at

 a
re

 f
o

cu
se

d
 o

n
 

en
su

ri
n

g 
th

at
 d

at
a 

su
p

p
o
rt

in
g 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 is
 a

ls
o

 u
se

d
 t

o
 m

an
ag

e 

an
d

 im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

•
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l m

ai
n
ta

in
ed

 a
 'g

o
o

d
' l

ev
el

 o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 r

eg
ar

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

u
se

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

.  
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
C

o
rv

u
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 u
se

d
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 h

ig
h
 le

ve
l r

ep
o

rt
in

g 
an

d
 o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 u
se

. T
ar

ge
ts

 a
re

 in
cl

u
d

ed
 f

o
r 

al
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

d
ic

at
o

rs
 a

n
d

 id
en

ti
fy

 p
re

d
ic

ti
ve

 o
ut

tu
rn

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 t

o
 d

at
e.

 T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l r

ep
o

rt
s 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
o

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

o
n
 a

 q
u
ar

te
rl

y 
b

as
is

. 

K
L

O
E

 5
.2

 -
 T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 v
al

id
at

io
n

 p
ro

ce
d
ur

es
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 

th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
f 

d
at

a 
u
se

d
 in

 r
ep

o
rt

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

d
ic

at
o

rs
. 

•
 

D
at

a 
re

tu
rn

s 
w

er
e 

su
p

p
o
rt

ed
 b

y 
a 

cl
ea

r 
au

d
it

 t
ra

il.
 N

o
 is

su
es

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 w

it
h

 r
es

p
ec

t 
to

 a
ud

it
 t

ra
il 

in
 t

h
e 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

st
ag

e 
3 

te
st

in
g 

fo
r 

20
05

/
06

 o
r 

20
06

/
07

; a
n
d

 

•
 

R
o

b
us

t 
ve

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

en
io

r 
ap

p
ro

va
l m

ec
h

an
is

m
s 

w
er

e 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

T
h

er
e 

w
er

e 
n

o
 B

V
P

I 
re

se
rv

at
io

n
s 

co
m

in
g 

o
ut

 o
f 

o
u
r 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

st
ag

e 

3 
au

d
it

 w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

20
05

/
06

 o
r 

20
06

/
07

. 

  

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l n

ee
d
s 

to
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t:
 

•
 

W
e 

es
ta

b
lis

h
ed

 t
h

at
 n

o
t 

al
l n

at
io

n
al

 d
at

a 
re

tu
rn

s 
w

er
e 

fu
lly

 s
ig

n
ed

 o
ff

 

b
y 

se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

  
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 s

ig
n

 o
ff

 b
y 

se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

is
 s

ta
n
d

ar
d

is
ed

 f
o

r 
al

l e
xt

er
n

al
 d

at
a 

su
b

m
is

si
o

n
s;

 

an
d
 

•
 

F
o

r 
20

06
/
07

, w
e 

w
er

e 
u
n

ab
le

 t
o

 e
vi

d
en

ce
 a

 d
ir

ec
t 

lin
k 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

u
se

 o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 b
y 

se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 t
an

gi
b

le
 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t.

  
A

 d
ir

ec
t 

lin
k 

b
et

w
ee

n
 d

at
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

o
ve

r 
a 

p
er

io
d

 o
f 

se
ve

ra
l y

ea
rs

 is
 a

 c
h

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

 

o
f 

'e
xc

el
le

n
t' 

d
at

a 
u
se

. 

52



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 1

2

5 
A

na
ly

tic
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 (
S

ta
ge

 2
) 

A
n

 a
n

al
yt

ic
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
's

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d
 B

V
P

Is
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-

B
V

P
Is

 w
as

 c
ar

ri
ed

 o
ut

. A
ll 

P
Is

 w
er

e 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

p
la

u
si

b
le

 a
n

d
 p

er
m

is
si

b
le

 

va
lu

es
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
; t

h
er

ef
o
re

 n
o

 c
o

n
ce

rn
s 

w
er

e 
n

o
te

d
 a

t 

St
ag

e 
2 

w
it

h
 r

eg
ar

d
 t

o
 w

h
et

h
er

 o
r 

n
o

t 
th

es
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 in

d
ic

at
o

rs
 w

er
e 

fa
ir

ly
 

st
at

ed
. 

53



 ©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 
P

a
g

e
 1

3

6 
D

at
a 

Q
ua

lit
y 

S
po

t C
he

ck
s 

(S
ta

ge
 3

) 

A
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

P
Is

 w
er

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 u

si
n

g 
a 

se
ri

es
 o

f 
d
et

ai
le

d
 s

p
o
t 

ch
ec

ks
 a

n
d

 

au
d

it
 t

es
ts

.  
O

ur
 f

in
d

in
gs

 a
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 b

el
o

w
.  

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

B
V

P
I 

19
9a

-c
F

ai
rl

y 
st

at
ed

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
  

B
V

P
I 

21
4

F
ai

rl
y 

st
at

ed

 W
e 

ar
e 

p
le

as
ed

 t
o

 n
o
te

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

es
e 

tw
o

 in
d
ic

at
o

rs
 d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

d
 

th
at

 t
h

e 
sy

st
em

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 g

en
er

at
e 

th
e 

d
at

a 
to

 c
al

cu
la

te
 t

h
es

e 
in

d
ic

at
o
rs

 a
re

 

so
u
n

d
, a

n
d
 t

h
at

 C
o

u
n

ci
l o

ff
ic

er
s 

h
av

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
ly

 c
al

cu
la

te
d
 t

h
e 

o
u
tt

ur
n

 o
f 

th
es

e 

in
d
ic

at
o

rs
. 

 

     

54



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

T
h

is
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 in
cl

ud
es

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
in

te
n

d
ed

 t
o
 a

ss
is

t 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l i

n
 a

ch
ie

vi
n
g 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 t
o

 d
em

o
n
st

ra
te

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
n

ex
t 

le
ve

l w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
D

at
a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

O
ve

ra
ll 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

ra
m

ew
o
rk

. A
ls

o
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
 in

cl
u
d

es
 r

ec
o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
ar

o
u
n

d
 t

h
o

se
 

cr
it

er
ia

 c
o

n
si

d
er

ed
 a

s 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
ex

ce
lle

n
t 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

. W
h

er
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
s 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 m
ad

e 
re

la
ti

n
g 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
n

g 
ex

ce
lle

n
t 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
co

st
s 

an
d
 b

en
ef

it
s 

o
f 

im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s.
 O

ur
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 s
ys

te
m

 g
ra

d
es

 t
h

e 
m

o
st

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
s 

as
 'H

ig
h

'. 

R
e

f 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

K
L

O
E

 1
.1

 R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

d
a

ta
 q

u
a

li
ty

 i
s
 c

le
a

rl
y
 d

e
fi

n
e

d
 

 1 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

D
at

a 
Q

u
al

it
y 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
ex

p
lic

it
ly

 a
d

d
re

ss
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

20
07

/
08

 D
at

a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

St
ra

te
gy

. F
o
rm

al
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 f
o
r 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d
 t

o
 a

 m
em

b
er

 o
f 

th
e 

se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

. 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

llo
ca

te
 r

es
p

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

D
at

a 
Q

u
al

it
y 

to
 a

 

D
ir

ec
to

r.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o

f 

C
en

tr
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

A
p

ri
l 0

8 

55



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

R
e

f 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

2 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l h

as
 n

o
t 

d
em

o
n
st

ra
te

d
 t

h
at

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

is
su

es
 a

re
 r

o
u
ti

n
el

y 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

si
d
er

ed
 b

y 

th
o

se
 c

h
ar

ge
d

 w
it

h
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
.  

W
h

er
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

is
su

es
 a

ri
se

, t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o
u
ld

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
h

is
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

 o
r 

th
e 

m
em

b
er

 g
ro

u
p

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 w

it
h

 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

n
d

 r
ep

o
rt

 o
n

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
n

st
 a

ct
io

n
s 

ta
ke

n
. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

gr
ee

d
 –

 n
o

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

is
su

es
 h

av
e 

ye
t 

ar
is

en
, w

h
en

 a
n

d
 if

 t
h

ey
 o

cc
u
r 

th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
an

d
 if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

th
e 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 P

an
el

 
 

P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

3 
D

at
a 

Q
u
al

it
y 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e 

fu
lly

 

in
co

rp
o
ra

te
d

 in
to

 jo
b

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

st
af

f 
w

it
h

 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y.

  

M
ed

iu
m

 
T

h
is

 is
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 b

y 
H

ea
d

s 
o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e/
A

ct
iv

it
y 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d
 c

o
ve

re
d

 in
 t

h
e 

D
Q

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
ac

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

:-
 . 

“E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 o
pe

ra
ti
on

al
 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
da

ta
 q

ua
lit

y 
(w

he
re

 t
hi

s 
is

 a
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ar
t 

of
 a

n 
of

fic
er

s 
jo

b)
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

tl
y 

re
fle

ct
ed

 
in

 t
he

 r
el

ev
an

t 
jo

b 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

” 

                  

H
ea

d
s 

o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
ay

 2
00

8 

56



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

R
e

f 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

K
L

O
E

 1
.3

 A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
li

ty
 

 4 
D

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

is
 c

o
n
si

d
er

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 b
u
t 

is
 n

o
t 

fu
lly

 d
ev

el
o
p

ed
 a

n
d
 

m
an

ag
ed

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
ri

sk
. T

h
e 

ri
sk

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 im

p
ac

t 
o
f 

d
at

a 
er

ro
r 

fo
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

 d
at

a 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

d
ic

at
o
rs

 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
ss

es
se

d
 a

n
d
 in

co
rp

o
ra

te
d
 

in
to

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

. 

 

H
ig

h
 

T
h

e 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

in
cl

ud
es

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ri
sk

, 

w
h

ic
h

 is
 o

w
n

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

O
M

T
.  

“T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 

d
o

es
 n

o
t 

d
el

iv
er

 a
ga

in
st

 it
s 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

o
r 

th
e 

N
at

io
n

al
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 I

n
d

ic
at

o
rs

 r
es

u
lt

in
g 

in
 a

d
ve

rs
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
u
d
it

 a
n

d
 in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 r

ep
o
rt

s 

an
d
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

in
te

rv
en

ti
o
n

 o
r 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n
s 

o
f 

fr
ee

d
o

m
s”

. O
n

e 
o
f 

th
e 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 t

h
at

 m
an

ag
es

 

th
is

 r
is

k 
is

 t
h

e 
re

gu
la

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y.

  

T
h

is
 r

is
k 

an
d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l h
as

 b
ee

n
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 

M
em

b
er

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

w
ay

 t
h

at
 w

e 

ar
e 

tr
ea

ti
n

g 
d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

is
su

es
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 

co
n

si
d
er

 it
 r

eq
u
ir

es
 t

o
 b

e 
a 

se
p

ar
at

e 
ri

sk
 e

n
tr

y 
o

n
 

th
e 

re
gi

st
er

. 

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

5 
T

h
e 

o
n

go
in

g 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o
f 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

an
d

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

cl
o

se
ly

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
h

is
 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 w
it

h
in

 a
 r

ea
so

n
ab

le
 t

im
es

ca
le

. 

H
ig

h
 

A
n

 a
ct

io
n

 in
 t

h
e 

D
Q

 s
tr

at
eg

y:
- 

“T
o 

en
su

re
 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

m
ea

su
re

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ar
e 

k
ep

t 
up

 t
o 

da
te

. 
(t

hi
s 

w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

da
ta

 t
o 

be
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 i
n 

an
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 m

an
ne

r)
” 

 T
h

is
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 t

o
 b

e 
u
p

d
at

ed
 w

h
en

ev
er

 a
 

m
ea

su
re

 o
r 

sy
st

em
 c

h
an

ge
s 

n
o

t 
at

 a
 f

ix
ed

 p
o

in
t 

in
 t

im
e.

 
       

H
ea

d
s 

o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d

 A
ct

iv
it

y 

m
an

ag
er

s 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

57



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

R
e

f 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

K
L

O
E

 2
.1

: 
P

o
li

c
y
 f

o
r 

d
a

ta
 q

u
a

li
ty

 

 6 
D

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
co

m
p
re

h
en

si
ve

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

fu
lly

 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
n

d
 e

m
b

ed
d

ed
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 2

00
7/

08
. 

H
ig

h
 

P
I 

m
ea

su
re

 p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
gu

id
an

ce
 f

o
r 

us
e 

o
f 

C
o
rv

u
 h

as
 p

ro
d
u
ce

d
 f

o
r 

d
at

a 
in

-p
u
tt

er
s 

an
d
 f

ur
th

er
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 a
s 

re
q
u
es

te
d

. 

 

P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

K
L

O
E

 3
.2

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

 7 
T

h
e 

n
ew

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

p
o

lic
y 

fo
r 

20
07

/
08

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

u
se

d
 t

o
 s

tr
en

gt
h

en
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

sy
st

em
s,

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 

ac
h

ie
ve

 'r
ig

h
t 

fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e'

 d
at

a.
 T

h
is

 s
h
o

u
ld

 a
d
d
re

ss
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sp

ec
if

ic
 a

re
as

: 

•
 

St
re

n
gt

h
en

ed
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

sy
st

em
 

co
n

tr
o

ls
. 

•
 

F
o

rm
al

is
ed

 a
n

n
u
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

co
n

tr
o

l e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s.

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
     T

h
e 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
n

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

te
d

 
m

ea
su

re
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

 w
ill

 s
tr

en
gt

h
en

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 

 T
h

e 
d
o

cu
m

en
te

d
 m

ea
su

re
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

 is
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 
as

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 m
ea

su
re

/
sy

st
em

s 
ch

an
ge

 
        

  H
ea

d
s 

o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d

 A
ct

iv
it

y 

m
an

ag
er

s 

H
ea

d
s 

o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d

 A
ct

iv
it

y 

m
an

ag
er

s 

   O
n

-g
o

in
g 

 O
n

-g
o

in
g 

58



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

R
e

f 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

K
L

O
E

 3
.3

: 
D

a
ta

 S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 

 8
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 d
ev

el
o

p
 a

 f
o

rm
al

 s
ys

te
m

 f
o
r 

ch
ec

ki
n

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

se
cu

ri
ty

 o
n

 c
o

re
 d

at
a 

sy
st

em
s.

  
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
T

h
e 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 M
an

ag
er

 w
ill

, o
n

 a
n

 a
n

n
u
al

 

b
as

is
, a

n
d

 a
d
d
it

io
n

al
ly

 in
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 a

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 

th
re

at
 o

r 
p

er
ce

iv
ed

 e
n

h
an

ce
d

 le
ve

l o
f 

ri
sk

 (
e.

g.
 

th
e 

re
ce

n
t 

d
at

a 
p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 a
ct

 s
ca

re
s)

, l
ea

d
 a

 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
al

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 s
ec

ur
it

y 
an

d
 

p
ro

vi
d
e 

a 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e 
H

ea
d

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 t

o
 C

O
M

T
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 

M
an

ag
er

 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

K
L

O
E

 3
.4

: 
D

a
ta

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 

 9 
T

h
e 

co
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 e
st

ab
lis

h
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
d
at

a 
sh

ar
in

g 

p
ro

to
co

ls
 o

r 
d

at
a 

va
lid

at
io

n
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o
r 

d
at

a 

re
ce

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 e

xt
er

n
al

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
  
T

h
is

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 f
o

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

H
ig

h
 

T
h

is
 is

 I
n

cl
u
d
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 
gu

id
an

ce
/

h
ea

lt
h

 c
h

ec
k 

 

an
d
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d
 f

o
r 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o

f 
L

A
A

 

      

P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

F
eb

 0
8 

 Ju
n

e 
08

 

 

59



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

R
e

f 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

K
L

O
E

 4
.1

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
a

ta
 q

u
a

li
ty

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

 10
 

T
h

er
e 

w
as

 n
o

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

q
ui

ck
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 g
u
id

an
ce

 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 f
o
r 

20
06

/
07

. T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
b

ac
k 

o
f 

th
e 

n
ew

 d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 

an
d

 p
o

lic
y.

 

  

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

t 
an

 o
p

er
at

io
n

al
 le

ve
l p

eo
p
le

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 o
f 

d
at

a 
h

av
e 

th
e 

d
o

cu
m

en
te

d
 

m
ea

su
re

 t
em

p
la

te
 t

o
 r

ef
er

 t
o
o

.  
T

h
e 

D
Q

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 c
ir

cu
la

te
d
 t

o
 H

ea
d

s 
o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 
an

d
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
m

an
ag

er
s.

 

 

P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
se

rv
ic

es
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

K
L

O
E

 4
.2

: 
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

 11
 

A
 f

o
rm

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
o

f 
sp

ec
if

ic
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

tr
ai

n
in

g 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 f
o
r 

20
07

/
08

, i
n

cl
u
d
in

g 
re

gu
la

r 

u
p

d
at

es
 o

n
 is

su
es

 a
n

d
 s

ys
te

m
 c

h
an

ge
s.

 T
h

is
 t

ra
in

in
g 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
n

d
 u

p
d
at

ed
 a

cc
o

rd
in

gl
y.

 

H
ig

h
 

St
af

f 
re

sp
o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

en
te

ri
n
g 

d
at

a 
in

to
 C

o
rv

u 
ar

e 
gi

ve
n

 t
h

e 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

, 
gu

id
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 s
up

p
lie

d
 a

n
d

 is
 u

p
d

at
ed

 a
s 

an
d
 w

h
en

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

      

P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
se

rv
ic

es
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

60



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
0
8

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h
ts

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
d

 

R
e

f 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

K
L

O
E

 5
.1

: 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s
 a

c
ti

v
e

ly
 u

s
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c

e
s
s
 

 12
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 e
st

ab
lis

h
 a

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

en
ab

le
 it

 t
o

 d
em

o
n

st
ra

te
 a

 d
ir

ec
t 

lin
k 

b
et

w
ee

n
 d

at
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 s
er

vi
ce

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t.
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
d
iv

is
io

n
al

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
to

 C
O

M
T

/
 O

 &
 

S/
C

ab
in

et
.  

P
o

o
r 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
n

d
 

ac
te

d
 u

p
o

n
 

 

P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
se

rv
ic

es
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

K
L

O
E

 5
.2

: 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s
 v

a
li

d
a

te
d

 

 13
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
at

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 b

y 
se

n
io

r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

is
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
is

ed
 f

o
r 

al
l d

at
a 

su
b

m
is

si
o

n
s.

 

H
ig

h
 

A
 ju

d
ge

m
en

t 
is

 t
ak

en
 (

b
y 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e)
 a

s 
to

 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

se
n

io
ri

ty
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 s

ig
n

 o
f 

d
at

a 

su
b

m
is

si
o

n
.  

F
o

r 
lo

ca
l/

B
V

P
I’

s 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

 t
em

p
la

te
 r

eq
u
ir

es
 d

at
a 

to
 b

e 
ve

ri
fi

ed
 

b
y 

th
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
o
ff

ic
er

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 e

n
tr

y 
in

to
 t

h
e 

co
u
n

ci
ls

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

so
ft

w
ar

e 

“C
o

rv
u
” 

H
ea

d
s 

o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
n

-g
o

in
g 

 

61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



  H
un
tin
gd
on
sh
ire
 D
is
tr
ic
t C
ou
nc
il 

U
se
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 R
ep
or
t 2
00
6-
7 

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

08
 

    

Agenda Item 5b

63



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

T
h

e 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 P

an
el

 
H

un
ti

n
gd

on
sh

ir
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
un

ci
l  

P
at

h
fi

n
de

r 
H

o
us

e 

St
 M

ar
y'

s 
St

re
et

 
H

un
ti

n
gd

on
 

C
am

b
s 

  P
E

29
 3

 T
N

 

 
11

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

8 

D
ea

r 
Si

rs
 

H
U

N
T

IN
G

D
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 -

 U
S

E
 O

F
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0
0
7
  

T
h

is
 U

se
 o

f 
R

es
o

ur
ce

s 
R

ep
or

t 
20

06
/0

7 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 r

ec
o

rd
 t

h
e 

ke
y 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 o
ur

 a
ud

it
.  

W
e 

h
av

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

o
ur

 r
ep

o
rt

 w
it

h
 S

te
ve

 
C

o
up

er
, H

ea
d 

o
f 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
h

o
 c

o
nf

ir
m

s 
it

s 
fa

ct
ua

l a
cc

ur
ac

y,
 a

lt
h

o
ug

h
 t

h
e 

vi
ew

s 
ex

p
re

ss
ed

 a
re

 t
ho

se
 o

f 
G

ra
n

t 
T

h
or

n
to

n
.  

T
h

e 
sc

o
p

e 
an

d 
o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 a
re

 f
ur

th
er

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

. 

W
e 

w
o

ul
d 

lik
e 

to
 t

ak
e 

th
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
un

it
y 

to
 t

h
an

k 
St

ev
e 

C
o

up
er

 a
n

d 
D

av
id

 H
ar

w
o

o
d,

 I
n

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

 a
n

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
er

, a
n

d 
o

th
er

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d 

di
re

ct
o

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e 

co
-

o
p

er
at

io
n

 a
n

d 
as

si
st

an
ce

 a
ff

o
rd

ed
 t

o
 u

s 
du

ri
n

g 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f 

o
ur

 a
ud

it
. 

Y
o

ur
s 

fa
it

h
fu

lly
 

   G
ra

n
t 

T
h

or
n

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
 

64



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
P

a
g

e
 

1 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
ve

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
1 

2
 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

te
x

t 
3
 

3
 

K
L

O
E

 1
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

4
 

4
 

K
L

O
E

 2
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
5
 

5
 

K
L

O
E

 3
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
n

d
in

g
 

6
 

6
 

K
L

O
E

 4
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

7
 

7
 

K
L

O
E

 5
: 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 

9
 

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ic

e
s 

A
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

B
 

K
e
y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s 

fo
r 

2
0
0
8
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n

t 

  

65



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 1
 

1 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
S
um
m
ar
y 

1
.1
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

W
e 

h
av

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d 
o

ur
 2

00
7 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

o
f 

H
un

ti
n

gd
o

ns
h

ir
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
un

ci
l's

 (
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l’s

) 
us

e 
o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 

m
et

h
o

do
lo

gy
 a

n
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it

 C
om

m
is

si
o

n
.  

 

T
h

e 
U

se
 o

f 
R

es
o

ur
ce

s 
(U

o
R

) 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
ev

al
ua

te
s 

ho
w

 w
el

l c
o

un
ci

ls
 

m
an

ag
e 

an
d 

us
e 

th
ei

r 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

  T
h

is
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
is

 c
ar

ri
ed

 o
ut

 e
ac

h
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

fo
cu

se
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 s
o

un
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

n
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
fi

na
n

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
.  

T
h

es
e 

sh
o

ul
d 

su
p

p
or

t 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l i

n
 t

h
e 

ac
h

ie
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
it

s 
pr

io
ri

ti
es

 a
n

d 
im

p
ro

vi
n

g 
se

rv
ic

es
, w

h
ils

t 
de

liv
er

in
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
. 

T
h

is
 is

 t
h

e 
th

ir
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

w
e 

h
av

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 a
t 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l. 
 O

ur
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ke

y 
lin

es
 o

f 
en

qu
ir

y 
fo

r 
20

07
.  

T
h

es
e 

in
cl

ud
e 

n
ew

 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
co

un
ci

ls
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

's
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o 
p

h
as

in
g 

in
 t

h
os

e 
el

em
en

ts
 t

h
at

 n
ee

d 
m

o
re

 le
ad

-t
im

e 
an

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

b
y 

gr
ad

ua
lly

 r
ai

si
n

g 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t.
  T

h
e 

p
er

io
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 h
as

 

b
ee

n
 a

lig
n

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r 
20

06
/0

7.
  C

o
un

ci
ls

 m
ay

, h
o

w
ev

er
, 

p
ro

vi
de

 e
vi

de
n

ce
 t

h
at

 b
ec

o
m

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

 a
ft

er
 t

h
e 

en
d 

of
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

to
 d

em
o

ns
tr

at
e 

th
ei

r 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 w
or

ki
n

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
ar

e 

em
b

ed
de

d.
  W

e 
h

av
e 

al
so

 f
oc

us
se

d 
on

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l's

 d
el

iv
er

y 
o

f 
th

e 
ac

ti
on

 
p

la
n

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

U
se

 o
f 

R
es

o
ur

ce
s 

re
p

o
rt

 is
su

ed
 in

 J
un

e 
20

07
.  

 

T
h

is
 r

ep
or

t 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

ak
en

 a
n

d 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
of

 t
h

e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t.

  I
t 

al
so

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 a
re

as
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
cr

it
er

ia
 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it

 C
om

m
is

si
o

n
. 

W
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

o
ur

 f
ie

ld
w

or
k 

in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
A

ud
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 

ti
m

et
ab

le
 in

 A
ug

us
t 

20
07

 w
it

h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 r

ep
or

ti
n

g 
ou

r 
fi

ve
 in

di
vi

du
al

 

ju
dg

em
en

ts
, a

ft
er

 in
te

rn
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
n

ce
, t

o
 t

h
e 

A
ud

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 o

n
 1

9 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
00

7.
 

T
h

e 
A

ud
it

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 r
el

ea
se

d 
th

e 
o

ve
ra

ll 
ju

dg
em

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l o
n

 1
0 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

00
7,

 f
ro

m
 t

h
is

 t
im

e 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

ad
 t

h
e 

o
p

po
rt

un
it

y 
to

 r
eq

ue
st

 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

ju
dg

em
en

t 
if

 it
 is

 f
el

t 
th

at
 it

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 a

w
ar

de
d 

th
e 

in
co

rr
ec

t 

sc
o

re
 o

ve
ra

ll.
 T

h
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
er

io
d 

cl
os

ed
 o

n
 2

1 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
00

7.
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l a
ch

ie
ve

d 
a 

sc
o

re
 o

f 
3 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
07

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
 w

h
ic

h 
re

p
re

se
nt

s 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

w
el

l o
n

 t
h

e 
A

ud
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

on
’s

 

sc
o

ri
n

g 
sy

st
em

.  
T

h
is

 is
 t

h
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 t
h

e 
20

06
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
 T

h
e 

fi
ve

 t
h

em
e 

sc
o

re
s 

ar
e 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

   

66



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 2
 

A
u
d
it
o
r 
s
c
o
re
d
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
t 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g 
3 

3 

F
in

an
ci

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
3 

3 

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
n

di
n

g 
3 

3 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

2 
2 

V
al

ue
 f

o
r 

m
on

ey
 

3 
3 

O
ve

ra
ll

 s
c
o

re
 

3
 

3
 

 T
h

es
e 

sc
o

re
s 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o

 c
o

n
fi

rm
at

io
n 

b
y 

th
e 

na
ti

o
n

al
 q

ua
lit

y 

co
n

tr
o

l p
ro

ce
ss

. T
h

is
 s

ee
ks

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l a

ud
it

o
rs

 a
nd

 o
n

 

a 
n

at
io

n
al

 b
as

is
. 

 T
h

e 
ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
cl

ud
e:

 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

em
e
n

t 
- 

at
 t

h
e 

ti
m

e 
o

f 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t,
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l h
ad

 n
o

t 
ro

lle
d 

o
ut

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

to
 a

p
pr

o
pr

ia
te

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
an

d 
m

em
b

er
s.

 

A
ss

u
ra

n
c
e
 f

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 –

 t
he

 C
o

un
ci

l s
h

o
ul

d 
de

ve
lo

p
 a

nd
 im

p
le

m
en

t 
a 

fo
rm

al
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 k
ey

 r
is

ks
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g 

it
s 

o
b

je
ct

iv
es

 a
re

 b
ei

n
g 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
d 

th
at

 t
h

er
e 

ar
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ri
sk

s 
to

 a
cc

ep
ta

b
le

 le
ve

ls
. 

T
h

e 
fo

cu
s 

in
 f

ut
ur

e 
p

er
io

ds
 s

h
o

ul
d 

b
e 

to
 f

ur
th

er
 e

m
b

ed
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 f

or
 

ea
ch

 k
ey

 K
L

O
E

 c
ri

te
ri

a,
 in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

to
 d

em
o

ns
tr

at
e 

th
at

 t
h

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 

in
 p

la
ce

 d
ri

ve
 im

pr
o

ve
m

en
t 

in
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es
.  

 

W
e 

w
o

ul
d 

lik
e 

to
 t

ak
e 

th
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
un

it
y 

to
 t

h
an

k 
th

e 
H

ea
d 

o
f 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

Se
rv

ic
es

, t
h

e 
H

ea
d 

of
  A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 a

n
d 

th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 a

n
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

er
, t

h
ei

r 
te

am
s 

an
d 

th
e 

o
th

er
 o

ff
ic

er
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 o

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
 f

o
r 

th
ei

r 

h
el

p
 a

n
d 

su
pp

o
rt

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f 
o

ur
 w

o
rk

 in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a.
 

1
.2
 
U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 2
0
0
8
 

T
h

e 
A

ud
it

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
as

 p
ub

lis
h

ed
 it

s 
ke

y 
lin

es
 o

f 
en

qu
ir

y 
fo

r 
20

08
 o

n
 it

s 

w
eb

si
te

.  
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
n

 a
nn

o
ta

te
d 

ve
rs

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

ke
y 

lin
es

 o
f 

en
qu

ir
y 

av
ai

la
b

le
 

w
h

ic
h

 in
di

ca
te

s 
th

e 
ke

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
fr

om
 2

00
7 

an
d 

A
nn

ex
 B

 o
ut

lin
es

 t
h

e 
m

ai
n

 
ch

an
ge

s.
  T

h
e 

ke
y 

lin
es

 o
f 

en
qu

ir
y 

fo
r 

20
08

 r
ef

le
ct

 s
om

e 
o

f 
th

e 
ch

an
gi

n
g 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 f
o

r 
co

un
ci

ls
 a

s 
th

ey
 r

es
p

o
nd

 t
o

 t
h

e 
m

aj
o

r 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 
fa

ci
n

g 
th

em
 

an
d 

th
e 

h
ig

h
er

 e
xp

ec
ta

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

th
em

.  
M

ak
in

g 
fu

rt
h

er
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 t
o 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 w

ill
 b

e 
cr

it
ic

al
 f

or
 c

o
un

ci
ls

 in
 r

es
p

on
di

n
g 

to
: t

he
 c

h
an

gi
n

g 

de
m

o
gr

ap
h

ic
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s,

 in
cr

ea
si

n
g 

pu
b

lic
 e

xp
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s 
of

 

p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ex
p

ec
te

d 
co

n
st

ra
in

ts
 o

n
 f

un
di

n
g 

fr
om

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t.
 

T
h

e 
ke

y 
lin

es
 o

f 
en

qu
ir

y 
gi

ve
 m

o
re

 e
m

ph
as

is
, m

ai
n

ly
 a

t 
le

ve
l 4

, t
o

 a
re

as
 s

uc
h

 
as

: s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
, w

or
ki

n
g 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

n
d 

us
in

g 
IT

 t
o

 s
ec

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
; s

tr
at

eg
ic

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
jo

in
t 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t.
  T

h
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

si
gn

al
 t

h
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e 

gi
ve

n
 m

o
re

 
em

p
h

as
is

 in
 t

h
e 

us
e 

o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
un

de
r 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t,

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 f

o
r 

lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
fr

o
m

 2
00

9.
 

. 

67



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 3
 

2 
A
pp
ro
ac
h 
an
d 
co
nt
ex
t 

2
.1
 
B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

E
ac

h
 ju

dg
em

en
t 

ar
ea

 (
th

em
e)

 c
o

n
si

st
s 

o
f 

a 
nu

m
b

er
 o

f 
ke

y 
lin

es
 o

f 
en

qu
ir

y 
an

d 
ar

ea
s 

o
f 

au
di

t 
fo

cu
s 

an
d 

ev
id

en
ce

.  
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

o
ns

 o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 e
ac

h
 k

ey
 li

n
e 

o
f 

en
qu

ir
y 

sh
o

w
in

g 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

t 
le

ve
ls

 

2,
 3

 a
n

d 
4.

  T
h

es
e 

tr
an

sl
at

e 
in

to
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ju

dg
em

en
ts

: 

L
e
v
e
l 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

1 
b

el
o

w
 m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 –
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

2 
o

n
ly

 a
t 

m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 –

 a
de

qu
at

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

3 
co

n
si

st
en

cy
 a

b
o

ve
 m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 –
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
w

el
l 

4 
w

el
l a

b
o

ve
 m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 –
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
st

ro
n

gl
y 

 T
h

e 
A

ud
it

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l u

se
 o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

sc
or

e 
b

y 

co
m

b
in

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

to
r’

s 
se

p
ar

at
e 

sc
o

re
s 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f 

th
e 

th
em

es
 c

o
ve

re
d.

 

In
 f

or
m

in
g 

o
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t,

 w
e 

n
ee

d 
to

 t
ak

e 
in

to
 a

cc
o

un
t 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

m
et

h
o

do
lo

gy
 t

h
at

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 t

h
e 

U
se

 o
f 

R
es

o
ur

ce
s 

G
ui

da
n

ce
 f

o
r 

C
o

un
ci

ls
 2

00
7.

  I
n

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r,

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 s
up

p
or

t 
sc

o
re

s 
o

f 
3 

an
d 

ab
o

ve
, w

e 

n
ee

d 
to

 c
o

ns
id

er
 w

h
et

h
er

 r
el

ev
an

t 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 ‘e
m

be
dd

ed
’ t

h
at

 is
, t

h
ey

 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 o

p
er

at
in

g 
co

ns
is

te
n

tl
y 

w
it

h
 c

le
ar

 o
ut

p
ut

s 
h

av
in

g 
an

 im
p

ac
t.

  F
or

 

sc
o

re
s 

o
f 

4 
(p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
st

ro
n

gl
y)

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o

 c
o

ns
id

er
 w

h
et

h
er

, i
n

 

ad
di

ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

ee
ti

n
g 

th
e 

cr
it

er
ia

, c
o

un
ci

ls
 c

an
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 in

n
o

va
ti

o
n

 o
r 

b
es

t 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

sh
ar

ed
 w

it
h

 o
th

er
 a

ut
h

or
it

ie
s,

 a
n

d 
al

so
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 t

h
at

 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
ta

ke
n

 h
av

e 
h

ad
 t

h
e 

de
si

re
d 

im
p

ac
t.

   

T
h

is
 r

ep
or

t 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

o
ur

 w
o

rk
. I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
in

te
n

de
d 

to
 c

o
ve

r 

ev
er

y 
is

su
e 

th
at

 h
as

 c
om

e 
to

 o
ur

 a
tt

en
ti

o
n

, b
ut

 r
at

h
er

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 t

h
at

 w
e 

h
av

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f 
o

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
. 

T
h

is
 r

ep
or

t 
is

 f
or

 c
o

ns
id

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l a
n

d 
it

s 
o

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d 

is
 f

or
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l’s
 u

se
 o

n
ly

 a
n

d 
sh

o
ul

d 
n

o
t 

b
e 

re
lie

d 
up

o
n

 b
y 

an
y 

th
ir

d 
p

ar
ti

es
. 

68



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 4
 

3 
K
LO
E
 1
: F
in
an
ci
al
 r
ep
or
tin
g 

3
.1
 
K
L
O
E
 1
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

T
h

e 
ta

b
le

 b
el

o
w

 g
iv

es
 t

h
e 

sc
o

re
s 

th
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l a

ch
ie

ve
d 

fo
r 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g 

du
ri

n
g 

th
e 

20
07

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
: 

T
a
b
le
 2
 

 K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

1.
1 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l p

ro
du

ce
s 

an
n

ua
l 

ac
co

un
ts

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h 

re
le

va
n

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

ti
m

et
ab

le
s,

 s
up

p
o

rt
in

g 
b

y 
co

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 w

o
rk

in
g 

p
ap

er
s 

3 
3 

1.
2 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l p

ro
m

ot
es

 e
xt

er
n

al
 

ac
co

un
ta

b
ili

ty
 

3 
3 

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

K
L

O
E

 1
 

3
 

3
 

 3
.2
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 1
.1
 -
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

T
h

e 
fi

rs
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ab
o

ve
 K

L
O

E
s 

ca
rr

ie
s 

a 
h

ig
h

er
 w

ei
gh

ti
n

g 
th

an
 t

h
e 

se
co

n
d 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l’s

 s
co

re
 o

n
 t

h
e 

an
nu

al
 a

cc
o

un
ts

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n

 

p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 f

un
da

m
en

ta
l i

n
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
th

e 
th

em
e 

sc
or

e 
fo

r 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g 
o

ve
ra

ll.
  

K
L

O
E

  1
.1

 f
o

cu
se

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 

p
ro

du
ce

 it
s 

an
n

ua
l a

cc
o

un
ts

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 r
el

ev
an

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

ti
m

et
ab

le
s 

an
d 

su
p

po
rt

in
g 

by
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 w
o

rk
in

g 
p

ap
er

s.
 W

it
h

 t
h

e 
us

e 
o

f 
au

di
to

r 
di

sc
re

ti
o

n
 t

h
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

 a
 L

ev
el

 3
 f

o
r 

it
s 

an
n

ua
l 

ac
co

un
ts

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n

. D
is

cr
et

io
n

 w
as

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
o

f 
th

er
e 

b
ei

n
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 t
h

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

s 
th

e 
re

su
lt

 o
f 

th
e 

in
co

rr
ec

t 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

o
f 

gr
an

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

fi
xe

d 
as

se
ts

. T
h

e 
gr

an
ts

 w
er

e 
tr

ea
te

d 
as

 

di
sp

os
al

s 
ra

th
er

 t
h

an
 a

s 
de

fe
rr

ed
 c

re
di

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ad
vi

ce
 o

f 
p

re
vi

o
us

 a
ud

it
o

rs
. 

T
h

is
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
is

 in
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ac

co
un

ti
n

g 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

as
 p

er
 t

h
e 

St
at

em
en

t 
of

 R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

(S
O

R
P

) 
20

06
. 

3
.3
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 1
.2
 -
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
il
it
y
 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l’s

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 K

L
O

E
 1

.2
 w

as
 le

ve
l 3

 w
it

h
 a

ll 
cr

it
er

ia
 b

ei
n

g 
m

et
. T

o
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 le

ve
l 4

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

ub
lis

h
 a

n
 a

n
n

ua
l r

ep
o

rt
 

w
h

ic
h

 in
cl

ud
es

 s
um

m
ar

y 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 k

ey
 f

in
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

.  

C
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 u
n

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l h
as

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 t

h
er

e 
is

 li
m

it
ed

 
su

p
p

or
t 

am
on

gs
t 

st
ak

eh
o

ld
er

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

ro
du

ct
io

n
 o

f 
su

ch
 a

 d
o

cu
m

en
t.

  

L
o

o
ki

n
g 

fo
rw

ar
ds

, t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l s

h
o

ul
d 

co
n

ti
n

ue
 t

o
 s

ee
k 

fe
ed

b
ac

k 
o

n
 t

h
e 

p
er

ce
iv

ed
 u

se
fu

ln
es

s 
o

f 
su

ch
 a

 r
ep

o
rt

 a
nd

, i
n

 d
o

in
g 

so
, c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
b

en
ef

it
s 

o
f 

p
ub

lis
h

in
g 

it
. 

69



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 5
 

4 
K
LO
E
 2
 F
in
an
ci
al
 m
an
ag
em
en
t 

4
.1
 
K
L
O
E
 2
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

T
h

e 
ta

b
le

 b
el

o
w

 g
iv

es
 t

h
e 

sc
o

re
s 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l a

ch
ie

ve
d 

fo
r 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

du
ri

n
g 

th
e 

20
06

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
: 

T
a
b
le
 3
 

K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

2.
1 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l’s

 m
ed

iu
m

-t
er

m
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
st

ra
te

gy
, b

ud
ge

ts
 a

n
d 

ca
p

it
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ar
e 

so
un

dl
y 

b
as

ed
 a

n
d 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o

 d
el

iv
er

 
it

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

ri
ti

es
 

3 
3 

2.
2 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l m

an
ag

es
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ag
ai

n
st

 b
ud

ge
ts

 
2 

2 

2.
3 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l m

an
ag

es
 it

s 
as

se
t 

b
as

e 
3 

3 

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

K
L

O
E

 2
 

3
 

3
 

 T
h

e 
K

L
O

E
s 

ea
ch

 c
ar

ry
 a

n
 e

qu
al

 w
ei

gh
ti

n
g 

in
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

th
em

e 

sc
o

re
. 

4
.2
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 2
.1
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
 a

 s
co

re
 o

f 
L

ev
el

 3
 f

or
 t

h
is

 K
L

O
E

. 

T
o

 e
n

ab
le

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l t

o
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 le

ve
l 4

 in
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l n
ee

ds
 

to
 t

ak
e 

an
 a

ct
iv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
o

th
er

 s
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
s 

an
d 

to
 

m
en

ti
o

n
 p

la
ns

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
M

T
F

S.
  T

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l w
o

ul
d 

al
so

 n
ee

d 
to

 m
o

n
it

or
 

it
s 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 t
o

 d
em

o
n

st
ra

te
 t

h
at

 it
 is

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

it
s 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

ct
iv

es
. 

4
.3
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 2
.2
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

K
L

O
E

 2
.2

 is
 la

rg
el

y 
p

ro
ce

ss
 d

ri
ve

n
 a

n
d 

re
qu

ir
es

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l t

o
 h

av
e 

a 
se

ri
es

 

o
f 

b
ud

ge
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

m
o

n
it

or
in

g 
te

ch
n

iq
ue

s 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
 a

 L
ev

el
 2

 s
co

re
 f

o
r 

th
is

 K
L

O
E

. I
n

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 L
ev

el
 3

, f
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

of
 b

ud
ge

t 
m

o
ni

to
ri

n
g 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n

 t
h

e 
w

or
k 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

o
r 

al
re

ad
y 

co
m

p
le

te
d 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a.
 

4
.4
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 K
L
O
E
 2
.3
: 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
b
a
s
e
 

T
h

is
 K

L
O

E
 is

 c
o

n
ce

rn
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o

f 
th

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 t
h

at
 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 m

an
ag

e 
it

s 
as

se
t 

po
rt

fo
lio

. 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
 a

 le
ve

l 3
 s

co
re

 in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a.
   

T
o

 m
ov

e 
to

 le
ve

l 4
, t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l n
ee

ds
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 e

vi
de

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

us
e 

o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
an

d 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
n

g 
in

 it
s 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t.
 

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
o

n
si

de
r 

th
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
b

en
ef

it
s 

o
f 

ad
dr

es
si

n
g 

th
es

e 
is

su
es

. 

70



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 6
 

5 
K
LO
E
 3
 F
in
an
ci
al
 S
ta
nd
in
g 

5
.1
 
K
L
O
E
 3
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

T
h

e 
ta

b
le

 b
el

o
w

 g
iv

es
 t

h
e 

sc
o

re
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fo

r 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
St

an
di

n
g 

du
ri

n
g 

th
e 

20
07

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
: 

T
a
b
le
 4
 

 K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

3.
1 

H
o

w
 w

el
l d

o
es

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l s

af
eg

ua
rd

 
it

s 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

n
di

n
g 

3 
3 

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

K
L

O
E

 3
 

3
 

3
 

 D
es

p
it

e 
th

er
e 

b
ei

n
g 

o
nl

y 
o

ne
 K

L
O

E
 in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

n
di

n
g 

it
 d

o
es

 
co

un
t 

fo
r 

o
n

e 
fi

ft
h

 o
f 

th
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

sc
o

re
, r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
th

e 
im

p
o

rt
an

ce
 o

f 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

 5
.2
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 K
L
O
E
 3
.1
 -
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
ta
n
d
in
g
 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
, f

or
 t

h
e 

th
ir

d 
ye

ar
 r

un
n

in
g,

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
a 

st
ro

n
g 

le
ve

l 3
 s

co
re

 
in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a,

 m
ee

ti
n

g 
al

l l
ev

el
 2

 a
n

d 
3 

cr
it

er
ia

. 

 In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ab

le
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

tr
o

n
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

M
em

b
er

s 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
ke

y 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 h
ea

lt
h

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

n
d 

se
tt

in
g 

ch
al

le
n

gi
n

g 
ta

rg
et

s 
th

at
 it

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 m

ee
ts

 a
n

d 
th

e 
ke

y 
o

ut
co

m
es

 t
h

at
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

o
f 

th
is

. T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

o
n

si
de

r 
th

e 
co

st
s 

an
d 

b
en

ef
it

s 
o

f 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
le

ve
l 4

. 

71



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 7
 

6 
K
LO
E
 4
 In
te
rn
al
 c
on
tr
ol
 

6
.1
 
K
L
O
E
 4
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

T
h

e 
ta

b
le

 b
el

o
w

 g
iv

es
 t

h
e 

sc
o

re
s 

th
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l a

ch
ie

ve
d 

fo
r 

In
te

rn
al

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
07

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
: 

T
a
b
le
 5
 

 K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

4.
1 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l m

an
ag

es
 it

s 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
b

us
in

es
s 

ri
sk

s 
2 

2 

4.
2 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 
to

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 a

 s
o

un
d 

sy
st

em
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 

co
n

tr
o

l 

2 
2 

4.
3 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 
th

at
 a

re
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
an

d 
en

su
re

 
p

ro
b

it
y 

in
 t

h
e 

co
n

du
ct

 o
f 

it
s 

b
us

in
es

s 

2 
3 

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

K
L

O
E

 4
 

2
 

2
 

 

T
h

e 
th

re
e 

K
L

O
E

s 
ar

e 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

eq
ua

lly
 a

n
d 

h
en

ce
 t

h
e 

sc
o

re
 f

or
 I

nt
er

n
al

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l o
ve

ra
ll 

is
 b

ui
lt

 u
p

 a
s 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
th

re
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

co
re

s.
 

6
.2
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 4
.1
 -
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
h

e 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
K

L
O

E
 is

 d
es

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 a
 v

ie
w

 a
s 

to
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o

f 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l’s

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

, a
n

d 
in

 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

is
 c

o
n

ce
rn

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ex

te
n

t 
o

f 
se

n
io

r 
of

fi
ce

r 
an

d 
m

em
b

er
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t.

 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l r

ec
or

de
d 

L
ev

el
 2

 f
o

r 
th

is
 K

L
O

E
. 

L
o

o
ki

n
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 n

ex
t 

ye
ar

’s
 ju

dg
em

en
ts

, t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l n

ee
ds

 t
o

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 a
ll 

ap
p

ro
pr

ia
te

 o
ff

ic
er

s 

an
d 

m
em

b
er

s 
an

d 
th

at
 t

h
e 

ne
w

ly
 in

tr
o

du
ce

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 f

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 is

 

id
en

ti
fy

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

s 
re

la
ti

n
g 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l's
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

an
d 

th
at

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

b
ei

n
g 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
an

d 
m

an
ag

ed
  a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
. 

6
.3
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 4
.2
 -
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 

T
h

is
 K

L
O

E
 e

n
co

m
p

as
se

s 
a 

se
ri

es
 o

f 
in

di
vi

du
al

 t
o

p
ic

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
St

at
em

en
t 

o
n

 I
nt

er
n

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l (
th

e 
SI

C
),

 t
h

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

A
ud

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e,

 t
h

e 

qu
al

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 f

un
ct

io
n

 a
nd

 t
h

e 
co

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
of

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 

n
o

te
s 

an
d 

o
th

er
 s

ta
n

da
rd

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 w

h
ic

h
, w

h
en

 c
o

n
si

de
re

d 
to

ge
th

er
, 

co
n

st
it

ut
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l’s
 c

o
n

tr
o

l e
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t.

 

  

72



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 8
 

C
o

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r,
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l s
co

re
d 

le
ve

l 2
 f

o
r 

th
is

 K
lo

E
. 

T
h

e 
ke

y 
ar

ea
 f

o
r 

de
ve

lo
p

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l i

s 
th

at
 a

s 
at

 t
h

e 
31

 M
ar

ch
 

20
07

 it
 h

ad
 n

ot
 g

o
t 

it
s 

fo
rm

al
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 in
 p

la
ce

. T
h

is
 is

 a
n

 

es
se

n
ti

al
 L

ev
el

 3
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t.

  

6
.4
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 4
.3
 -
 p
ro
b
it
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
ri
e
ty
 

K
L

O
E

 4
.3

 is
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l’s

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

en
su

ri
n

g 

th
at

 p
ro

b
it

y 
an

d 
pr

o
pr

ie
ty

 a
re

 p
ro

m
ot

ed
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

co
n

du
ct

 o
f 

it
s 

b
us

in
es

s.
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l m
et

 le
ve

l 3
 in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a 

w
h

ic
h

 is
 a

n
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

o
n

 it
s 

20
06

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t.

 T
h

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

is
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l 

de
m

o
n

st
ra

ti
n

g 
th

ro
ug

h
 t

h
e 

w
o

rk
 o

f 
it

s 
h

o
us

in
g 

b
en

ef
it

 f
ra

ud
 t

ea
m

 t
h

at
 it

s 

co
un

te
r 

fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

ti
on

 w
o

rk
 is

 u
n

de
rp

in
n

ed
 b

y 
fo

rm
al

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 a

n
d 

th
at

 it
 is

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

re
so

ur
ce

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
.  

73



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 9
 

7 
K
LO
E
 5
: V
al
ue
 fo
r 
m
on
ey
 

7
.1
 
K
L
O
E
 5
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

T
h

e 
ta

b
le

 b
el

o
w

 g
iv

es
 t

h
e 

sc
o

re
s 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l a

ch
ie

ve
d 

fo
r 

V
al

ue
 f

or
 

M
o

n
ey

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
07

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
: 

T
a
b
le
 6
 

 K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

5.
1 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l c

ur
re

n
tl

y 
ac

h
ie

ve
s 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 

3 
3 

5.
2 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l m

an
ag

es
 a

nd
 im

p
ro

ve
s 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
3 

3 

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

K
L

O
E

 5
 

3
 

3
 

T
h

e 
fi

rs
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ab
o

ve
 t

w
o

 K
L

O
E

s 
ca

rr
ie

s 
a 

h
ig

h
er

 w
ei

gh
ti

n
g 

th
an

 t
h

e 

se
co

n
d 

an
d 

th
us

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l’s

 s
co

re
 o

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 o
r 

n
o

t 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 is

 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
ac

h
ie

ve
d 

is
 f

un
da

m
en

ta
l i

n
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
th

e 
th

em
e 

sc
o

re
 f

o
r 

V
al

ue
 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 o
ve

ra
ll.

 

W
e 

se
t 

o
ut

 b
el

o
w

 t
h

e 
m

ai
n

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 a

n
d 

ke
y 

b
ar

ri
er

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l i

n
 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g 

th
e 

n
ex

t 
L

ev
el

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
K

L
O

E
s 

gi
ve

n
 a

bo
ve

. 

7
.2
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 
K
L
O
E
 5
.1
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

K
L

O
E

 5
.1

 is
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 f
o

rm
 a

 v
ie

w
 o

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
C

ou
n

ci
l c

ur
re

n
tl

y 

ac
h

ie
ve

s 
V

al
ue

 f
o

r 
M

o
n

ey
 in

 it
s 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
 b

o
th

 w
it

h
 r

eg
ar

ds
 t

o
 t

h
e 

b
ac

k 
o

ff
ic

e 
an

d 
al

so
 t

h
e 

pr
o

vi
si

o
n 

o
f 

fr
o

n
t 

lin
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 r

em
ai

n
ed

 u
n

ch
an

ge
d 

at
 le

ve
l 3

 f
o

r 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ye

ar
. T

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l h
as

 n
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
a 

L
ev

el
 4

 s
co

re
 in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a 

as
, a

lt
h

o
ug

h
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 g

en
er

al
ly

 h
ig

h
, s

o
m

e 
sp

ec
if

ic
 a

re
as

 o
f 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
re

m
ai

n
. A

ls
o

, t
h

er
e 

is
 r

o
om

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

er
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

in
 t

h
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ca
p

it
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 s
p

ec
if

ic
al

ly
 in

 e
n

su
ri

n
g 

th
at

 c
ap

it
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 

co
m

p
le

te
d 

o
n-

ti
m

e 
an

d 
to

 b
ud

ge
t.

 T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

im
p

ro
ve

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 b
ei

n
g 

p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 e

ff
ec

t 
fr

om
 

20
07

-8
. 

7
.3
 
K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 K
L
O
E
 5
.2
 -
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

K
L

O
E

 5
.2

 h
as

 m
or

e 
o

f 
a 

fo
rw

ar
d 

lo
o

ki
n

g 
fo

cu
s 

th
an

 5
.1

 a
n

d 
is

 c
o

n
ce

rn
ed

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l h
as

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 b
o

th
 m

an
ag

e 
an

d 

im
p

ro
ve

 V
al

ue
 f

or
 M

o
n

ey
. 

T
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

le
ve

l 3
 f

o
r 

th
is

 K
L

O
E

 a
s 

in
 t

he
 2

00
6 

as
se

ss
m

en
t.

 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
le

ve
l 4

 f
o

r 
th

is
 K

L
O

E
 w

o
ul

d 
in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l 

ev
id

en
ci

n
g 

th
at

 it
 c

o
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 d
ev

el
o

p
 a

n
d 

im
p

ro
ve

 it
s 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 a
n

d 
of

fe
rs

 b
es

t 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a.
 

. 

74



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

A
 
A
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 

T
h

is
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 in
cl

ud
es

 o
n

ly
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
in

te
n

de
d 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l i

n 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
im

pr
o

ve
m

en
ts

 t
o

 d
em

o
ns

tr
at

e 
co

m
p

lia
nc

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
n

ex
t 

le
ve

l w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
U

se
 o

f 
R

es
o

ur
ce

s 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 T
h

e 
ac

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 d
o

es
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

o
n

s 
ar

o
un

d 
th

os
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 c
o

n
si

de
re

d 
as

 
le

ve
l 4

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

. I
t 

is
 f

or
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l t
o

 c
o

ns
id

er
 t

h
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
b

en
ef

it
s 

o
f 

fu
rt

h
er

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

e 
U

se
 o

f 
R

es
o

ur
ce

s 
sc

or
in

g 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

, p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
w

h
er

e 
th

is
 w

ill
 r

es
ul

t 
in

 t
h

e 
ac

h
ie

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

le
ve

l 4
. 

 R
e
f 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

K
L
O
E
 2
.2
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 A
g
a
in
s
t 
B
u
d
g
e
t 

1
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
ts
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
t 
m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 U
o
R
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 b
y
 a
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

 

1
 

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 b
u
t 
a
 

fo
rm
a
l 
ri
s
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
to
 

fo
c
u
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
c
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 

K
L
O
E
 4
.1
. 
R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

2
 

R
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

 

1
 

A
ll 
H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
A
n
y
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
h
o
 m
is
s
e
d
 

b
o
th
 t
ra
in
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
ri
e
fe
d
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
. 

A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 

K
L
O
E
 4
.2
. 
S
y
s
te
m
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 

3
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
O
n
c
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
t 

in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 a
 f
lu
id
 l
iv
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
is
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
tl
y
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
ri
s
k
s
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
.  
 

1
 

A
n
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

P
a
n
e
l 
o
n
 2
6
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
o
lic
y
 

2
6
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 

75



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

B
 
K
ey
 c
ha
ng
es
 fo
r 
20
08
 a
ss
es
sm
en
t 

T
h

is
 t

ab
le

 s
um

m
ar

is
es

 w
h

er
e 

th
er

e 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 a

n
y 

m
at

er
ia

l c
h

an
ge

s 
to

 t
h

e 
K

L
O

E
s 

si
n

ce
 2

00
7:

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

1.
1 

R
em

o
ve

d 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 o
n

 f
in

al
 a

cc
o

un
ts

 c
lo

se
do

w
n

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

le
va

n
t 

ti
m

et
ab

le
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
au

di
to

r 
an

d 
al

lo
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ta

sk
s 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
st

af
f,

 w
er

e 
ad

h
er

ed
 t

o
. 

2 

1.
1 

A
dd

ed
 a

dd
it

io
n

al
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

ga
ve

 a
n

 u
n

qu
al

if
ie

d 
op

in
io

n
 in

 t
h

e 
pu

b
lis

h
ed

 a
cc

o
un

ts
. 

2 

1.
2 

A
dd

ed
 a

dd
it

io
n

al
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

to
 h

av
e 

th
e 

ag
en

da
, r

ep
o

rt
s 

an
d 

m
in

ut
es

 f
or

 m
ee

ti
n

gs
 t

o
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 f
o

rm
at

s 
ap

pr
o

p
ri

at
e 

to
 

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 d

ut
ie

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n
. 

2 

1.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
an

n
ua

l r
ep

or
t 

or
 s

im
ila

r 
do

cu
m

en
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
 in

 a
 w

id
e 

va
ri

et
y 

o
f 

fo
rm

at
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

lo
ca

l 
us

er
 n

ee
ds

 (
fo

r 
ex

am
p

le
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
la

n
gu

ag
es

, l
ar

ge
 p

ri
n

t,
 s

p
ea

ki
n

g 
ve

rs
io

n
).

 

 A
dd

ed
 a

dd
it

io
n

al
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

to
 h

av
e 

th
e 

an
n

ua
l r

ep
or

t 
o

r 
si

m
ila

r 
do

cu
m

en
t 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d 

an
al

ys
is

 a
b

o
ut

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l's

 e
n

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l f

o
ot

p
ri

n
t.

 

4 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

em
e
n

t 

2.
1 

A
dd

ed
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

th
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l h

as
 u

n
de

rt
ak

en
 e

qu
al

it
ie

s 
im

p
ac

t 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

f 
it

s 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
n

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

s 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 a
n

d 
im

p
ac

t 
th

es
e 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
o

n
 it

s 
di

ve
rs

e 
po

p
ul

at
io

n
. 

2 

76



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

2.
1 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

at
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

re
 a

n
n

ua
lly

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 in

 li
gh

t 
of

 t
h

e 
re

as
o

ns
 f

or
 a

n
d 

co
ns

eq
ue

n
ce

s 
o

f 
th

e 
p

re
vi

o
us

 y
ea

r'
s 

ou
tt

ur
n

 a
nd

 
ar

e 
lin

ke
d 

to
 t

h
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 t
er

m
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

2 

2.
1 

R
em

o
ve

d 
b

ud
ge

t 
h

o
ld

er
s 

ar
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

b
ud

ge
t 

se
tt

in
g 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 

 R
em

o
ve

d 
th

at
 e

ac
h

 c
ap

it
al

 a
n

d 
re

ve
n

ue
 b

ud
ge

t 
is

 a
ss

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 m

an
ag

er
 b

es
t 

ab
le

 t
o

 u
se

 a
n

d 
co

nt
ro

l i
t.

 

2 

2.
1 

A
dd

ed
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

th
at

 b
ud

ge
ts

 a
re

 li
n

ke
d 

to
 o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 t
h

at
 a

re
 le

ad
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f 

sp
en

d.
 

3 

2.
1 

A
dd

ed
 a

dd
it

io
n

al
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

th
at

 t
h

e 
M

T
F

S 
m

o
de

ls
 r

ev
en

ue
 it

em
s 

us
in

g 
di

ff
er

en
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g 

sc
en

ar
io

s 
(f

or
 e

xa
m

p
le

 b
es

t 
an

d 
w

o
rs

t 
 c

as
e 

an
d 

m
o

st
 li

ke
ly

) 
an

d 
lin

ks
 t

h
is

 t
o

 it
s 

ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

ep
o

rt
s.

 
4 

2.
1 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
th

at
 t

h
e 

co
un

ci
l i

de
nt

if
ie

s 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 t
h

at
 m

ay
 im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 it

s 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 a

n
d 

pr
o

ac
ti

ve
ly

 m
an

ag
es

 t
h

em
. 

4 

2.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 u
se

 a
gr

ee
d 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 t

o
 a

dj
us

t 
an

d 
ap

p
ro

ve
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 y
ea

r 
if

 m
aj

or
 

p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
re

 v
ar

ie
d 

b
y 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 p
re

 s
et

 t
o

le
ra

n
ce

s.
 

3 

2.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l t

o
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 it

 c
ar

ri
es

 o
ut

 r
eg

ul
ar

 t
es

ti
n

g 
o

f 
it

s 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

re
p

o
rt

 
o

ut
p

ut
s 

ar
e 

ti
m

el
y,

 a
cc

ur
at

e,
 r

el
ia

b
le

, c
le

ar
, i

n
 a

 c
o

n
ve

n
ie

n
t 

fo
rm

at
 (

h
ar

d 
co

p
y 

an
d 

on
lin

e,
 in

 s
um

m
ar

y 
an

d 
in

 d
et

ai
l, 

as
 

ap
p

ro
pr

ia
te

) 
an

d 
re

ad
ily

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

b
y 

th
ei

r 
re

ci
p

ie
n

ts
. 

4 

2.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 c
o

ns
ul

t 
w

it
h

, a
dv

is
e 

an
d 

tr
ai

n
 u

se
rs

 s
o

 t
h

at
 it

 d
ev

el
o

ps
 a

n
d 

pr
o

vi
de

s 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

n
ee

ds
. 

 R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
n

ee
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 h

av
e 

sa
vi

n
gs

 a
n

d 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 g
ai

n
s 

b
ei

n
g 

p
ro

fi
le

d 
o

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
n

d 
th

er
e 

is
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 t
h

e 
p

er
io

d 
b

y 
m

em
b

er
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
ei

r 
ac

h
ie

ve
m

en
t.

 

4 

2.
3 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
 s

et
 o

f 
lo

ca
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 a

ss
et

s 
th

at
 

ev
al

ua
te

 a
ss

et
 u

se
 in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 c

o
rp

or
at

e 
o

b
je

ct
iv

es
. 

3 

77



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

2.
3 

A
dd

ed
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l's

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pl

an
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

cl
ea

r 
fo

rw
ar

d 
lo

o
ki

n
g 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
go

al
s 

fo
r 

it
s 

pr
o

p
er

ty
 

as
se

ts
 t

h
at

 s
h

o
w

s 
h

o
w

 t
h

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 la

n
d 

an
d 

b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

n
d 

de
ve

lo
p

ed
 t

o
 h

el
p

 d
el

iv
er

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ri

or
it

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

n
ee

ds
, n

o
w

 a
n

d 
in

 t
h

e 
fu

tu
re

. T
h

e 
p

la
n

 s
h

o
w

s 
h

o
w

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 a

ss
et

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
, m

od
er

n
is

ed
 a

n
d 

ra
ti

o
n

al
is

ed
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
fi

t 
fo

r 
p

ur
p

o
se

. 

3 

2.
3 

A
dd

ed
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l m

ai
n

ta
in

s 
a 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
al

l o
f 

it
s 

la
n

d 
an

d 
b

ui
ld

in
gs

 t
h

at
 c

o
n

ta
in

s 
ac

cu
ra

te
 d

at
a 

on
 it

s 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

, e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s,

 a
ss

et
 v

al
ue

 a
n

d 
ru

n
n

in
g 

co
st

s 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o

 s
up

p
o

rt
 d

ec
is

io
n

 m
ak

in
g 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
an

d 
di

si
n

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 p
ro

p
er

ty
. 

3 

2.
3 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

an
d 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g 

b
ei

n
g 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 

st
ak

eh
o

ld
er

s 
w

h
er

e 
re

le
va

n
t. 

4 

2.
3 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 f
o

r 
th

e 
co

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 o
f 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d 

it
s 

in
te

gr
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 r

el
ev

an
t 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

4 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
st

a
n

d
in

g
 

3.
1 

A
dd

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
co

un
ci

l's
 a

p
pr

o
ve

d 
le

ve
l o

f 
b

al
an

ce
s 

is
 a

dh
er

ed
 t

o
 a

n
d 

en
su

re
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
n

di
n

g 
is

 s
o

un
d 

an
d 

su
p

p
or

ts
 t

h
e 

co
un

ci
l i

n
 t

h
e 

ac
h

ie
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
it

s 
lo

n
g 

te
rm

 o
b

je
ct

iv
es

. 

 A
dd

it
io

n
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l's
 t

ar
ge

ts
 f

o
r 

in
co

m
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n
 a

n
d 

re
co

ve
ry

 o
f 

ar
re

ar
s 

st
re

tc
h

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
th

ei
r 

ac
h

ie
ve

m
en

t 
is

 m
on

it
or

ed
 w

it
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

co
rr

ec
ti

ve
 a

ct
io

n
 t

ak
en

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 t
o 

ac
h

ie
ve

 t
h

e 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

3 

In
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

4.
1 

A
dd

ed
 t

h
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

al
l b

us
in

es
s 

ri
sk

s 
to

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 t
o

 n
am

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
to

 le
ad

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ac

ti
o

ns
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
o

 m
it

ig
at

e 
ea

ch
 r

is
k.

 
2 

4.
1 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 c
o

ns
id

er
 p

o
si

ti
ve

 a
n

d 
n

eg
at

iv
e 

ri
sk

s.
 

4 

4.
1 

A
dd

ed
 a

dd
it

io
n

al
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

to
 r

ep
o

rt
 t

o
 s

up
po

rt
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
o

lic
y 

de
ci

si
o

n
s,

 a
n

d 
in

it
ia

ti
o

n
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 f

or
 a

ll 
m

aj
o

r 
4 

78



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

p
ro

je
ct

s,
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 im
p

ac
t 

ap
p

ra
is

al
. 

4.
2 

O
ve

ra
ll 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

ch
an

ge
d 

fo
cu

s 
fr

om
 t

h
e 

SI
C

 t
o

 t
h

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
ta

te
m

en
t.

 
A

ll 

4.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
al

l r
ep

or
ts

 t
o

 m
em

b
er

s 
to

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 f
o

rm
al

ly
 c

o
ns

id
er

ed
 f

o
r 

le
ga

l i
ss

ue
s 

b
ef

or
e 

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

. 
2 

4.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
al

l p
ro

ce
du

re
 m

an
ua

ls
 f

or
 k

ey
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
b

ei
n

g 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

n
d 

up
da

te
d 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 

 R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
st

an
di

n
g 

or
de

rs
, s

ta
nd

in
g 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 a

n
d 

sc
h

em
e 

o
f 

de
le

ga
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
n

d 
up

da
te

d 
as

 a
p

pr
o

p
ri

at
e.

 

3 

4.
2 

A
n

 a
dd

it
io

n
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 h
av

e 
an

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

fu
n

ct
io

n 
to

 e
n

su
re

 c
o

ns
tr

uc
ti

ve
 c

h
al

le
n

ge
 a

n
d 

en
h

an
ce

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

ra
ll.

 
3 

4.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 o
bt

ai
n

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

n
 a

 r
is

k 
b

as
is

 o
f 

th
e 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

it
s 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

co
n

tr
ac

to
rs

/p
ar

tn
er

s 
b

us
in

es
s 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 p

la
ns

. 
4 

4.
3 

A
dd

ed
 t

h
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 h

av
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
h

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 f
or

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

co
de

 o
f 

co
n

du
ct

 a
n

d 
us

e 
o

f 
IT

 r
es

o
ur

ce
s.

 
2 

4.
3 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
h

at
 m

em
b

er
s 

of
 t

h
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
ar

e 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
 in

 
lo

ca
l i

n
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

n
d 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 s

up
p

or
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
lo

ca
l i

n
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

n
d 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n
s.

 

2 

4.
3 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 h
av

e 
a 

st
ro

n
g 

co
un

te
r 

fr
au

d 
cu

lt
ur

e 
th

at
 is

 s
up

p
o

rt
ed

 a
n

d 
pr

o
m

ot
ed

 b
y 

m
em

b
er

s 
an

d 
se

n
io

r 
of

fi
ce

rs
. 

3 

4.
3 

A
dd

it
io

n
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
is

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 o

p
en

ly
 t

o
 a

 w
id

er
 p

ub
lic

.  
W

h
er

e 
ap

p
ro

pr
ia

te
, t

h
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 t

ak
en

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 a

ct
io

n
, l

ea
rn

in
g 

fr
om

 is
su

es
 a

ri
si

n
g 

fr
om

 lo
ca

l i
n

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 a
n

d 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

 
3 

4.
3 

R
em

o
va

l o
f 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 h

av
e 

a 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 f

o
r 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ac

ti
on

 in
 r

es
p

o
ns

e 
to

 w
h

is
tl

eb
lo

w
in

g 
4 

79



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s.

  T
h

er
e 

ar
e 

p
er

io
di

c 
re

vi
ew

s 
o

f 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 t

h
e 

w
h

is
lt

eb
lo

w
in

g 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

. 

4.
3 

A
dd

it
io

n
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 d
em

o
n

st
ra

te
 it

s 
st

af
f,

 a
n

d 
st

af
f 

w
it

h
in

 c
o

n
tr

ac
ti

n
g 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s,

 h
av

e 
co

n
fi

de
n

ce
 

in
 t

h
e 

w
h

is
tl

eb
lo

w
in

g 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 a
n

d 
fe

el
 s

af
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

a 
di

sc
lo

su
re

. 
4 

4.
3 

A
dd

ed
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

to
 h

av
e 

al
l a

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
or

m
s 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d 
b

en
ef

it
s 

to
 h

av
e 

an
 a

p
p

ro
pr

ia
te

 f
ai

r 
pr

o
ce

ss
in

g 

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n 

p
er

m
it

ti
n

g 
da

ta
 s

h
ar

in
g 

fo
r 

p
re

ve
n

ti
on

 a
n

d 
de

te
ct

io
n

 o
f 

fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

ti
o

n
 (

bo
th

 a
ct

in
g 

as
 a

 d
et

er
re

n
t 

to
 

fr
au

ds
te

rs
 a

n
d 

fa
ci

lit
at

in
g 

th
e 

ex
te

n
si

o
n

 o
f 

N
F

I 
in

to
 n

ew
 a

re
as

).
  

4 

4.
3 

R
em

o
va

l o
f 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

to
 d

em
o

ns
tr

at
e 

th
at

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 a

ct
io

n
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 t
ak

en
 t

o
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

p
ot

en
ti

al
 s

av
in

gs
 a

va
ila

b
le

 

th
ro

ug
h 

N
F

I.
 

4 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 

5.
1 

D
el

et
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

p
o

si
ti

ve
 r

el
at

io
ns

h
ip

 b
et

w
ee

n
 c

o
st

s 
an

d 
ra

n
ge

, r
at

h
er

 c
o

st
s 

ar
e 

co
m

m
en

su
ra

te
 w

it
h

 

th
e 

ra
n

ge
. 

2 

5.
1 

R
em

o
va

l o
f 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

o
ut

co
m

es
 f

ro
m

 it
s 

ca
p

it
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 

o
b

je
ct

iv
es

.  
W

h
er

e 
ca

p
it

al
 r

es
o

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
in

ve
st

ed
, t

h
er

e 
ar

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ab

le
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y.

 
4 

5.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 h
av

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
o

 p
ro

du
ce

 r
el

ia
b

le
 d

at
a.

 
2 

5.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 c
o

lle
ct

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
n

ee
ds

 o
f,

 a
n

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

it
s 

de
ci

si
o

ns
 o

n
, d

iv
er

se
 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s.
  I

t 
is

 b
eg

in
n

in
g 

to
 u

se
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

n
d 

V
F

M
. 

2 

80



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

5.
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 in
 p

la
ce

 f
o

r 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

an
d 

im
pr

o
vi

n
g 

V
F

M
. 

2 

5.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 s
o

m
e 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 V
F

M
 in

 r
ec

en
t 

ye
ar

s.
 

2 

5.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
se

t 
an

d 
ap

p
lie

d 
to

 im
pr

o
ve

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
. 

2 

5.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
in

te
rn

al
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

ca
rr

ie
d 

o
ut

 (
in

 li
n

e 
w

it
h

 B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n

) 
an

d 
ac

h
ie

ve
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 v
al

ue
. 

2 

5.
2 

A
dd

ed
 t

h
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 h

av
e 

so
m

e 
un

de
rs

ta
n

di
n

g 
o

f 
it

s 
lo

n
g-

te
rm

 c
os

ts
 a

n
d 

b
en

ef
it

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l a

n
d 

so
ci

al
. T

h
er

e 
is

 s
o

m
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

th
es

e 
b

ei
n

g 
ta

ke
n

 in
to

 a
cc

o
un

t 
in

 d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g.
 

2 

5.
2 

A
dd

ed
 t

h
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 f
o

r 
T

h
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
m

ak
in

g 
so

m
e 

us
e 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 V

F
M

. I
t 

h
as

 s
o

m
e 

un
de

rs
ta

n
di

n
g 

o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l r
es

o
ur

ce
s 

at
 t

h
e 

di
sp

os
al

 o
f 

it
s 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s.
 

2 

5.
2 

T
h

er
e 

is
 a

 n
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 m
ak

e 
so

m
e 

us
e 

o
f 

IT
 b

o
th

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 it
s 

o
w

n
 V

F
M

 a
nd

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

se
rv

ic
es

 f
o

r 
us

er
s.

 
2 

5.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
go

o
d 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
 p

ro
du

ce
 r

el
ia

b
le

 d
at

a.
 

3 

5.
2 

 
R

em
o

ve
d 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

to
 h

av
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 e
qu

it
y 

an
d 

us
in

g 
th

is
 t

o
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

pr
o

m
o

te
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 
ac

ro
ss

 c
om

m
un

it
y 

an
d 

re
p

la
ce

d 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
co

un
ci

l c
o

lle
ct

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
n

ee
ds

 o
f 

an
d 

th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

of
 it

s 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 o
n

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

gr
o

up
s 

an
d 

is
 u

si
n

g 
th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 V

F
M

, o
ut

co
m

es
 a

n
d 

ac
ce

ss
 

3 

81



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

5.
2 

R
em

o
vi

n
g 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g 

an
d 

im
pr

o
vi

n
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 b
ei

n
g 

em
b

ed
de

d 
in

 t
h

e 
co

un
ci

l's
 c

ul
tu

re
, f

o
r 

ex
am

p
le

, t
h

ro
ug

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
p

p
ra

is
al

 s
ys

te
m

. 
3 

5.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
cl

ea
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 V
F

M
, p

ar
ti

cu
la

rl
y 

in
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

as
, i

n
 r

ec
en

t 
ye

ar
s.

 
3 

5.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
cl

ea
r 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
h

at
 t

he
 c

o
un

ci
l s

et
s 

an
d 

ac
h

ie
ve

s 
am

b
it

io
us

 t
ar

ge
ts

 a
n

d 
to

 im
pr

o
ve

 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 a

n
d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
ne

y 
co

rp
o

ra
te

ly
 a

n
d 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  T
ar

ge
ts

 a
re

 u
se

d 
'in

te
lli

ge
n

tl
y'

 t
o

 r
ef

le
ct

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t.

 

3 

5.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 h
av

e 
pr

o
du

ce
d 

an
d 

b
e 

de
liv

er
in

g 
o

n
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 p

la
n

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
t 

le
as

t 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 R

ev
ie

w
 t

ar
ge

t 
o

f 
7.

5 
p

er
 c

en
t 

ga
in

s 
o

ve
r 

a 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d.

 
3 

5.
2 

R
em

o
ve

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
an

d 
id

en
ti

fi
ab

le
 s

av
in

gs
 t

h
at

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

an
d 

in
te

rn
al

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
w

it
h

o
ut

 u
n

in
te

n
de

d 
lo

ss
 o

f 
qu

al
it

y.
 

3 

5.
2 

A
dd

ed
 t

h
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 h

av
e 

ev
al

ua
te

d 
it

s 
us

e 
o

f 
p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 V

F
M

. I
t 

h
as

 a
n

 u
n

de
rs

ta
n

di
n

g 
o

f 
to

ta
l r

es
o

ur
ce

s 
at

 t
h

e 
di

sp
o

sa
l o

f 
it

s 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
h

ic
h

 it
 is

 u
si

n
g 

to
 s

up
p

o
rt

 c
le

ar
ly

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 
3 

5.
2 

T
h

e 
n

ew
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 u

se
 I

T
 t

o
 d

ri
ve

 a
n

d 
en

ab
le

 b
us

in
es

s 
pr

o
ce

ss
 c

h
an

ge
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 b

o
th

 it
s 

o
w

n
 V

F
M

 a
n

d 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
us

er
s.

 
3 

82



 ©
 2
0
0
8
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
. 
A
ll
 r
ig
h
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
d
 

 

K
L
O
E
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 

5.
2 

T
h

e 
n

ew
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o
 h

av
e 

ex
em

p
la

ry
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
o

 p
ro

du
ce

 r
el

ia
b

le
 d

at
a.

 I
t 

h
as

 a
n

 a
gr

ee
d 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 

w
it

h
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 r

el
ia

b
le

 d
at

a.
 

4 

5.
2 

T
h

e 
re

m
o

va
l o

f 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
an

d 
im

p
ro

vi
n

g 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 w
it

h
in

 it
s 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
, a

n
d 

th
is

 r
es

ul
ti

n
g 

in
 h

ig
h

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
un

de
rs

ta
n

da
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
. 

4 

5.
2 

T
h

e 
n

ew
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

to
 h

av
e 

Si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 V
F

M
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 m

ad
e 

in
 r

ec
en

t 
ye

ar
s.

 
4 

5.
2 

T
h

e 
re

m
o

va
l o

f 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 h
av

e 
a 

su
st

ai
n

ed
 t

ra
ck

 r
ec

or
d 

o
f 

dr
iv

in
g 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 t
h

ro
ug

h
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 u
se

 o
f 

ta
rg

et
s.

 
4 

5.
2 

R
em

o
va

l o
f 

th
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 t
o

 h
av

e 
an

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 r

ev
ie

w
 in

to
 it

s 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
is

 e
xc

ee
di

n
g 

it
s 

o
w

n
 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g 

at
 le

as
t 

th
e 

n
at

io
n

al
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 R

ev
ie

w
 t

ar
ge

t 
o

f 
7.

5%
 o

ve
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

 
4 

5.
2 

R
em

o
va

l o
f 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

to
 h

av
e 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

co
ve

ri
n

g 
al

l m
aj

o
r 

fu
n

ct
io

n
s 

an
d 

th
e 

fi
n

di
n

gs
 b

ei
n

g 
ac

te
d 

up
o

n
, 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

. 
4 

5.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o

 h
av

e 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g.
 I

t 
h

as
 a

 c
le

ar
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
n

g 

o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l r
es

o
ur

ce
s 

at
 t

h
e 

di
sp

os
al

 o
f 

it
s 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s.
 I

t 
is

 o
n

 t
ra

ck
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 p

la
n

n
ed

 im
pr

o
ve

m
en

t 
in

 
o

ut
co

m
e 

4 

5.
2 

N
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
av

in
g 

a 
st

ro
n

g 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
us

in
g 

IT
 a

nd
 c

an
 d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

 e
xa

m
p

le
s 

o
f 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
, i

n
cl

ud
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
us

er
s,

 o
r 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
 t

hr
o

ug
h

 u
si

n
g 

IT
. 

4 

 

83



84

This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 

March 2008 

Annual Audit and 
Inspection Letter 

Huntingdonshire District Council 

Agenda Item 6

85



© Audit Commission 2008 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212 Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public money and 
makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public resources and the corporate 
governance of public services. 

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles. 

 Auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited. 

 The scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial statements but 
also value for money and the conduct of public business. 

 Auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key stakeholders. 

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out in the 
Audit Commission Act 1998, the Local Government Act 1999 and the Commission's 
statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, appointed auditors are 
also required to comply with the current professional standards issued by the independent 
Auditing Practices Board.  

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their statutory 
responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement independently of both 
the Commission and the audited body. 

Status of our reports 

This report provides an overall summary of the Audit Commission’s assessment of the 
Council, drawing on audit, inspection and performance assessment work and is prepared by 
your Relationship Manager.

In this report, the Commission summarises findings and conclusions from the statutory 
audit, which have previously been reported to you by your appointed auditor. Appointed 
auditors act separately from the Commission and, in meeting their statutory responsibilities, 
are required to exercise their professional judgement independently of the Commission (and 
the audited body). The findings and conclusions therefore remain those of the appointed 
auditor and should be considered within the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 
Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission. 

Reports prepared by appointed auditors are: 

 prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited 
Bodies issued by the Audit Commission; and 

 addressed to members or officers and prepared for the sole use of the audited body; no 
responsibility is taken by auditors to any member or officer in their individual capacity, or 
to any third party. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

86



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Contents   3

Huntingdonshire District Council 

Contents

Our overall summary 4

Action needed by the Council 4

How is Huntingdonshire District Council performing? 5

The improvement since last year - our Direction of Travel report 6

Financial management and value for money 11

Conclusion 13

Availability of this letter 13

87



4 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  Our overall summary 

Huntingdonshire District Council 

Our overall summary 
1 This report provides an overall summary of the Audit Commission's assessment of 

the Council. It draws on the findings and conclusions from the audit of the Council 
and from any inspections that have been undertaken in the last year. The letter 
includes our review of how well the Council has progressed (our Direction of Travel 
report) and the auditor’s assessment of how well the Council has managed its 
finances (the Use of Resources scores). These latter components will be an 
important feed into any future decision regarding the potential for a rescoring the 
Council’s Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) category. 

2 The report is addressed to the Council, in particular it has been written for 
councillors, but is available as a public document for stakeholders, including 
members of the community served by the Council. 

3 The main messages for the Council included in this report are as follows. 

 The Council is making improvement in many priority areas. Recycling and 
composting performance remains amongst the best nationally. Access to services 
has improved. The Council continues to perform well in the use of resources and 
value for money. 

 Progress has been made on equalities with level two of the equalities standard 
achieved and work has started to achieve level three. Access to services has 
improved. 

 Overall improvement and comparative performance as measured by performance 
indicators is below average. For example, the speed of processing minor planning 
applications does not compare well and the volume of household waste per 
household has increased.  

 The Council has clear plans and investment for improvement which focus 
resident priorities.  

Action needed by the Council 
 Maintain focus on service performance in order to improve the rate of 

improvement and tackle areas of comparative under performance.   

88



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter How is Huntingdonshire District Council 
performing?  5

Huntingdonshire District Council 

How is Huntingdonshire District Council 
performing?

4 Huntingdonshire District Council was assessed as Excellent in the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment carried out in 2004. These 
assessments have been completed in all district councils and we are now starting 
to update these assessments, through an updated corporate assessment, in 
councils where there is evidence of change. The following chart is the latest 
position across all district councils. 

Figure 1 Overall performance of district councils in CPA 

Source: Audit Commission 

89



6 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  How is Huntingdonshire District Council 
performing?

Huntingdonshire District Council 

The improvement since last year - our Direction of 
Travel report 

Summary 

5 The Council is making improvement in many priority areas. Progress has been 
made on equalities with level two of the equalities standard achieved and work 
has started to achieve level three. Recycling and composting performance 
remains amongst the best nationally. Resident satisfaction has improved and is 
good. Access to services has improved. The Council continues to perform well in 
the use of resources and value for money. However, overall improvement and 
comparative performance as measured by performance indicators is below 
average. For example, the speed of processing minor planning applications does 
not compare well and the volume of household waste per household has 
increased.

6 The Council has clear plans for improvement. These plans and investments focus 
on resident priorities and areas of under performance. For example, significant 
improvements in leisure facilities are on track to be delivered in 2008 and high 
waste collection costs are being tackled. Partnership working has secured 
funding for affordable housing and economic development initiatives.  

What evidence is there of the council improving outcomes?  

7 Overall performance and improvement as measured by best value performance 
indicators is below average for 2006/07. Forty six per cent of performance 
indicators (PIs) improved which is below average for district authorities  
(56-59 per cent). The percentage of PIs in best quartile at 26 per cent is below 
average when compared to district authorities’ average of 33 per cent. 
Performance over the last three years is stronger with 64 per cent of PIs 
improving compared to the average for district authorities of 54-56 per cent.

8 Satisfaction with the Council overall is good. In 2006/07 satisfaction with the 
Council is in the best 25 per cent of councils and has improved from 58 per cent 
to 60 per cent since the last survey in 2003/04.

9 Service performance in Council priorities is mixed. The Council has six aims for 
its communities, which reflect those of the local strategic partnership, and three 
aims for the Council itself, each with a series of objectives. These aims are:  

 a clean, ‘green’ and attractive place;  

 housing that meets local need;  

 safe, vibrant and inclusive communities; 

 healthy living; 

 access to services and transport; 

 a strong, diverse economy;  

 to improve our systems and practices;  

90



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter How is Huntingdonshire District Council 
performing?  7

Huntingdonshire District Council 

 to learn and develop; and  

 to maintain sound finances.  

10 The Council is delivering performance amongst the best 25 per cent of councils in 
some of its priority areas. This includes its recycling and composting rate, the 
percentage of the population served by a kerbside recycling collection and 
performance on affordable housing.  

11 Although there has been improved performance in many priority areas this still 
does not compare well with other councils. The length of stay in bed and 
breakfast accommodation has improved from five to four weeks. Improvements 
have been made to the speed of processing major planning applications. 
However, when compared to other councils performance remains amongst the 
worst 25 per cent. Performance does not compare well the speed of processing 
minor planning applications. The Council met government targets for speed of 
determining planning applications and received a substantial Planning Delivery 
Grant award for 2007/08. The volume of waste collected per household is high in 
comparison to other councils and rising. Although there is improvement in areas 
of poor performance this is not at a rate which is significantly greater than is being 
achieved by others. Therefore, the Council’s overall comparative performance 
indicator is not improving.  

12 Performance has improved in other priority areas. The cost of waste collected per 
household has reduced and delivered approximately £100,000 of savings. The 
percentage of private sector homes vacant for six months or more has improved 
from below to above average. The percentage of the number of non-LA-owned 
vacant dwellings returned to occupation or demolished during the year as a direct 
result of action by the authority has improved with performance above average.

13 Investment in priorities is being made to improve outcomes for residents. For 
example market traders at St Ives market are being encouraged to recycle more 
of their waste as part of a pilot scheme funded by DEFRA as part of a 
government initiative to increase business waste recycling. The Council has 
supported a housing association to secure an extra £3 million to build ‘affordable’ 
homes. This has resulted in plans to build around 400 ‘affordable’ homes as part 
of a 1,250-home development. The Council has invested funds to improve 
services to the homeless through securing 16 existing homes and the expansion 
of its existing homeless hostel. Improvements for residents are being delivered. 

14 The Council is supporting economic development. It has secured £1.33m from 
DCLG growth fund and East of England Development Agency for an Enterprise 
Centre to stimulate business and job growth. This recognises employment 
pressures in sustainable communities in growth areas.

91



8 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  How is Huntingdonshire District Council 
performing?

Huntingdonshire District Council 

15 Performance is above average in all crime areas with some in the best
25 per cent of councils. Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership is 
currently on track to meet all of its targets apart from criminal damage, as 
identified within the Community Safety Strategy 2005/08. The community safety 
team is taking a more proactive approach to address crime, for example 
commissioning additional research to inform decisions on emerging issues. The 
anti-social behaviour case workers have led or supported partners in obtaining a 
number of acceptable behaviour contracts, anti-social behaviour orders and 
parenting contract agreements. The Council is contributing effectively to 
community safety.

16 The Council is contributing to community outcomes. For example the Council is a 
partner in the Great Fen Project which aims to restore over 3,000 hectares of 
farmland situated between Huntingdon and Peterborough to fenland wildlife 
habitat; thereby connecting two existing nature reserves. £8.9 million from the 
Heritage Lottery Fund has been awarded but it is too early in the process for 
outcomes to be achieved.  

17 The Council is involved in a range of work to improve health. The Council 
provides for and encourages participation in active leisure pursuits; discourages 
smoking, encourages people to have healthy diets and encourages participation 
in community involvement and service. The Council provides opportunities for 
cardiac rehabilitation and physical activity in disadvantaged communities and for 
people with disabilities. The outcomes from this work cannot be assessed in the 
short term, at this stage. The Council is making an important contribution to 
improving health and reducing health inequalities.

18 Access to services is improving. A temporary customer service centre in 
Huntingdon opened to the public in July 2007. Previously customers had to visit 
different reception counters on various floors of the Council offices dependant on 
their enquiry and the cash office was located in a different building. All the 
departments are now co-located into one ground floor location enabling full DDA 
access for customers. The Council has expanded its call centre with enquiries 
relating to planning and tourism services transferred in the last 12 months. The 
Council has improved access to its website for people with limited vision, 
dyslexia, low literacy levels, learning disabilities or English as a second language. 
A mobile working (wireless technology) pilot project has been used in the 
processing of benefit claims by taking services to the customer. The two 
community information centres in Yaxley and Ramsey continue to provide a wide 
range of services to the local community. Residents have improved access to 
services.

19 Progress has been made on diversity. The Council has achieved level two of the 
equality standard. The Council is now actively working towards level three of the 
standard.

20 The Council continues to perform well in delivering value for money. Performance 
is generally high but there are some areas of underperformance such as the 
costs of waste collection. Further improvements in the management of the capital 
programme are required for the Council to perform strongly, specifically ensuring 
that capital budgets are completed on-time.

92



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter How is Huntingdonshire District Council 
performing?  9

Huntingdonshire District Council 

How much progress is being made to implement improvement 
plans to sustain improvement?

21 The Council has clear plans in place for improvement. A new corporate plan has 
been adopted which sets out the Council vision and makes clear links between 
community and Council aims. The Council has set out objectives for each of the 
community and Council aims, together with some of the main changes expected 
and the main activities and projects that will take place to help them to be 
achieved. Progress against the 50 objectives is reported to chief officer 
management team and to overview and scrutiny panel quarterly. This is helping 
the Council to sustain improvement.

22 The Council has plans or is developing plans to deliver improvement, particularly 
in areas where performance is currently poor. A new Customer Service Strategy 
is being developed. This will identify how customer service objectives will be 
achieved throughout the district and will include the customer service centre, call 
centre and community information offices.

23 The Council has clear plans to reduce the cost of its waste collection services. 
Whilst recycling levels are high waste costs are also high. This is due to the 
number of collections made. During September 2007 the Council implemented 
major changes to its waste and recycling services following a comprehensive 
review of those services. This resulted in re-scheduled collections to gain 
operational efficiencies whilst building in capacity to absorb the anticipated 
significant growth in the number of properties during the next five years. The day 
of collection was successfully changed for over 60,000 properties with minimal 
disruption to service provision. The rescheduling will deliver annual revenue 
savings of £100,000 per annum together with further capital savings by reducing 
the numbers of vehicles used by one. This is strengthening the Council’s value 
for money performance.

24 The Council has robust plans for improvement in leisure. A number of capital 
projects are to be completed by Easter 2008. These include swimming pool 
refurbishment at St Neots; a new soccer pitch at St Ivo in St Ives and a major 
redevelopment at Huntingdon leisure centre which includes provision for a 
permanent child’s play centre, a teen-zone and a vibro-therapy room. This is 
providing residents with access to improved facilities.  

25 Effective use of capacity is delivering improvements both internally and for 
residents. The Council opened its new operations centre in October 2007. In 
addition to providing a new base for the Council’s day to day operational activity, 
it provides accommodation for a range of other services including all post and 
printing requirements, building control, CCTV, and corporate training facilities. 
Work is also currently underway to construct a new headquarters and a purpose 
built customer service centre which is due to be completed in early 2010. The 
Council is investing in equalities training for officers and councillors to support 
further improvement. To improve performance within planning services a targeted 
performance improvement plan was developed with the development control 
panel and is currently being implemented.

93



10 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  How is Huntingdonshire District Council 
performing?

Huntingdonshire District Council 

26 There are no significant weaknesses in arrangements for securing continuous 
improvement or failures in corporate governance that would prevent improvement 
levels being sustained.

.

94



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Financial management and value for money
11

Huntingdonshire District Council 

Financial management and value for 
money

27 Your appointed auditor has reported separately to the Corporate Governance 
Panel on the issues arising from the 2006/7 audit and has provided: 

 an audit report, providing an unqualified opinion on your accounts and a 
conclusion on your vfm arrangements to say that  these arrangements are 
adequate on 25 September 2007; and 

 a report on the Best Value Performance Plan confirming that the Plan has 
been audited. 

Use of Resources 

28 The findings of the auditor are an important component of the CPA framework 
described above. In particular the Use of Resources score is derived from the 
assessments made by the auditor in the following areas: 

 Financial Reporting (including the preparation of the accounts of the Council 
and the way these are presented to the public). 

 Financial management (including how the financial management is integrated 
with strategy to support council priorities). 

 Financial Standing (including the strength of the Council's financial position). 

 Internal Control (including how effectively the Council maintains proper 
stewardship and control of its finances). 

 Value for money (including an assessment of how well the Council balances 
the costs and quality of its services). 

95



12 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  Financial management and value for 
money

Huntingdonshire District Council 

29 For the purposes of the CPA your auditor has assessed the Council’s 
arrangements for use of resources in these five areas as follows. 

Table 1  

Element Assessment 

Financial reporting 

Financial management 

Financial standing 

Internal control 

Value for money 

3 out of 4 

3 out of 4 

3 out of 4 

2 out of 4 

3 out of 4 

Overall assessment of the Audit Commission 3 out of 4 

(Note: 1 = lowest, 4 = highest) 

30 The key issues arising from the audit, as reflected in the above judgements 
where appropriate, are as follows. 

 At the time of the assessment the Council had not rolled out risk management 
training to all appropriate officers and members. 

 The Council should develop and implement an assurance framework to 
ensure that key risks to the Council achieving its objectives are being 
identified and that there are adequate controls in place to reduce the risks to 
acceptable levels. 

96



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Conclusion  13

Huntingdonshire District Council 

Conclusion
31 This letter has been discussed and agreed with Huntingdonshire District Council. 

A copy of the letter will be presented at the Corporate Governance Panel on 26 
March 2008. 

32 The Council has taken a positive and constructive approach to our audit and 
inspection I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation for the 
council’s assistance and co-operation.

Availability of this letter 

33 This letter will be published on the Audit Commission’s website at  
www.audit-commission.gov.uk, and also on the council’s website. 

Nigel Smith 
Relationship Manager 

March 2008 

97



98

This page is intentionally left blank



 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL 26 MARCH 2008 
 

RISK REGISTER UPDATE 

(Report by the Audit & Risk Manager) 
 
 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide members of the Panel with details of the current risk register.     
 
2. Risk Register   
 
2.1 The risk register was last presented in full to the Panel in September 2006. 

Since that time, as the Panel will be aware from the interim reports they 
have received, a considerable amount of work has been undertaken to 
develop and embed a formal risk management culture into the Council.     

 
2.2 A copy of the full register has been placed in the Members room.  An extract 

of the very high ‘red’ risks is attached at Annex A.  Recognising that the 
register is a detailed document it is suggested that future update reports to 
the Panel will only include new or changed entries.  

 
2.3 The entries on the register are all owned by a named individual, usually a 

Head of Service or Director.  They are responsible for, within their service 
area, identifying significant risks, reviewing the controls to mitigate the risks 
and the overall scoring of the risk.  The register is reviewed by the Risk 
Management Group and the Chief Officers’ Management Team (COMT).  

 
2.4 The register is an important internal control document and as such, is 

reviewed on a regular basis. Links have been established with the 
performance management reporting system to ensure Heads of Service/ 
Directors review the register each quarter. The review considers both the 
appropriateness of the current entries and allows for the register to be 
update with any current or future threats or opportunities that have been 
identified.  

 
3. Option Appraisal Forms  
 
3.1 The register contains 11 very high risks, which encapsulate a number of the 

significant corporate business risks faced by the Council.  As per the risk 
strategy, option appraisal forms have been presented to Cabinet for all these 
risks. Cabinet have accepted the risks that have been identified .  

 
3.2 The register contains 47 high risks.  Heads of Service are currently 

completing option appraisal forms in respect of these risks, which will be 
presented to COMT over the coming weeks.   

 
4. Recommendation 
 
4.1 It is recommended that the Panel note the report and the arrangements that 

have been introduced for managing the risks that have been identified on 
the risk register.   

 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 

Risk Register  
 
Contact Officer: David Harwood, Audit & Risk Manager (((( 01480 388115 

Agenda Item 7

99



100

This page is intentionally left blank



A
n

n
e

x
 A

 

R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

 1
C

O
M

T
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

 i
n

 i
ts

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 G

o
v
ts

 C
T

a
x
/b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

p
p

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
e

in
g

 c
a

p
p

e
d

 /
s
e

tt
in

g
 C

T
a

x
 

a
t 

a
 f

ig
u

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 

b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

p
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 t
e

m
p

 o
r 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

C
a

p
p

in
g

: 
U

n
p

la
n

n
e

d
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
o

f 
a

ll 
o

r 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
re

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 d

a
m

a
g

e
, 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

re
-b

ill
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 

c
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

T
o

o
 l
o

w
 a

 T
a

x
: 

U
n

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 c

u
ts

 i
n

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 d

a
m

a
g

e
.

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

W
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

k
e

s
 i
ts

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 o
n

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

L
e

v
e

l 
e

a
c
h

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

th
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
is

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

c
a

p
p

in
g

.

 4
 5

 2
 5

 8
C

O
M

T
 S

ta
ff

 a
re

 u
n

w
ill

in
g

 t
o

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
ir

 m
o

d
e

 o
f 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
im

s
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

 a
re

 
n

o
t 

m
e

t,
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

s
s
 

o
f 

c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

s
h

o
p

p
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 

w
it
h

in
 H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

 t
o

w
n

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 d
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
.

E
ff

e
c
t:

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

o
c
u

s
S

ta
ff

 l
e

a
v
e

 &
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 

m
o

re
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
L

o
c
a

l 
s
h

o
p

s
 &

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 i
n

 
re

c
ru

it
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

ta
in

in
g

 s
ta

ff
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 f

e
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 f

o
r 

lo
n

g
 

s
ta

y
 p

a
rk

in
g

M
e

d
ia

 c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 

o
f 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 r
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

'S
h

o
p

p
in

g
' 
jo

u
rn

e
y
s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 w
h

ic
h

 b
ri

n
g

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 t
o

 b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 
w

it
h

in
 t

ra
v
e

l 
to

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

C
a

rs
h

a
re

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

E
a

rl
y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 h

o
m

e
 

w
o

rk
in

g

 5
 4

 4
 4

 9
C

O
M

T
 A

 c
iv

il 
e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 

o
c
c
u

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

ff
e

c
ts

 m
o

re
 

th
a

n
 2

0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
n

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
.

E
ff

e
c
t:

N
o

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

, 
fe

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
le

e
p

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
N

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

a
n

d
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

P
o

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

In
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 v

e
n

u
e

s
A

d
v
e

rs
e

 p
u

b
lic

it
y

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

P
e

t 
P

la
n

 -
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 s
h

e
lt
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 v

e
ts

 e
tc

V
e

n
u

e
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 S

t 
Iv

o
 L

C
 

a
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 a
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

2
2

9
0

 
p

e
o

p
le

 5
 5

 3
 5

A
n

n
e

x
 A

 

R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

101



A
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

R
V

S
 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

e
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
n

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 –

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

0
7

/0
8

.

S
ta

ff
 T

ra
in

in
g

L
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

lo
c
a

l 
P

C
T

s
, 

S
o

c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

tc

O
u

t 
o

f 
h

o
u

rs
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
p

 
to

 d
a

te

F
o

o
d

 P
la

n
 (

e
x
e

rc
is

e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
(d

e
s
k
 

to
p

) 
b

u
t 

n
o

t 
fo

rm
a

lly
 t

e
s
te

d
)"

 1
0

C
O

M
T

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

/ 
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

fu
e

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 f

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

E
ff

e
c
t:

F
u

e
l 
s
h

o
rt

a
g

e
s

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
u

e
l

G
a

p
s
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

T
a

rg
e

ts
 n

o
t 

m
e

t
P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 /
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

R
e

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 d

a
m

a
g

e
L

e
a

d
 i
n

 t
im

e
s
 f

o
r 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 /

 r
e

s
to

c
k

S
to

c
k
s
 o

f 
fu

e
l 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 
C

lo
s
u

re
 /

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
c
e

rt
a

in
 s

u
p

p
lie

rs

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

O
ff

 -
 s

it
e

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 u
s
e

d

"M
a

in
 5

0
,0

0
0

 l
it
re

 t
a

n
k
 (

1
7

 d
a

y
s
 s

u
p

p
ly

 
w

h
e

n
 f

u
ll,

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

ft
e

r 
3

8
,0

0
0

 l
it
re

s
 u

s
e

d
 

le
a

v
in

g
 b

a
n

k
 s

to
c
k
 o

f 
1

2
,0

0
0

 -
 w

o
u

ld
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 4

-5
 d

a
y
s
 s

u
p

p
ly

)

S
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 k

n
o

w
n

S
o

m
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

re
 p

e
tr

o
l 
d

ri
v
e

n

 4
 4

 4
 4

R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

102



 1
7

A
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 i
s
 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 o

r 
k
ill

e
d

 
w

h
ils

t 
v
is

it
in

g
 o

r 
u

s
in

g
 

L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 

n
o

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
 s

a
fe

 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

it
s
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h

 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 

tr
a

in
in

g
.

E
ff

e
c
t:

A
d

v
e

rs
e

 p
u

b
lic

it
y
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 i
n

c
id

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 d
e

a
th

/i
n

ju
ry

 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 
p

u
b

lic
. 

 L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

rc
e

d
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e

 
p

e
n

d
in

g
 H

S
E

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
.

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

W
a

rn
in

g
 s

ig
n

s
 d

is
p

la
y
e

d

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 

u
s
a

g
e

 b
y
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs

C
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
 a

n
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
.

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
m

o
n

it
o

rs
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

a
k
e

n
.

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 o

n
 d

u
ty

.

C
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
k
in

 t
y
p

e
 

(s
u

n
b

e
d

s
) 

a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
S

u
n

b
e

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
to

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
U

s
e

 o
f 

s
u

n
b

e
d

 l
im

it
e

d
 b

y
 l
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
s
e

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
ta

n
n

in
g

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

B
a

th
e

r 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
o

ls
 n

o
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

D
e

fr
ib

ri
lla

to
rs

 o
n

 s
it
e

 &
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 t
ra

in
e

d
 i
n

 
th

e
ir

 u
s
e

.

R
e

g
u

la
r 

b
re

a
k
s
 f

o
r 

lif
e

g
u

a
rd

s
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 
a

le
rt

n
e

s
s

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 w

h
e

n
 

jo
in

in
g

 f
it
n

e
s
s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
.

T
ra

in
e

d
 f

ir
s
t 

a
id

e
rs

 o
n

 s
it
e

.

T
ra

in
e

d
, 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

d
 f

it
n

e
s
s
 

s
ta

ff
 &

 l
if
e

g
u

a
rd

s
.

 3
 5

 2
 5

 2
2

U
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
is

u
re

 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 d

u
e

 
to

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

w
h

o
 a

re
 u

n
s
u

it
a

b
le

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

.

E
ff

e
c
t:

A
c
c
u

s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 i
n

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
; 

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
; 

le
g

a
l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
; 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
f 

a
ll 

C
R

B
 

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

E
a

c
h

 L
e

s
iu

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
is

 a
 

D
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n

1
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p

a
n

e
l 
tr

a
in

e
d

 i
n

 
‘s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

’ 
is

s
u

e
s
.

 4
 5

 2
 5

R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

103



c
h

e
c
k
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

e
fo

re
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s
.

H
D

C
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 o

n
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

, 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 

a
n

d
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 A
d

u
lt
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

.
S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 P
o

lic
y
.

S
ta

ff
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

;

S
ta

ff
 s

h
a

d
o

w
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 u
n

ti
l 
C

R
B

 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d

C
ri
m

in
a

l 
R

e
c
o

rd
s
 B

u
re

a
u

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 a

re
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

&
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 (

n
o

t 
fo

r 
V

a
ri

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
rs

 s
ta

ff
) 

ta
k
e

n
 u

p
;

 1
2

4

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
L

a
n

d
 C

h
a

rg
e

s
 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 t

o
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

S
e

a
rc

h
 C

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 

in
 p

ri
c
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re

A
s
s
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 w

it
h

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 

S
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 C
o

s
ts

 5
 5

 5
 5

R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

104



 1
6

A
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 

/C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 i
s
 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 o

r 
k
ill

e
d

 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

n
o

t 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 i
ts

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

w
it
h

 e
it
h

e
r 

a
 s

a
fe

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 t

ra
in

in
g

 w
it
h

 
re

g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
a

s
k
s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 

re
q

u
ir

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t

A
d

v
e

rs
e

 p
u

b
lic

it
y
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 i
n

c
id

e
n

t 
/ 

in
ju

ry
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 R
T

A
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 H

D
C

 s
ta

ff
 

w
h

o
 a

re
 d

ri
v
in

g
 o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
; 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 d

ri
v
in

g
 o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
c
o

v
e

r;
 v

e
h

ic
le

 n
o

t 
ro

a
d

w
o

rt
h

y
 

d
e

a
th

 /
 i
n

ju
ry

 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
, 

p
u

b
lic

, 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
w

h
ils

t 
u

s
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 /

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

F
ir

e
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 /

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 d
e

a
th

 /
 i
n

ju
ry

 t
o

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

lo
n

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 d
ri

v
e

 o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

s
e

lf
-c

e
rt

if
y
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 v
a

lid
 d

ri
v
in

g
 

lic
e

n
c
e

s
, 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
ir

 v
e

h
ic

le
 h

a
s
 a

n
 M

O
T

 (
if
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

).
 

D
ri

v
in

g
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

 c
h

e
c
k
, 

in
it
ia

l 
a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l.

D
ri

v
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

.

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 

a
n

n
u

a
lly

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 a
ll 

tr
a

in
e

d
 i
n

 H
e

a
lt
h

 
a

n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 -

 r
e

la
te

d
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 
re

c
o

rd
e

d

In
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
n

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
D

if
fe

re
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
, 

ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts

In
v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

d
ri
v
in

g
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

 &
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 c
h

e
c
k
s
.

 3
 5

 2
 5

R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

105



 1
5

IC
T

 S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 i
s
 b

re
a

c
h

e
d

 
c
a

u
s
in

g
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 a

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 

in
 

th
e

 r
e

lia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 d
a

ta
 

b
e

in
g

 h
e

ld
.

E
ff

e
c
t:

L
o

s
s
 /

 d
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

A
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

D
e

a
d

lin
e

 s
lip

p
a

g
e

T
a

rg
e

ts
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

L
e

a
d

 i
n

 t
im

e
s
 f

o
r 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

A
c
c
e

s
s
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts

L
o

c
k
s
 o

n
 n

o
te

b
o

o
k
 c

o
m

p
u

te
rs

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
d

E
m

a
il 

fi
lt
e

ri
n

g
 g

re
a

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 v

ir
u

s
e

s
, 

tr
o

ja
n

 s
o

ft
w

a
re

 &
 s

p
a

m

B
o

o
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

la
p

to
p

s
 

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 o

ff
ic

e

C
C

T
V

 u
n

it

B
a

c
k
 u

p
 t

a
p

e
s

C
a

re
ta

k
e

r 
p

ro
to

c
o

ls

F
ir

e
 /

 s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n

 3
 5

 2
 5

 2
1

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 l
o

s
t 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

lit
ig

a
ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 a

 f
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 
re

s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
.

E
ff

e
c
t:

U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
B

re
a

c
h

e
s
 i
n

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

lit
y

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
B

a
d

 r
e

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 /

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 p
re

s
s

D
a

ta
 /

 s
o

ft
w

a
re

 n
o

t 
re

m
o

v
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 I

T
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

is
 d

is
p

o
s
e

d
 o

f
L

e
a

k
 o

f 
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

fo
 -

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 
c
a

s
e

 m
a

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 d
e

a
th

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 h
e

ld
 i
n

 m
e

ta
l 
fi
lin

g
 c

a
b

in
e

ts
 i
n

 
m

o
s
t 

c
a

s
e

s

S
ta

ff
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
o

f 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
w

a
s
te

  
- 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 u

s
e

 o
f 

s
h

re
d

d
in

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

A
ll 

in
c
e

n
d

ia
ry

 s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 
c
a

b
in

e
ts

, 
o

n
ly

 d
e

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

a
u

s
e

 s
u

c
h

 l
o

s
s

O
ff

ic
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

N
o

n
 -

 a
c
ti
v
e

 c
a

s
e

 f
ile

s
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
ly

 s
to

re
d

S
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

lit
y

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

R
e

c
o

rd
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
"

E
n

c
ry

p
ti
o

n
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 l
o

s
t 

o
f 

d
a

ta
.

 4
 5

 3
 5

R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

106



R
is

k
R

e
f

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

a
u
s
e
 &

 E
ff
e
c
t 

In
h

e
re

n
t

R
is

k
(L

ik
e

lih
o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l
R

is
k

(L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 X

 
Im

p
a
c
t)

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

A
ll 

s
o

ft
w

a
re

 i
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 h
a

rd
 d

is
k
s
 

w
ip

e
d

 c
le

a
n

 b
y
 I

M
D

 b
e

fo
re

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 
s
tr

a
n

g
e

rs
 i
n

 s
e

c
u

re
 a

re
a

s

A
ll 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 s
to

re
d

 i
n

 a
 

s
e

m
i-

s
e

c
u

re
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

M
a

n
y
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 h

e
ld

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
a

lly
 a

n
d

 
s
e

rv
e

rs
 n

o
t 

h
e

ld
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 f
lo

o
rs

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
 a

 n
o

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

in
 i
t'
s
 b

u
ild

in
g

s

 1
0

4
 2

 5
 2

 5
D

e
la

y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 A

1
4

 m
a

y
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 
a

 f
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t/

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

 
(s

e
e

 c
a

u
s
e

 &
 e

ff
e

c
t 

fo
r 

fu
ll 

ri
s
k
)

D
e

la
y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 A
1

4
 

m
a

y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

la
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
le

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 a
 f

a
ilu

re
 t

o
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t/

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
th

e
re

b
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 

u
n

d
e

rm
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 v

it
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 v
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 c
a

u
s
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

n
e

w
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
a

n
d

 r
e

ta
il 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
is

t 
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

P
ro

m
o

te
 e

a
rl

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

1
4

 
b

y
 l
o

b
b

y
in

g
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
 a

n
d

 b
y
 c

o
m

m
it
ti
n

g
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 u
p

c
o

m
in

g
 

p
u

b
lic

 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 e

tc
.

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

107



108

This page is intentionally left blank



 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL 26 MARCH 2008 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 
INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008 

(Report by the Audit & Risk Manager) 
 
1. PURPOSE   
 
1.1 To consider the internal audit plan for the four month period commencing April 2008, 

attached at Annex A 
 
2. STRATEGIC AND ANNUAL PLANNING   
 
2.1 The Audit and Risk Manager is required to provide an opinion on the whole of the 

Council’s internal control environment each year.  This opinion also assists the Chief 
Executive and this Panel when they are preparing the Council’s annual assurance 
statement. The work that is undertaken to allow the audit opinion to be formed is 
governed in the main by the annual audit plan.  

 
2.2 The Internal Audit Service maintains a four year strategic audit plan, listing all the 

risk and system areas that are considered likely to affect the Council’s internal 
control environment.  The strategic plan shows the relative importance of each risk 
and system area and the frequency with which it should be audited.  Over the last 12 
months, the Council’s risk register has become more robust. All but eight of the 81 
risks in the registers have been mapped to, or added to the strategic audit plan. This 
means that the strategic plan now meets the requirements set out in the Audit 
Strategy.   

 
2.3 To prepare the annual audit plan, the strategic plan is reviewed and audits placed in 

priority order.  The highest priority schemes which can be delivered within the 
resources available are then included in the audit plan.   

 
3 RESOURCING THE AUDIT PLAN 
 
3.1 Two issues relating to staffing matters (maternity leave and the resignation of a 

member of staff) will affect the overall breadth of coverage that can be provided and 
consequently the level of assurance that the Panel will be able to take from the Audit 
& Risk Manager’s annual opinion statement.  

 
3.2 It is probably that one auditor will be absent until April 2009 on maternity leave.  This 

employee’s job share partner is also leaving in May. No decision has yet been taken 
on how to fill these vacancies.  Consequently there is likely to be a net shortfall of 43 
audit days in the plan period.  Further information on this matter will be presented to 
the Panel in June, when a decision about how to staff the posts has been taken.   

 
4. RECOMMENDATION  
  
4.1 It is recommended that the Panel approve the annual audit and assurance plan for 

the four month period commencing April 2008.   
 
 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
Strategic Audit Plan 
The Council’s Risk Register 
 
Contact Officer: David Harwood, Audit & Risk Manager ( 01480 388115 

Agenda Item 8

109



110

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Internal Audit Service 

 

Internal Audit  
&  

Assurance Plan 
 2008 

 
 

 

   

 
 
 
 

111



 

2008 Internal Audit & Assurance Plan 
 

The Internal Audit & Assurance Plan for the period April – July 2008 has been 
prepared in accordance with best practice as contained in the 2006 CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit.   
 
The Code requires that Internal Audit provide an opinion on the overall adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment and that the opinion 
should inform the Annual Statement of Assurance on Corporate Governance. 
 
The plan has been developed to take account of this requirement and provides the 
opportunity for reviews of corporate governance, risk management and operational 
controls to be undertaken as well as the more traditional financial areas.   
 
The Code also explains for the first time, that sufficient, evidenced work must have 
been completed before an opinion can be given on the activity that has been 
reviewed.  A number of reviews included in the audit plan have been taken directly 
from the Council’s current risk register.  The Panel need to be aware that the 
internal audit plan is unable to provide, apart from in those areas specifically 
reviewed, any assurance as to the effectiveness or otherwise of the controls listed 
in the register.  
 
A summary of the audits planned for the period are listed on the following pages,  
together with the name of the Liaison Officer responsible for dealing with any audit 
report or other issue that arises from an audit review. In addition to undertaking the 
audits detailed in the plan, a review of fraud risks is also being planned. Internal 
audit are also likely to be involved in providing advice and assistance to managers, 
advising on new project developments and dealing with any whistleblowing 
allegations received.  
 
Whilst it is envisaged that all the audits contained in the plan will be undertaken, 
the identification of any new risks or significant changes in residual risk scores, 
may require audits to be substituted so as to ensure that reviews are undertaken of 
areas identified as being of greatest risk to the achievement of Council objectives.  
Chief Officers and Heads of Service will be informed of any changes before they 
are introduced. 
 
 
David Harwood 
Audit & Risk Manager 
4 March 2008 

 

112



 Audit 
Days 

 

 

Corporate Systems  
  
Service Delivery : T Parker 30 
The CPA UoR KLOE considers a number of issues with regard to best value.  
This review will consider how activities are able to show that they are efficient 
and effective and that opportunities to review and improve processes are 
identified and acted upon. – what indicators are there ? 

 

  
Risk Management Arrangements: S Couper 8 
Inherent Risk   High Residual Risk  High   
Risk management is an important part of the CPA KLOE and the governance of 
the Council. This review will consider how well risk management has become 
embedded into the Authority’s business process, the robustness of the risk 
register and officer training.   

 

  

Total Allocation 38 

  
Commerce & Technology  
  
Bailiff Service: J Barber 5 
Inherent Risk   Very High Residual Risk  High   
Bailiffs are used to recover unpaid Council Tax and NNDR. This audit will 
examine the systems in place for referring cases to the bailiffs and the process 
for referring potential difficult customers to them. This area was last reviewed in 
2004 and was given limited assurance.  

 

  

Total Allocation 5 

  
Central Services  
  
Leisure Centres: R Reeves 27 
To continually review across the 5 Leisure Centres specific areas of their 
operation. This year’s areas will be agreed with the Head of Service prior to 
commencement.  

 

  
Management of Ill Health & Sickness: P Duerden 12 
This review will re-examine the Council’s “Bradford” sickness monitoring scheme 
and the effects it has had on the early identification and reduction in sickness. 
This area was last reviewed in 2004 and was given limited assurance.  

 

  
Income Generation: I Leatherbarrow 10 
Inherent Risk   Very High Residual Risk  High   
The register contains a risk that is concerned with the Council being unable to 
secure sufficient external funding and grants to continue existing tasks and 
services. This audit will examine the controls in place to mitigate this risk and the 
procedures for identifying and bidding for external funds.  This area was last 
reviewed in 2004 and was given limited assurance. 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

113



 Audit 
Days 

 

 

Monitoring of Recruitment to ‘High Risk’ posts: P Duerden 5 
Inherent Risk   Very High  Residual Risk  Very High    
External Audit recommended in 2003 that all ‘high risk posts’ be identified and 
that robust procedures are then introduced to reduce the risk of inappropriate 
appointments.  This review will examine the procedures that are in place as well 
as the CRB process followed in respect of staff who are working with vulnerable 
people. This area was last reviewed in 2004 and was given limited assurance. 

 

  

Total Allocation 54 

  
ICT Audit  
  
CAPS Uni-form: C Hall 5 
The Council is consolidating its information systems and the CAPS Uniform 
system is a key element in the delivery of core information (Planning, 
Licensing, Public Access, LLPG, Land Charges & Building Control and currently 
being implemented in Operations and Estates). This review will consider the 
reliance that the Council has on this system and its financial cost.  

 

  
Safeguarding Data: C Hall 10 
Inherent Risk   Very High  Residual Risk  High    
The register contains a risk that is concerned with the loss of both personal and 
confidential data when it is being transferred or used outside of the Council’s 
normal environment. This audit will review the control measures that have been 
introduced to reduce the risk of this event occurring. This area has not been 
audited previously.  

 

  

Total Allocation 15 

  
Operational Services  
  
Equipment Servicing: R Ward 10 
Inherent Risk   High Residual Risk  High   
The Head of Operations manages a risk that is concerned with the proper 
maintenance of equipment of plant. This audit will examine the controls that have 
been introduced to mitigate this risk as well as considering if similar risks occur 
in the Leisure Centres and in respect of plant and machinery in use within 
administrative buildings.  The servicing of equipment was last reviewed in 
respect of Leisure Centres in 2004 and administrative buildings in 2005. Both 
areas received a limited assurance opinion.  

 

  
Grounds Maintenance: R Ward 10 
To examine the managerial and operational systems and procedures introduced 
that allow for the monitoring, review and operation of the grounds maintenance 
service. This area was last reviewed in 2004 and was given limited assurance. 

 

  
Workshop: R Ward 10 
To examine the administrative procedures introduced within the workshop to 
enable vehicles and plant to be regularly serviced, and the vehicles maintained 
in roadworthy condition.  This area was last reviewed in 2004 and was given 
limited assurance. 

 

Total Allocation 30 

  

 

114



 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL 26 MARCH 2008 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 
INTERIM PROGRESS REPORT 

(Report by the Audit & Risk Manager) 
 

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To receive an interim report on the progress made to deliver the 2007/08 annual 

audit plan and associated performance issues.    
 

2. Delivery of 2007/08 Audit Plan  
 
2.1 The internal audit plan for the 2007/08 financial year, approved by the Director of 

Commerce & Technology, contained 44 audit reviews. The audit plan is not a 
static document but needs to be amended to reflect changing circumstances 
Three audits were omitted from the original plan, Housing nominations, risk 
management and electronic payments. These were replaced with reviews of 
internet use and monitoring and the procurement process followed for the fit out 
of the new CCTV control room. These changes give a revised audit plan of 43 
audits. In addition to the audit plan, work has also been completed on reviewing 
information received from the national fraud data matching initiative, ethical 
governance, the preparations for the delivery of services from the new 
Operations Centre, the management of maternity leave and fidelity guarantee 
insurance.    

 
2.2 It is expected that all 43 audits will be completed. Information in respect of audits 

completed was last reported to the Panel for the period ending August 2007. 
Details of all the audits that have been completed, or issued in draft since that 
date are shown in Annex A.  All completed audit reports are available via the 
internal audit intranet pages.  

 
3. Implementation of Agreed Actions  
 
3.1 The performance indicator included in the internal audit service plan, that 60% of 

agreed actions should be implemented on time has still not been achieved. The 
target is assessed on a rolling 12 month basis and the graph below illustrates 
performance from March 2007 to February 2008.  

 

 

Status of Agreed Actions Introduced

0

10

20

30
40

50

60

70

80
90

100

M
ar
ch

A
pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug
us
t

S
ep
te
m
be
r

O
ct
ob
er

N
ov
em
be
r

D
ec
em
be
r

Ja
nu
ar
y

Fe
br
ua
ry

% actions not introduced

% actions introduced, but not on time

% actions introduced on time
 

Agenda Item 9

115



 

 

3.2 The table above shows that there has been a slight increase in the overall 
percentage of actions introduced in the 12 month period ending in February,  
33% of agreed actions were implemented on time, 32% were late and 35% have 
not been implemented.  The 60% performance indicator has been recently added 
to each Head of Service’s balanced scorecard measures, which are reported to 
Chief Officers’ Management Team quarterly.   

 
3.3 Whilst there will be occasions where service issues arise after the dates for 

introducing actions have been agreed, that quite properly take priority over the 
introduction of the action, the low overall level of performance will continue to 
affect my annual assurance opinion and remain a significant issue in the 
corporate governance statement. The table at Annex B shows the split between 
red and amber actions and by Directorate. 

 
3.4 Of the actions not yet implemented the 9 detailed in Annex C are red actions that 

must be implemented to solve major control weaknesses. 
 
 
4. Internal Audit’s Performance 
 
4.1 Information in respect of the performance of the internal audit service is attached 

at Annex D.   
 
5. Recommendation 
 
5.1 It is recommended that the Panel note the report. 
 
 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
Internal Audit Reports   
Internal Audit Performance Management Information 
 

Contact Officer: David Harwood, Audit & Risk Manager (((( 01480 388115 

116



Annex A 

Summary of Internal Audit work undertaken during the period 
 1 September 2007 to 29 February 2008 

 

Audit area Level of assurance Agreed action status 

 S
ubstantial 

A
dequate 

Lim
ited 

Little 

Red Amber 

The risk 
identified has 
been accepted 

by the 
Manager1 

Key Financial Systems        

National Non Domestic Rates üü    --- ---  

Council Tax üü    ---- ---  

Housing Benefits2 üü       

Budgetary Control & Management Information  ü   0 2  

Creditors2  ü   0 2  

        

Other systems reviews        

Sale and Disposal of Land üü    ---- ---  

Inspection of Invoices  ü   --- ---  

Benefits – National Fraud Initiative  ü   ---- ---  

Payroll/HR systems  ü   1 9  

Construction Industry Scheme  ü   1 2  

Document Centre: Post & Despatch2  ü   0 4 1 

Concessionary Public Transport Fares  ü   0 6  

Leisure Centres  ü   0 5  

Central Establishment Recharges  ü   0 4  

Electoral Registration   û  1 5  

Internet Monitoring   û  1 0  

Controlling Assets2   û  0 3  

Management of Trees and Plants2    ûû 3 4  

Partnership Working    ûû 1 1  

        

Computer Audit         

Virus protection / Spyware  ü   0 3  

Internet monitoring  ü   0 3 3 

Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery2   û  4 3  

        

 
1
 There are occasions when a risk identified during an audit is acknowledged and accepted by a Manager and they 
decide that no further action is required. The right hand column of this table records all those instances. 
2  Draft report issued as at  29 February 2008.   

 
Two audit reports – Post contract reporting and assessment and Broadband for 
Members are not listed in the table above. No assurance opinion was given for either of 
these audits. This is due to the audits finding that no post implementation review 
process is in place and the lack of clarity over the benefits that are to be gained from 
investments in new development areas.  These issues have been reported upon in 
previous audit reports. The lack of progress that has been made in these areas will 
adversely affect my annual assurance opinion.  
 
All audit reports can be accessed by Members via the Internal Audit intranet site. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

117



Annex A 

REMINDER  
 
 

Substantial 
Assurance üü 

There are no weaknesses in the level of internal control 
for managing the material inherent risks within the 
system. Testing shows that controls are being applied 
consistently and system objectives are being achieved 
efficiently, effectively and economically apart from any 
excessive controls which are identified in the report. 

 

Adequate 
Assurance ü 

There are minor weaknesses in the level of control for 
managing the material inherent risks within the system. 
Some control failings have been identified from the 
systems evaluation and testing which need to be 
corrected. The control failings do not put at risk 
achievement of the system’s objectives.  

 

Limited 
Assurance û 

There are weaknesses in the level of internal control for 
managing the material inherent risks within the system. 
Too many control failings have been identified from the 
systems evaluation and testing. These failings show 
that the system is clearly at risk of not being able to 
meet its objectives and significant improvements are 
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of 
control.  

 

Little 
Assurance ûû 

There are major, fundamental weaknesses in the level 
of control for managing the material inherent risks 
within the system. The weaknesses identified from the 
systems evaluation and testing are such that the 
system is open to substantial and significant error or 
abuse and is not capable of meetings its objectives.  

 

   

 

   

 

   

118



Annex B 

Implementation of Agreed Actions 
Summary of the Actions Database as at 29 February 2008 

 

 Status of Action  

 
Introduced 
on time 

Introduced 
Late 

Not 
introduced 

TOTAL 

Red Action 8 6 9 23 

Amber Action 28 29 29 86 

Total 36 35 38 109 

% age 33% 32% 35%  

 Red Amber Red Amber Red Amber  

Central Services  6 11 0 10 8 17 52 

Commerce & Technology 1 7 6 15 1 11 41 

Operational Services  1 10 0 4 0 1 16 

Total 8 28 6 29 9 29 109 

 
 
A sample of actions that have been reported as being completed are checked to see 
that the action introduced sufficiently addresses the risk that has been identified. 
 
In respect of those actions introduced up to 31 January 2008, it was found that the 
majority of the actions taken were appropriate. Occasionally the action taken does not 
fully deal with the risk identified. In these cases the action taken is discussed with the 
appropriate manager and changes to the database are made to reflect the actual 
position.  
 
 
 

119



Annex C 
‘Red’ Actions Outstanding 

 

Audit Head of Service Action Agreed 
Agreed 

Implementation 
Date 

Head of Service’s statement re 
current position1 

Staff Capacity and 
Performance 

Head of Personnel 
Personal Development Plans are to be completed for 
all staff. 

30/06/2007 

The vast majority of these have 
been completed and returned 
to HR for inclusion in the 
corporate training plan.  The 
same arrangements will apply 
from the Performance 
Development Reviews being 
held in May 2008. 

Staff Capacity and 
Performance 

Head of Personnel 

Local arrangements for the payment of overtime in 
place within the Operations Division will be reviewed 
when the Head of Personnel Services reviews part 3, 
section 2, of the Green Book, in accordance with the 
national agreement. 

30/09/2007 
Draft report currently being 
consulted upon with Operations 
Division. 

Recruitment 
Advertising 

Head of Personnel 
Alternative recruitment advertisers will be 
investigated in order to obtain the best terms and 
service.   

31/07/2007 Investigation completed.  

Staff Recruitment Head of Personnel 
A statement of particulars will be issued to the 
employee within eight weeks of commencing 
employment. 

31/07/2007 System in place.  

                                                
1
 This is the position as at 29 February.   

1
2
0



Annex C 
‘Red’ Actions Outstanding 

 

Audit Head of Service Action Agreed 
Agreed 

Implementation 
Date 

Head of Service’s statement re 
current position1 

Staff Recruitment Head of Personnel 

All professional qualifications or those that are 
relevant to the position are to be checked to original 
certificates.  Evidence of the check will be recorded 
in the employee’s personnel file. 

30/09/2007 

New checklist compiled to 
commence when recruitment 
module of Resourcelink 
HR/Payroll system becomes 
operational in April 2008. 

Staff Recruitment Head of Personnel 
All successful candidates will be checked to ensure 
that they are allowed to be employed in the United 
Kingdom. 

30/09/2007 System in place.  

Asset Register  
Head of Financial 

Services 

The Information Manager is to prepare a project/plan 
to include all of the Authority’s assets within the 
CAPS Uniform system.  

30/11/2007 

A business case/project plan 
has been prepared. 
Discussions to be held with the 
Head of Financial Services.  

Partnership Working Head of Policy 
A Partnership Framework and Guidance document 
shall be adopted which includes a partnership review 
process (or Health Check).   

29/02/2008 

Chief Officers’ Management 
Team have approved a 
framework and guidance 
document and review process.  

Payroll 2007-08 
Head of Financial 

Services 

The Bacstel administration role will be amended to 
ensure that the payroll manager cannot seal but only 
sign and send information, and is therefore unable to 
complete all aspects of the payroll process. 

31/01/2008 

New provider for Bacstel 
currently being considered by 
Financial Services Division. 
The administration role will 
change in April 2008 with a 
change in BACS software. 

 

1
2
1



Appendix D 

Internal Audit Performance 
 

1. External audit view of internal audit  
 

Target:  Adequate or better  
Achieved: Satisfied 

 
1.1 The external auditor continues to be satisfied with the work of the internal 

audit service, as recognised by his positive endorsement at the July 2007 
meeting of the Panel. 

 
2. Customer Satisfaction 

 
Target:   85% or more of customers rating service quality as good 
 or better.  
Achieved: 12 months to February 2008 - 94% 
 

2.1 At the conclusion of all audits, managers are requested to complete an end of 
audit survey form and give an opinion on the value of the audit.  The options 
available are – excellent, very good, good, fair and poor.  Target information is 
calculated on a rolling twelve month basis rather than by financial year. The 
figure is based on 18 returns. 

 
2.2 The Head of Financial Services has also undertaken his annual customer 

satisfaction survey with senior managers. This year an electronic survey form 
was used and the number of responses decreased slightly. Whilst the overall 
percentage has fallen, it still remains high.   

• April 2004 81% 

• April 2005  90% 

• April 2006  96% 

• April 2007 85% 
 
3. Introduction of Agreed Actions 
 
3.1 See paragraph 5 of the main report.  
 
4. Service delivery targets 
 

Target:  80% or more of service delivery targets achieved. 
Achieved: 12 months to February 2008 – 85% 

 
4.1 There are four elements to this target which all relate to the progress of 

individual audits and the reporting process:  

• Complete audit fieldwork by the date stated on the audit brief 

• Issue draft audit reports within 15 working days of completing fieldwork  

• Meet with customer and receive response allowing draft report to 
progress to final within 15 working days of issuing draft report 

• Issue final audit report within 5 working days of receiving full response 
 

4.2 Performance indicators are prepared monthly. The targets are also reflected in 
staff’s key performance development targets within the annual appraisal 
process. Achievement of the targets requires internal audit staff to develop 
and maintain good working partnerships and the customer’s co-operation 
throughout the period of the audit.  

 

122



Appendix D 

4.3 Performance at 29 February for each of the target areas is shown below.  
 

 Target 
29 February 

2008 

Complete audit fieldwork by the date stated 
on the audit brief 

75% ññññ  93%  

Issue draft audit reports within 15 working 
days of completing fieldwork 

90% òòòò  80%  

Meet with customer and receive response 
allowing draft report to progress to final within 
15 working days of issuing draft report 

75% ññññ  85% 

Issue final audit report within 5 working days 
of receiving full response 

90% òòòò  80 %  

Overall  82% ññññ  85% 

 
4.4 It is disappointing that two of the measures have fallen below the target figure. 

Whilst meetings are held with customers within the 15 days, and in most 
cases a response is obtained during the meeting, occasionally a manager may 
wish to discuss matters further with colleagues, prior to formally responding. 
When this occurs, the 15 working day target is usually breached, despite the 
efforts of audit staff to obtain a response.  

 
4.5 Seven audit reports have been issued outside the 5 working days target. Of 

these, four have missed the date by three days or less.   
 
5. Service Improvements 
 

5.1 Following the formal review of Internal Audit, reported to the Panel at its last 
meeting, the two actions that were required to be completed, have been 
introduced – updating the audit intranet pages and the audit manual. The audit 
manual requires further revision, to take account of the use that is now being 
made of the Anite electronic document system. It is expected that these 
changes will be completed by the 31 May.  

 
5.2 Internal Audit is continually striving to improve its performance. Developments 

introduced in the previous year include  

• the hosting and development of an extranet service amongst 
Cambridgeshire authorities 

• joint working with the County Council and Cambridge City Council   

• the introduction of electronic working papers.  
 
Developments planned for the next 12 months include  

• reviewing how individual audit opinions will affect mitigating controls 
recorded in the risk register 

• reviewing the fraud risk assessment 

• the expansion of the extranet service 
 
5.3 Internal audit work has also continued to be provided to St Neots Town 

Council.  
 
 

123



124

This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL 26 MARCH 2008                    
 

WHISTLEBLOWING: ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE POLICY & PROCEDURE 
 

(Report by the Audit & Risk Manager) 
 

 
1. ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
1.1 The whistleblowing policy and guidance are reviewed annually to 

ensure they continue to be fit for purpose.  The policy was introduced 
to allow any employee, contractor or member of the public the 
opportunity to report, without fear of victimisation, a serious or 
sensitive concern  (e.g. a potential fraud or corrupt act, any danger to 
health and safety or the mistreatment or abuse of any customers, 
particularly children).  

 
1.2 This year’s review of the policy and guidance has been completed 

and no changes are considered necessary to either document.  
 
2. PUBLICITY AND MATTERS RAISED 
 
2.1 Staff and customers have a number of ways to raise whistleblowing 

concerns. These include an internet form, a specific email address 
and dedicated 24 hour telephone.  District Wide is used to publicise 
whistleblowing together with posters that are distributed both inside 
and outside the Council.  

 
2.2 18 concerns have been received through the various whistleblowing 

reporting channels.  
 

• 12 related to housing or council tax benefit claims  

• 3 were concerning potential abandoned vehicles 

• 1 was concerned with planning issues 

• 1 was concerned with a housing matter 

• 1 was referred to the Dept of Work & Pensions.   
 

12 of the concerns were made anonymously. 
 
2.3 All of the items reported referred to service delivery issues. None 

have questioned the honesty or integrity of Council staff. None could 
be classed as true whistleblowing concerns. No issues need to be 
brought to the Panel’s attention at this time.  All the concerns have 
been reported to the relevant manager.   

 
3. RECOMMENDATION  
 
3.1 The Panel are recommended to note that a review has been 

undertaken but that no changes are required to the current policy or 
guidance.      

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure 
Whistleblowing allegations received 
 
Contact Officer:  
David Harwood, Audit & Risk Manager (((( 01480 388115 

Agenda Item 10

125



126

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
PANEL 

26TH MARCH 2008 

 
 

TRAVEL PLAN 
(Report by the Head of Administration) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 At their meeting held on 13th March 2007, the Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel (Service Support) decided to establish a Working Group to 
investigate the Council’s Travel Plan and the question of travel 
allowances and incentives/disincentives for Members and Officers to use 
more environmentally sensitive means of transport. 

 
1.2 The findings of the Working Group were submitted to a meeting of the 

Cabinet held on 21st February 2008 (a copy of their report is appended 
at Annex A). In their consideration of the Group’s recommendations, 
Executive Councillors questioned why it had been suggested that 
mileage allowances be changed for Members and not employees and 
Members also felt that further work was required into alternative 
methods of transport to discourage the use of private cars by employees 
in travelling to and from work. In approving the Working Group’s 
recommendations, the Cabinet requested that they be investigated in the 
context of the emerging Environment Strategy, the car parking action 
plan and the travel plan. This response was reported back to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) on 11th March 2008. 

 
1.3 To take forward the recommendations particularly in respect of Members 

Allowances, and having been advised that the Members Allowances 
Scheme was part of the Constitution and that it was the role of the 
Corporate Governance Panel to advise on any proposed changes to the 
Council’s constitutional arrangements, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) has requested the Corporate Governance Panel to 
consider that part of the Working Group’s report relating to Members 
Allowances. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 It is therefore 
  

 requested that the Corporate Governance Panel consider the 
content of recommendations (a) – (d) of the Working Group’s 
report and accordingly recommend to Council that the 
Independent Remuneration Panel be convened. 

 
2.2 For completeness, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) 

has asked the Head of Environmental Management to consider the 
implications of recommendations (e) – (f) of the Working Group’s report 
in conjunction with the preparation of the new Environment Strategy. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

127



 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Report of the Travel Plan Working Group 
Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) 
held on 12th February and 13th March 2008. 
Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 21st February 2008 
 
 
Contact Officer: Miss N Giles 
 (((( 01480 387049 
 

128



 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) 

 12TH FEBRUARY 2008 

 
TRAVEL PLAN 

(Report by the Travel Plan Working Group) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At their meeting held on 13th March 2007, the Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel (Service Support) decided to establish a Working Group to 
investigate the Council’s Travel Plan and the question of travel 
allowances and incentives/disincentives for Members and Officers to use 
more environmentally sensitive means of transport.  

 
1.2 The Working Group comprised Councillors M G Baker, J A Gray and R J 

West and has met on a number of occasions in the ensuing months. 
(Councillor D B Dew was initially appointed to the working group but was 
replaced by Councillor Gray when he ceased to be a member of the 
Scrutiny Panel). 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council’s Travel Plan was approved by the Cabinet in October 

2006. It applies equally to employees and members of the Council and is 
intended to encourage them to make better travel choices by reducing 
inefficient car usage and promoting healthier travel. In discussing the 
Plan prior to its approval by Cabinet, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) doubted whether the actions proposed would be 
sufficient to achieve the targets identified. Members also felt that there 
was a lack of incentives for employees to discourage the use of private 
cars to travel to and from work and that there was a need for further 
consideration to be given to possible concessions to employees to 
encourage the use of alternative forms of transport such as reductions 
on season tickets for bus travel. 

 
2.2 The Panel also discussed the current scheme for the payment of 

mileage allowances and was concerned that these tended to favour the 
use of cars with larger engine sizes.  The Panel therefore felt that the 
Plan provided an opportunity to review both the employees and 
members schemes. 

 
2.3 The employees’ car mileage allowances form part of their contracts of 

employment with the Council.  Although pay negotiations are determined 
locally, travel allowances are part of the wider national agreement 
approved by the National Joint Council for Local Government Services.  
Mileage rates are currently determined by engine size as shown in 
Appendix A attached. 

 
2.4 Allowances for members are set by the Council, having regard to the 

recommendations of an Independent Remuneration Panel.  The mileage 
rates currently are aligned with those of the employees.  These were last 
reviewed by the Panel in their report of November 2006.  The Panel had 
received representations that the mileage allowance for members be 
reduced to 40 pence per mile which is the rate above which income tax 
is payable to HM Customs and Revenues.  The Panel concluded that 

129



 

the members’ rate should be fixed to that of the employees on the 
grounds of equity but should track the employees’ rate if that should vary 
at any time in the future. 

 
2.5 In establishing a study of the subject, the Service Support Panel asked 

the working group to look at ways of encouraging the use of more 
energy efficient vehicles and whether greater incentives could be made 
available to discourage the use of the car. 

 
 
3. INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The Working Group made extensive enquiries on the websites of other 

local authorities into their travel allowances and incentives and the 
content of their travel plans.  Information was obtained on the estimated 
costs of running a car provided on the Royal Automobile Club’s website 
and the taxable allowances operated by HM Customs and Revenues.  
Enquiries were made into the car sharing arrangements available for 
employees in Cambridgeshire. 

 
3.2 Extensive use was made of the vcacarfueldata website which contains 

data on the emissions of all recently manufactured vehicles. 
 
 
4. VEHICLE EMISSIONS 
 
4.1 With the emerging Environment Strategy and a growing recognition of 

the importance of carbon footprints, the Working Group felt that the 
current mileage rates for employees and members based on engine size 
with no regard to emission values was becoming rapidly outdated.  With 
only three engine bands and the highest being for vehicles with an 
engine size over 1,200 cc, the great majority of employees and 
members will be eligible for the maximum rate of 54.4 pence per mile.  
Tax is payable on that element of reimbursement over 40 pence per mile 
which HM Customs and Revenues regard as ‘profit’. 

 
4.2 The Working Group did not feel that it was within its remit to propose an 

alteration to the mileage rates paid to employees which, as mentioned 
above, forms part of their contracts of employment.  Any change would 
have to be the subject of negotiation between the Council and the 
employees and could result in a move from the national to a locally 
determined scheme. 

 
4.3 However, the Working Group did consider that Members could 

demonstrate their commitment to reducing emissions, reducing their 
carbon footprint and improving local air quality.  By altering the mileage 
rate for members to one based on emission rates, the Working Group is 
of the opinion that this may set an example for others to follow. 

 
4.4 Information on exhaust emission ratings or ‘Euro’ standards (expressed 

as the amount of grams per kilometre of CO2 emitted) is readily 
available on www.vcacarfueldata.org.uk.  These have been converted to 
bandings for the purposes of vehicle excise duty which are shown in the 
following table, together with the VED rates – 

 
 
 

130



 

 

Vehicles registered on or 
after 1st March 2001 

Diesel Car 
TC 49 

Petrol Car 
TC 48 

Alternative Fuel Car 
TC 59 

Bands 

CO2 
Emission 
Figure 
(g/km) * 

12 
months 
rate £ 

6 
months 
rate £ 

12 
months 
rate £ 

6 
months 
rate £ 

12 
months 
rate £ 

6 
months 
rate £ 

Band A  Up to 100 0.00 - 0.00 - 0.00 - 

Band B 101 to 120 35.00 - 35.00 - 15.00 - 

Band C 121 - 150 115.00 63.25 115.00 63.25 95.00 52.25 

Band D 151 - 165 140.00 77.00 140.00 77.00 120.00 66.00 

Band E 166 - 185 165.00 90.75 165.00 90.75 145.00 79.75 

Band F 186 - 225  205.00 112.75 205.00 112.75 190.00 104.50 

Band G  226+ 300.00 165.00 300.00 165.00 285.00 156.75 

 
 
4.5 Exhaust emissions are not available for vehicles first registered before 

1st March 2001.  Some examples of the types of cars that fall in the 
various bands are shown in Appendix B. 

 
4.6 Taken together with the varying excise duty rates, the Working Group 

considers that the payment of mileage rates based upon emissions may 
influence Members to choose cars that have less impact on the local 
environment.  A suggested alternative to a mileage allowance based on 
engine size is: 

 
 First 

8,500 
miles 

thereafter Element of expense 
liable to tax 

Band A 64.0p 32.0p 24.0p 

Band B 56.0p 28.0p 16.0p 

Bands C&D 40.0p 20.0p 0p 

Bands E&F 36.0p 18.0p 0p 

Band G 30.0p 15.0p 0p 

Vehicles 
registered 
before 
1/1/2001 

30.0p 15.0p 0p 

Motorcycles 24.0p 24.0p 0p 

 
 
4.7 The allowance is intended to be attractive to those who drive a low 

emission car and penalise those with a heavy polluting vehicle.  The 
rates are deliberately drawn much wider than the existing allowance 
based on engine size to provide a greater incentive to change. 

 
4.8 The Working Group do not think that this should be mandatory for 

existing Members but would hope that most will opt to be paid on the 
new basis.  All newly elected Members would be paid on the emissions 
rating allowance.  This would mean that the Council would have to 
operate two systems of payment at a small additional administrative cost 
which the Working Group feels would be far outweighed by the benefits 
both to the Council and the local environment. 

 
4.9 Any alteration to the Members mileage allowance would have to be 

agreed by the Independent Remuneration Panel. Enquiries have been 

131



 

made with the Chairman of the Panel as to whether it would be 
necessary to reconvene the Panel to approve the change but his view is 
that this can be dealt with in a convenient manner without the expense 
of holding a meeting of the Panel. 

 
 
5.  INCENTIVES TO EMPLOYEES 
 
5.1 Having regard to the nature of the public transport system and the 

impracticality of walking or cycling to work because of the distance 
involved and the lack of dedicated cycleways, the Working Group 
acknowledge that, for many of the Council’s employees, the car will 
remain for some time the only viable means of travel to work. 

 
5.2 That being the case, the Working Group feels that greater 

encouragement should be given to car sharing which has clear benefits 
in reducing pollution and improving air quality.  The Working Group’s 
attention has been drawn to a number of car sharing initiatives that have 
been developed with an ability to search on various websites for 
possible people with whom to share.  Car sharing remains, however, a 
matter of choice for the individual and there is no incentive to encourage 
the Council’s employees to share with colleagues or others travelling to 
the same location. 

 
5.3 Circumstances will change if the Cabinet decide to accept the 

recommendations of the Car Parking Working Party and introduce car 
parking charges for the Riverside, Huntingdon and Bridge Place, 
Godmanchester car parks which will represent a negative incentive to 
car share for employees to avoid paying parking charges.  The Working 
Group feels that the Council should take a more positive step by 
reducing charges for those who do car share.  This could be limited to 
one car park only such as Bridge Place where charges currently do not 
apply.  The loss of income that the Council would incur is difficult to 
predict as this would depend upon take up but, as no charge has been 
made for this car park in the past, this should not result in any reduction 
in income compared to previous years.  As employees will no longer 
have the option of free parking in future, this may also help to cushion 
the impact of charging later in the year. 

 
5.4 The Working Group is aware of a concern that an employee who has 

come to work by car share may encounter a problem in travelling home 
either during the day in an emergency or at the end of the day if the 
driver has had to leave early in similar circumstances.  Such occasions 
are likely to be rare but in those isolated incidents, it is suggested that 
the Council meet the cost of a taxi for the employee to travel home if 
public transport is unavailable.  

 
5.5 The Working Group has discussed how a concession for car sharing 

might be administered, bearing in mind that tickets will be dispensed by 
machine for the Bridge Place car park.  Information has been presented 
to the Panel previously that ticket machine are likely to become more 
sophisticated in their programming which will create an opportunity for 
greater flexibility in the charging structure.  Until that time, a concession 
for employees could simply be by way of a monthly claim for 
reimbursement by the driver of a vehicle who has carried a passenger.  
Verification, if considered necessary, could be undertaken by checking 

132



 

CCTV records with false claims being a disciplinary offence in the same 
way as any other allowances claim. 

 
5.6 The Working Group also discussed briefly possible incentives for 

employees to use public transport or travel by foot or cycle. Further 
investigations will be necessary before any recommendations would be 
formulated and in order not to further delay this report, the Group will 
report tot his subject at a future date. 

 
 
6. POOL CARS 
 
6.1 The Working Group investigated the use of the District Council’s pool 

car status and the frequency/mileage of each car to date. The fleet 
comprises three diesel powered Toyota Yaris and a petrol/electric 
hybrid Toyota Prius. The pool cars have been specifically chosen for 
their low carbon emission output. The Toyota Yaris, tax band B, has an 
engine capacity of 1.3 and emits 119 g/km of CO2 whilst the Prius, also 
tax band B, has an engine capacity of 1.5 and emits 104 g/km of CO2. 
Although these were not actively promoted during their first quarter 
(April – June 2007), their usage has provided encouraging results: 

 
 

Month Mileage Cost per mile 
– private car 
(54.4p) 

Cost per mile 
– pool car 
(40p) 

Saving 
£ 

May 1789 966.06 715.60 250.46 

June 1430 772.20 572.00 200.20 

July 3756 2,028.24 1,502.40 525.84 

August 2714 1,465.56 1,085.60 379.96 

September 2625 1,417.50 1,050.00 367.50 

October 3616 1,952.64 1,446.40 506.24 

November 3871 2,090.36 1,548.40 541.96 

 
 
6.2 As anticipated, active promotion of the pool cars coupled with the loss of 

onsite parking has caused an increase in their usage in the second 
quarter reflecting the positive incorporation of the pool car into everyday 
work. The charge of 40p per mile includes the running costs of the 
vehicle and, as shown in the table above, highlights the increasing 
savings made by the Council through their use. The Group welcomes 
the use of the lower emission vehicles purchased by the Council and 
foresee their use to a greater extent in the future with increased publicity 
of their availability to employees and Members. 

 
6.3 The Group felt that it would be useful also if it were possible to assess 

what the saving in CO2 emissions was from the use of pool cars and in 
order to monitor the continuous use of the cars, the Group suggest that 
regular reports be made available highlighting the reductions in both 
costs to the Council and CO2 emissions. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL PROVISION 
 
7.1 As the concept of changing mileage rates to emission rates is an 

innovative approach, the group researched the potential availability of 

133



 

funding for publicity and the implementation of the scheme. To date no 
source has been identified but further enquiries may lead to possible 
opportunities for support. 

 
 
8. CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 The Working Group is firmly of the belief that the Council should be 

innovative in its approach to the question of mileage allowances and that 
incentives should be made available for employees and Members to 
reduce the use of cars in general and the more heavily polluting cars in 
particular. 

 
8.2 By moving to a different basis for the payment of mileage allowances to 

members, the Working Group hopes that the Council will be seen as 
offering an example of good practice that will be followed by others.  
Positive incentives for car sharing by employees will help to make this 
more attractive as opposed to individual travel to work in single 
occupancy vehicles and again may be regarded as a step towards 
reducing traffic congestion and improving air quality.  

 
 
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The working group therefore 
 

RECOMMEND 
 

(a) that an alternative form of mileage allowance be introduced for 
Members of the Council as set out in paragraph 4.6 above 
based upon exhaust emissions; 

 
(b) that the new mileage allowance be optional for existing 

Members but compulsory for all newly elected Members with 
effect from 1st May 2008; 

 
(c) that the Members’ Independent Remuneration Panel be 

requested to confirm their agreement to the changes to the 
mileage allowance for Members; 

 
(d) that the necessary changes be made to the Members 

Allowance Scheme; 
 

(e) that employees travelling to work by means of car share be 
permitted to park in Bridge Place car park at a concessionary 
rate if car parking charges are introduced for that car park by 
the Council and suitable arrangements be made to enable 
those who have car shared to travel home in an emergency if 
they are left without suitable means of transport; 

 
(f) that enquiries continue to be made regarding potential funding 

for the implementation and publicity of the proposed changes 
to the mileage allowances to Members; 

 
(g) that regular reports be produced highlighting the savings in 

both emissions and costs to the Council  from the use of pool 
cars; and 

134



 

 
(h) that further consideration be given to incentives for employees 

to use public transport, cycling and walking by the Working 
Group in the future. 

 
 

Background papers 
 
See Appendix C 
 
 
Contact Officer: Miss N Giles 
 ((((   01480 387049 
 

135



 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
 
 

Mileage Rates 
 
 

Inland Revenue approved mileage rates 
 
 

Tax Year Business 
Miles 

Engine 
<1000cc 

Engine 
1001-
1500cc 

Engine 
1501-
2000cc 

Engine 
>2000cc 

2007/08 < 10,000 40 p/mile 40 p/mile 40 p/mile 40 p/mile 

2007/08 > 10,000 25 p/mile 25 p/mile 25 p/mile 25 p/mile 

 
 
 
 
 

Current Huntingdonshire District Council (Councillor) 
 
 

Mileage Bands 451-999cc 1000-1199cc 1200-1450cc 

< 8,500 39.7p 43.1p 54.4p 

> 8,500 12.1p 12.0p 14.3p 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

136



 

 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Examples of Vehicles within Tax Bands A – G 
 

TAX BAND MAKE MODEL 
ENGINE 
CAPACITY FUEL 

CO2 
(g/km) 

(emissions)           

A Seat Ibiza 1.4 TDI Diesel 99 

(up to 100) Volkswagen Polo 1.4 TDI Diesel 99 

            

B Citroen C3 1.6 HDI Diesel 118 

(101-120) Peugeot 207 1.4 HDI Diesel 120 

  Fiat 500 1.2 Petrol 119 

  Diahatsu Sirion   Petrol 118 

C Honda 
Civic - Type 
S 2.2 Diesel 138 

(121-150) Toyota Avensis 2.2 Diesel 146 

  Chevrolet Matiz 1 Petrol 139 

  Ford Ka 1.3 Petrol 150 

D Audi A4 Saloon 1.9 TDI Diesel 152 

(151-165) Hyundai Sonata 2 Diesel 159 

  Renault Clio 1.6 Petrol 160 

  Suzuki SX4 1.6 Petrol 165 

E Mazda 5 series 2 Diesel 173 

(166-185) Renault Coupe 1.9 Diesel 180 

  Chysler Jeep Sebring 2 Petrol 185 

  Alfa Romeo 159 1.8 Petrol 181 

F Skoda Superb 2.5 Diesel 206 

(186-225) Land Rover Freelander 2 2.2 Diesel 224 

  Kia Sportage 2 Petrol 194 

  Audi Cabriolet 2 Petrol 197 

G Citroen C6 2.7 Diesel 230 

(226+) Nissan Patrol 3 Diesel 313 

  Ford Galaxy 2.3 Petrol 242 

  Toyota Land Cruiser 4 Petrol 291 

 
 

137



 

APPENDIX C 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

• Notes of the Travel Plan Working Group 

• Reports and Minutes of meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) 

• LGA Members’ Allowance Scheme 

• NJC Officer Mileage Rates 

• HDC’s Travel Plan 

• RAC Report on Motoring 2006: Chapter 4 – Greener Motoring 

• East of England Development Agency 

• HM Revenue and Customs 

• Manchester Green City Campaign 

• Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency 

• DVLA Sustainable Development Action Plan (SDAP) April 2007 – March 
2008 

 
Websites for the following Councils: 
Birmingham City 
Bristol City 
Dundee City 
South Bedfordshire District 
Cambridgeshire County 
London Boroughs of Bromley 
Camden 
Havering and Islington 
Manchester City 
Newcastle Upon Tyne City 
North Lincolnshire 
West Oxfordshire District 
Sheffield City 
Sandwell Metropolitan Borough 
Southampton City 
Warwickshire County 
 
 
 
WEBSITES 
www.vcacarfueldata.org.uk 
www.huntsdc.gov.uk 
www.rac.co.uk 
www.lga.gov.uk 
www.hmrc.gov.uk/green-transport/travel-plans.htm 
www.camshare.co.uk 
www.peterboroughcarshare.com 
www.liftsharesolutions.com/carbudi.asp 
www.globalactionplan.org.uk/transportfacts.aspx 
 
 
 
 
 

138


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 CHANGES TO THE CODE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
	4 ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK and annual governance statement
	Appendices for Covering Report Gov Panel 26 March
	New_ControlsAssurance0603115308 1
	appendix c

	5a DATA QUALITY AUDIT REPORT 2006/07
	2Hunts DC - Data Quality report _FINAL_ 803111

	5b USE OF RESOURCES REPORT 2006/07
	6 Annual Audit and Inspection letter
	7 risk register update
	11 red risk

	8 Interim Audit service  internal audit plan 2008
	02 April 2008_audit_plan_to_CGP 260308

	9 Internal audit service: interim progress report
	10 WHISTLEBLOWING: ANNUAL REVIEW OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE
	11 Travel Plan
	tpwg final3


